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scal 20 marked another year of

significant accomplishments for our

company am very pleased with our

results and the
progress we have made

in improving the profitability of our

II business just over two years ago we

embarked on major initiative our Global Efficiency

Re-Engineering Initiative to improve the efficiency and

profitability of our business As part of this initiative

major business processes across numerous functions

were re-engineered and new systems were imple

mented to enhance scalability and more effectively

support global organization and improve our

management reporting and business analytics

These eflorts first drove improvements in our balance

sheet and cash flow In fiscal 2009 we reduced inven

tories by 22% and significantly increased operating

cash flow In fiscal 20 our balance sheet and cash

flow continued to improve while we also generated

improved margins and
earnings

We met or exceeded

the targets for our key financial metrics as we con

tinued to consistently execute against our initiatives

Specifically our fiscal 2010 results reflected

ii Gross margin adjusted improvement

of 260 basis points

EBITDA margin adjusted increase

of 100 basis points

EkE adjusted growth of 85%

Cash flow from operations more than tripling

from $37 million to $114 million while working

capital increased by 7% and

Return on invested capital improvement

of 210 basis points

The implementation of our new Oracle financial

accounting and order to cash software system was

completed on-time and on-budget We also success

fully completed our migration to shared services

model for all of our main global transaction processing

functions allowing us to manage those global functions

more efficiently and better leverage our business

We expect to continue to improve our key financial

metrics in fiscal 20 and over the next lew years

as we continue to locus on driving consittent and

systematic improvement in the per4ormance of

Our innovation and go to market capabilities have

always been strong New product launches are

delivered to market vvith impressive speed reflecting

nimble internal pi-ocesses and our entrepreneurial

culture While innovation continues to be important

we believe that in order to fully realize the potential

of our global brands it is important that we expand

our marketing capabilities beyond innovation to

include organic growth of the existing base business

Currently 65% of our net sales are generated in

North America While there remains opportunity

for continued growth in the U.S we believe we also

have outstanding opportunities in many markets

internationally Our fragrance brands have significant

opportunity for growth in Wettern Europe Latin

America and the Middle East where our brands

have largely been under-penetrated Further the

heritage and global brand recognition of the

Elizabeth Arden brand also provides strong potential

br growth internationally particularly in Asia where

skin care growth is projected to outpace more

established western markets

our business and expect accelerated growth in

earnings and continued increases in our return

on invested capital The expected additional savings

and improved operating margins should allow us

to re-invest in our brand portfolio to drive organic

revenue growth

Global Brand Management to Drive

Organic Growth



Our focus on organic growth and the globa potential

of our brands required that we transform ourselves

from an innovation-focused marketing organization

to obal brand managers capable of deve oping

managing and growing our brands globally We be

ieve this more comprehensive approach focusing

our efforts resources and marketing spend not just

on nnovation but also on developing and manag ng

the growth of our existing brands in the fastest

growing and most under-penetrated markets is

key to maximizing our globa presence

As result fiscar 20 we creazec tne posftion 01

and hired Chief Marketing Officer Kathy dmer

and rea igned our marketing organ zat on to improve

our global brand management capabi ities and

execution Our new structure which establ shed

regiona marketing teams in each of our five global

markets North America Europe Asia Southern

Hem sphere and Lat Amer ca is des gned to

emphasize gher accountab lity for global growth

and better address the vary ng needs of consumers

ad markets around the world These eg ona

marketing teams are intended to improve the

nteraction between our globa marketing team

whch centralized in NewYork and our local

markets around the word We are confident that

our mproved focus on gobal brand management

will expand the organic growth opportunities of

our ey brands wh le continuing to pursue growth

through product innovation

One hundred years ago Ms izabeth Arden secured

$6000 loan from her brother to open her very

first salon marking the beginning of an conic beauty

brand that today is sold 00 countries around

the word Ms Ardens success was drven by an

uncompromising commitment to the needs of

women combined with exceptional product quality

The obal beauty market is currently estimated to be

approximately $160 lion and remairs fragmented

with the top ten beauty brands compr sing
less than

25% of the globa market.a While North America

remains an important market for the Elizabeth Arden

brand we have an opportunity to achieve higher

levels of growth in faster-growing and larger beauty

markets especia ly
As and Europe each of which

has beauty markets estimated to be approx mately

$45 bi Ion compared to North Amer ca where the

beauty market is est mated at approximately $27

billion.a Awareness of the El zabeth Arden brand

around the world exceptionally gh an asset that

reflects the strong heritage of the brand as wel as

our un que association with the Red Door Spas

Basea on the international growrh oppor run strong

globa awareness of the izabeth Arden brand and the

Red Door Spa point of difference we be ieve there

is tremendous global potential for the El zabeth Arden

brand and have ntensifed our effo ts to refine and

contemporize the Elizabeth Arden brand to cap talize

on that potent We shipped $550 mi ion of Elizabeth

Arden branded products in fscal 2010 and believe

that we have the
ability

to double the size of th brand

As Ms Arden recognized in the early 900s excep

tional products that meet the needs of womer are

ey to rea iz ng the global potential of the El zabeth

Arden brand As such we nave strengthened our

product development capabilities with our global

in care and color marketing groups to deliver

stronger pipel ne of new so utions for consumers

tmgeted to the kighest potenal mactets Ths

partnership is part cularly mportant in the high

growth skin care sector whei sKence and con

sumer understanding must go hand in hand to drve

growth Our high-end anti aging oroduct Prevage

an excellent example and cont nues to be at the

forefront ofskn care technolo wth ts use of

debenone the ey ingredent in Prevage and one

of the most powerful antiox dants avai able for

prevention and treatment of the
sgns

of aging skin

rD 2009



Skin care remains cey focus for future growth

driven by growth of this category in emerging markets

part cularly in Asia and the grow ng needs of an aging

populaton Our key skin care brands inc ude

Prevage our prem urn cosmeceutical anti-aging

product line In fisca 20 net sales of Prevage

ncreased by 28c driven by innovation and growth

in nternat onal markets The successful re-intro

ductions of Prevage Face and Eye Anti-Ag ng Serum

reflecting improved versions of our orginal Prevage

products that incorporate new and enhanced

idebenone delivery system and Prevage Day

moisturizer helped lift sales and brng renewed

interest to the Prevage franchise and the Elizabeth

Arden counter In China Prevage

Anti-Ag ng Night Cream won Chinas

2009 Cosmopolitan Beauty Award

Ceramide comprised of both sI in care and color

foundaton products remains core zabeth

Arden brand known for its deep moisturizing

oenefits and unique capsu delivery system

Hour Cream nas been cult class beauty

product for decades especia ly in Europe satisfying

wide var ety of skin care and beauty needs

Linking our skin care expertse and product develop

ment capab lities to our color cosmetics brands

allows us to optim ze our coor cosmetics busness

focus on innovation and simplify the assortment of

coor products we ofer Net sales our coiw

cosmet cs bus ness increased by in fiscal 2010

led by our innovative Pure sh Mineral Powder

Foundation SPF 20 Launched 2009 ths high

successful product won the esteemed Marie Claire

Prix DExcellence Award in March 201 an award

recogn zing innovation and stinction among beauty

brands around the world

As we focus on our obal growth oppoctunities

we have so looked to further versify the face of

Elizabeth Arden broadening our portfolio of modes

to reflect the women across the world tdat are tne

real faces of Elizabeth Arden Th approach allows

us to embrace our global her tage and reach while

prov ding us flexiblity to tailor our marketing across

our numerous markets and various product lines

Our fiscal 20 lineup Elizabeth Arden scm care

color and fragrance products ncludes both new and

highly- nnovative products as well as re launches of

enduring class cs that have remained re evant for decades



We cont nue to expand our North Amenca fragrance

business by successfOy mplementing number of

ntatves to grow inc prestige fragrance category at

faster growing retailers such as mass volume retaers

chain drug store accounts and retai ers such as

Kohls and Ulta Re atrve to other beauty categories

fragrances are under-penetrated at these retai ers and

we beheve there are ample opportun ties at the retai

eve to drive foot traffic to the fragrance area Wth

the support of wor d-renowned consufting firm

we are worl ing to re-invent the fragrance category at

certain of these retailers to more activey engage the

ustoe ard drve categor asvmeness through the

use of various merchandising concepts and ncreased

use of open-se retai formats Additional to better

support our key reta lers and our brands we have

reorganized our U.S department store sales teams to

ow us to better locate fnancia and sales resources

more efficenty across our brands and retalers

While sales growth in our North America business

was modest in fiscal 20 10 we were able to drive

significant proft growth by reduc ng sales of less

profitab brands and sa es to ess profitable accounts

Our focus on those brands and retai ers that provide

the best margin and sales growth ootenta consis

tent with our ong term strategy oldrvng margns

and mprov ng our return on nvested cap tal

The global fragrance market currenty estimated

at $36.6 billion.a While our fragrance bus ness is

strongy represented in the U.S our nrands are

under-penetrated severa markets that we believe

provide opportunities for strong growth of our

fragrance portfolio Most promising is Europe wh ch

is the worlds largest fragrance marE et currenty

estimated at $13 bi lion over twice the size of the

North American fragrance market The market

share North America of our owned and licensed

brands is estimated at approx mately 5o wh Ic our

owned/licensed brands comprise ess han 20 of the

market Europe.N Whie mar7 oourfraarce

brands resonate wth European consumers ard retail

ers our Jucy Couture Halston and Alberta Ferretti

fragrances being prime examples we realized that

our sales capabilities were not sufficient enough to

tal advantage of the opportunities ovided by

our fragrance brand portfol As result our focus

is on certain key fragrances and retailers that drve

the majority of our busness Europe The recent

restructuring of our global market
ng organizat on

which includes the creation oa dedicated European

regional marketing team fu
ly

hocused on this market

and the strong commercial sales leadership that

we expert from our recently red Executive Vice

Pres dent and General Manager of nternation

shouid enane us to execute our strategy and

significantly expand our business in Europe We
also are focused on potentia acquisitions as well

as other
cey emerg ng

marl ets such as the ddle

East and Lat America to drive growth of oui

fragrance business yen the operat ng everage ri

our business the impart to EBITDA from re atively

sma increase revenue growth particularly in

our nternational business unit can be eutremcy

accretive to EBITDA margins and earn ngs

CQ rL



Shopping trends are constantly changing and con

sumers are better educated and have more shopping

solutions to satisfy their beauty needs As such we

have adapted to these shifting consumer shopping

preferences by expanding our direct-to-consumer

business During fiscal 2010 we greatly expanded our

e-commerce capabilities and launched the first of

our Company-owned outlet stores Net sales of

our direst-to-consumer business e-cornmerce

home shopping as well as our outlet stores and our

Fifth Avenue flagship store grew 47% in fiscal 2010

and we expect sales to double in fiscal 201 Whde

small on an absolute basis we are excited about

better serving the Elizabeth Arden consumer and

expect this aspect of our business to continue to

grow strongly over the next several years

During fiscal 201 we also completed strategic

assessment of all our brands and have ncreased

the resources dedicated to those key brands that

we believe are pivotal to dnving growth We are

fortunate to market wide
range

of fragrance

skin care and color brands While all of our brands

have an important role to play in our portfolio

some brands offer greater opportunities in terms of

their scale and contnbution to growth Disciplined

prioritization of our brands helps us drive efficiencies

in marketing selling supply chain and resource man

agement by establishing clear focus and accountability

For fiscal 20 we have planned several new fragrance

initiatives targeting key brands within our portfolio

First we are excited about the global re-launch of

the classic Elizabeth Arden Red Door fragrance

brand that has experienced loyal consumer support

for decades We have renewed our investment in

and growth expectations fot Red Door and expect

the re-launch to energize the Elizabeth Arden brand

overall and bring renewed excitement and traffic

to Elizabeth Arden counters globally

In addition during fiscal 2011 we will be launching

fragrance brands under new and exciting licenses

acquired in fiscal 2010 such as John Varvatos and

IKate Spade

Sifri//kont Growth of
L%rect4oConswner isiriess

John Varvatos is one of the most dynamic

fashion designers in the industry today and has

already established prestigious mens fragrance

business Adding this fragrance brand to our

portfolio offers us strong mens brand with

fragrance expansion opportunities in Nocth

America as well as globally In Fall 2010 John

Varvatos will launch his first Dagrance with

Elizabeth Arden the John Vorvotos 10th Anniversory

Speciol Edition commemorating this milestone and

saluting the success of the johnVarvatos brand



Our Britney Spears franchoe also continues to

perform we with net sales
ncreasing by 25 in

fisca 2010 In Fall 20l0we are aunchingtfe atest

Britney Spears fragrance Brtney Spews iodicnce

and we expect Britney oyal fan base and se gh

quali of the Britney Spears fragi arces to continue

to support this growing global brand

The Kate Spade fashion house poised for

gn fcant growth ovei tr next few years as globa

ifestyle
brand The Kate Spade brand and its mu tip

censed categories has expanded stro lgly overt te

as two years ar is curenUy experiencing rapd

growth nterrationaly par icuary nAsaand Latn

Amer ca Our first Kate Spade ragrance twirl by

ote spode new york launching Fal 2010

The Juicy Couture fragrance franchise exoerienced

another year of stron5 growth with let sales ncreasing

350 in fisca 20 and growing by 80c nternational

marl ets Leveraging this momentum we are launching

the newest addition to the juicy Couture fragrance

portfol Peoce Love Juicy Couture Fall 2010

would hI to extend my cere apareciat on to al

of our ta ented employees ld beauty adv sors around

the word who are so decicated to slaking El zabeth

Arden global success Your dedcaton and
passion

are instrumenta to our success arc uture oosperw

In addit on wou like to extend cei so lal hani to

Paul West ror his disfnguished ye career at iZa

aeth Arden and for
pass on snd comm tr lent to

our business Paul has been
s5r

ficant coni butorto

oursucccss mutpe capacues et ingfross asenor

operating roe 2006 and becom
ng memoer of our

Board ct that me Pau be leav
rg

the Board this

ea and we wish him al tse very
best the future

am pleasec to announce that the Boa st has lominated

new ndependert dii ecto Saman Amin Executive

Vce President PepsiCo Sales and Ma eting ofill Pauls

Board seat Salman has spent yea
in operating

roles at PepsiCo after spendnsg hO
ycars at octer

Gamble in various global brand management roles

Samans extersive career wth two cad
ng gobal

consumer pac aged goods compan es and hs globa

brand management sales ard commercal pertise

make him great asset to our Board

also would ike to thanl our business partners and

shareholders or their continued
oya support of our

company We look forward to cont ued success and

profitable growth in the next 100 ea

riaPraiur

Scott Bea ie

To celebrate ElizabeLh Ardens 100 anniversary Elizabeth Arden South

Africa has adopted Operation Smile as its corpoi ate social investment

project Operation Smile provides reconstructive surgery to children

born with faci disfigurations such as cleft lips and palates As part

of this project Elizabeth Arden will donate one South African Rand

to Operation Smile from each sale of certain skin care products and

fragrances with the goal of helping hundeds of children smile
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General

Elizabeth Arden Inc is global prestige beauty products company with an extensive portfolio

of prestige fragrance skin care and cosmetics brands Elizabeth Arden branded products include the

Elizabeth Arden fragrances Red Door Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue Elizabeth Arden green tea and

Pretty Elizabeth Arden the Elizabeth Arden skin care brands Ceramic/c Eight Hour Cream

Intervene and PilE VA GE and the Elizabeth Arden branded lipstick foundation and other color

cosmetics products Our prestige fragrance portfolio
includes the following celebrity lifestyle and

designer fragrances

Celebrity Fragrances The fragrance brands of Britney Spears Elizabeth

Taylor Mariah Carey and Usher

Lifestyle Fragrances Curve Giorgio Beverly Hills PS Fine Cologne and White

Shoulders

Designer Fragrances Juicy Couture Kate Spade New York John Varvatos

Rocawear Alberta Ferretti Halston Geoffrey Beene

Badgley Mischka Alfred Sung Bob Mackie and Lucky

In addition to our owned and licensed fragrance brands we distribute approximately 300

additional prestige fragrance brands primarily in the United States through distribution agreements

and other purchasing arrangements

We sell our prestige beauty products to retailers and other outlets in the United States and

internationally including

U.S department stores such as Macys Dillards Belk Saks Bloomingdales and

Nordstrom

U.S mass retailers such as Wal-Mart Target Kohls Sears Waigreens CVS and

Marmaxx and

International retailers such as Boots Debenhams Ulita Sephora Marionnaud Hudsons

Bay Shoppers Drug Mart Myer Douglas and various travel retail outlets such as Nuance

Heinemann and World Duty Free

In the United States we sell our Elizabeth Arden skin care and cosmetics products primarily in

prestige department stores and our fragrances in department stores and mass retailers We also sell

our Elizabeth Arden fragrances skin care and cosmetics products and other fragrance lines in

approximately 100 countries worldwide through perfumeries boutiques department stores and

travel retail outlets such as duty free shops and airport boutiques and on the internet

At June 30 2010 our operations were organized into the following reportable segments

North America Fragrance Our North America Fragrance segment sells our portfolio of

owned licensed and distributed fragrances to department stores mass retailers and

distributors in the United States Canada and Puerto Rico This segment also sells our

Elizabeth Arden products in prestige department stores in Canada and Puerto Rico and to

other selected retailers This segment also includes our direct to consumer business which

is comprised of our Elizabeth Arden branded retail stores and global c-commerce business

International Our International segment sells our portfolio of owned and licensed

brands including our Elizabeth Arden branded products in approximately 100 countries

outside of North America through perfumeries boutiques department stores and travel

retail outlets worldwide



Other Our Other reportable segment sells our Elizabeth Arden products in prestige

department stores in the United States and through the Red Door beauty salons which are

owned and operated by an unrelated third party
that licenses the Elizabeth Arden and Red

Door trademarks from us for use in its salons

Commencing July 2010 our operations were reorganized into two reportable segments

North America and International The portion
of our business operations

that sells our Elizabeth

Arden products in prestige department stores in the United States and through the Red Door beauty

salons has been consolidated with our North America Fragrance segment to create the North

America segment

Financial information relating to our reportable segments is included in Note 19 to the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our net sales to customers in the United States and in foreign countries in U.S dollars and net

sales as percentage of consolidated net sales for the years
ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

are listed in the following
chart

Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Amounts in millions
Sales Sales Sales

United States
670.3 61% 652.7 61% 685.4 60%

Foreign
433.5 39% 417.5 39% 455.7 40%

Total $1103.8 100% $1070.2 100% $1141.1 100%

10 Our largest foreign countries in terms of net sales for the
years

ended June 30 2010 2009 and

2008 are listed in the following chart

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in millions

2010 2009 2008

United Kingdom
$70.3 $73.6 $85.7

Australia
38.2 32.2 40.1

Canada
33.9 35.2 40.0

South Africa
21.1 17.0 17.7

China
20.4 21.4 16.6

Spain
19.3 21.9 28.1

The financial results of our international operations
are subject to volatility due to fluctuations

in foreign currency exchange rates inflation disruptions in travel and changes in political and

economic conditions in the countries in which we operate
The value of our international assets is

also affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates For information on the breakdown

of our long-lived
assets in the United States and internationally and risks associated with our

international operations see Note 19 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Our principal
executive offices are located at 2400 S.W 145th Avenue Miramar Florida 33027

and our telephone number is 954 364-6900 We maintain website with the address

www.elizabetharden.com We are not including information contained on our website as part of nor

incorporating
it by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K We make available free of

charge through our website our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q

and Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports as soon as reasonably

practicable
after we electronically file such material with or furnish such material to the Securities

and Exchange Commission



Information relating to corporate governance at Elizabeth Arden Inc including our Corporate

Governance Guidelines and Principles Code of Ethics for Directors and Executive and Finance

Officers Code of Business Conduct and charters for our Lead Independent Director the Audit

Committee the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee is available on our website under the section Corporate Info Investor Relations

Corporate Governance We will provide the foregoing information without charge upon written

request to Secretary Elizabeth Arden Inc 2400 S.W 145th Avenue Miramar FL 33027

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to increase net sales operating margins and earnings by increasing

the sales of the Elizabeth Arden brand through leveraging the global awareness of the Elizabeth

Arden brand name targeting fast-growing geographical markets and focusing on our skin care

expertise
and classic products such as our Eight Hour Cream Ceramide skin care products and Red

Door fragrance increasing the sales of our prestige fragrance portfolio internationally

particularly in the large European fragrance market and through licensing opportunities and

acquisitions expanding the prestige fragrance category at mass retail customers in North

America continuing to expand operating margins working capital efficiency and return on

invested capital and capitalizing on the growth potential of our global brands by focusing on

both
organic growth opportunities as well as those achieved through new product innovation

We believe the Elizabeth Arden brand is one of the most widely recognized beauty brands in the

world and is associated with high quality products and we intend to continue to invest behind and

grow this brand on global
basis through continued expansion in high-growth markets such as

Asia and developing markets ii innovation in skin care and color products based on new

technologies iii focusing on our classic products such as our Eight Hour Cream Ceramide skin

care products and Red Door fragrance iv leveraging
the 100th anniversary of the Elizabeth Arden

brand during 2010 and 2011 as well as the marketing opportunities provided by the Red Door Spa

heritage which we believe affords us competitive advantage and continuing to cultivate strong

partnerships with key global retailers

In fiscal 2010 we launched key initiative to expand our market share for fragrances in

Western Europe The Western European fragrance market is significantly larger than the North

American fragrance market and we believe this offers opportunities for us to expand the sales of our

fragrance portfolio We recently added resources to implement this strategy We believe many of our

fragrance brands including our Elizabeth Arden fragrances and the Juicy Couture Britney Spears

and John Varvatos fragrance brands resonate well with retailers and consumers in those markets

During fiscal 2010 we increased our market share in the prestige fragrance category
with mass

retailers in North America We have worked closely with our mass retail customers and nationally

recognized merchandising and advertising companies to develop
and implement variety of

marketing and product merchandising initiatives intended to improve the shopping experience
for

mass retail fragrance shoppers and expand this category at these retailers

Since fiscal 2007 we have been engaged in series of activities intended to increase business

efficiencies throughout our company particularly in the supply chain distribution logistics

information technology and finance areas to improve our cash flow operating margins and

profitability and to accommodate the anticipated growth of our business We call this effort our

Global Efficiency Re-engineering initiative and it consists of improvements in the efficiency
of

our supply chain distribution logistics and business processes ii migration to shared services

model to simplify transaction processing by consolidating our primary global transaction processing

functions and iii the implementation of an Oracle financial accounting and order processing

system



In July 2009 we completed the first phase of the implementation of an Oracle financial

accounting system general ledger and accounts payable and in April 2010 we completed the

second phase of the implementation order to cash Both phases of this financial accounting system

implementation were completed on time and on budget As
part

of this financial accounting system

implementation we also migrated to shared services model for our primary global transaction

processing functions that is expected to improve our transactional
processes

and management

reporting

During fiscal 2010 we continued to focus on improving our sales and operations planning

processes
and our supply chain and logistics efficiency We have implemented turnkey model for

substantially all our fragrance and color cosmetic products in which our contract manufacturers

have assumed the administrative responsibility for planning and purchasing raw materials and

components while we continue to govern strategic sourcing
and

pricing
with all raw materials and

components vendors We expect to implement this turnkey manufacturing model with
respect to

most of our skin care products during fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2010 we realigned our global marketing organization to further capitalize on the

growth potential of our global brands We recently hired Chief Marketing Officer and have

established regional marketing teams located closer to our affiliate markets These efforts are

intended to improve the ability of our marketing organization to respond to local market needs

while establishing more strategic
focus across our brands and various geographic markets

Recent License Agreements

Effective June 2008 we became the exclusive global licensee for the manufacture

distribution marketing and sale of the Liz Claiborne fragrance brands under long-term agreement

with Liz Claiborne Inc and certain of its affiliates The Liz Claiborne fragrance portfolio includes

the Juicy Couture Curve and Lucky fragrances In connection with the Liz Claiborne license

agreement we also assumed license for the Usher celebrity fragrances The Liz Claiborne licensing

arrangement has enabled us to grow our market share in our North America Fragrance segment

ii increase our gross margins in our North America Fragrance segment by converting existing mass

customer sales from distribution margins to owned/licensed margins and iii add sales volume to

our International segment particularly with the Juicy Couture fragrance brand

During fiscal 2010 we also entered into exclusive global licensing agreements with Liz

Claiborne Inc for the manufacture distribution and marketing of Kate Spade fragrances and with

John Varvatos Apparel Corp for the development marketing and distribution of John Varvatos

fragrances

Products

Our net sales of products and net sales of products as percentage of consolidated net sales for

the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 are listed in the following chart

Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Amounts in millions Sales Sales Sales

Fragrance 854.0 77% 835.3 78% 845.4 74%

Skin Care 183.0 17% 175.2 16% 217.6 19%

Cosmetics 66.8 6% 59.7 6% 78.1 7%

Total $1103.8 100% $1070.2 100% $1141.1 100%



Fragrance We offer wide variety of fragrance products for both men and women including

perfume colognes eau de toilettes eau de parfums body sprays and gift sets Our fragrances are

classified into the Elizabeth Arden branded fragrances celebrity branded fragrances designer

branded fragrances and lifestyle fragrances Each fragrance is sold in variety of sizes and

packaging assortments In addition we sell bath and body products that are based on the particular

fragrance to complement the fragrance lines such as soaps deodorants body lotions gels creams

and dusting powders We sell fragrance products worldwide primarily to department stores mass

retailers perfumeries boutiques distributors and travel retail outlets We tailor the size and

packaging of the fragrance to suit the particular target customer

Skin Care Our skin care lines are sold under the Elizabeth Arden name and include products

such as moisturizers creams lotions and cleansers Our core Elizabeth Arden branded products

include Cerarnide PRE VA GE Eight Hour Cream and Intervene Our eramide skin care line

targets women who are 40 arid over PREVA GE is our premium cosmeceutical skin care line Our

Eight Hour Cream franchise has strong international following We sell skin care products

worldwide primarily in prestige department and specialty stores perfumeries
and travel retail

outlets

Cosmetics We offer variety of cosmetics under the Elizabeth Arden name including

foundations lipsticks mascaras eye shadows and powders We offer these products in wide array

of shades and colors The largest component of our cosmetics business is foundations which we

market in conjunction with our Ceramide and Intervene skin care products We sell our cosmetics

internationally and in the United States primarily in prestige department and specialty stores

perfumeries and travel retail outlets

Trademarks Licenses and Patents 13

We own or have rights to use the trademarks necessary
for the manufacturing marketing

distribution and sale of numerous fragrance cosmetic and skin care brands including Elizabeth

Ardens Red Door Red Door Revealed Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue Elizabeth Arden Provocative

Woman Pretty Elizabeth Arden Plump Peifect Intervene White Shoulders Haiston Z-14 PS Fine

Cologne for Men Design and Wings These trademarks are registered or have pending applications

in the United States and in certain of the countries in which we sell these product lines We consider

the protection of our trademarks to be important to our business

We are the exclusive worldwide trademark licensee for number of fragrance brands including

the Britney Spears fragrances curious Britney Spears fantasy Britney Spears Britney

Spears believe and radiance Britney Spears

the Elizabeth Taylor fragrances White Diamonds and Elizabeth Taylors Passion

the Mariah Carey fragrances by Mariah Carey and Luscious Pink

the Usher fragrances He She Ullfor Men and URfor Women

the Liz Claiborne fragrances Curve Realities Lucky Mambo and Bora Bora

the Juicy Couture fragrances Juicy Couture Viva Ia Juicy and outure Couture

the Giorgio fragrances Giorgio Beverly Hills and Giorgio Red

the Alfred Sung fragrances SUNG Alfred Sung SHI Alfred Sung and JEWEL Alfred Sung
and

the designer fragrance brands of Badgley Mischka Alberta Ferretti John Varvatos

Rocawear Bob Mackie Geoffrey Beene and Halston



Fragrance We offer wide
variety of fragrance products for both men and women including

perfume colognes eau de toilettes eau de parfums body sprays and gift sets Our fragrances are
classified into the Elizabeth Arden branded fragrances celebrity branded fragrances designer
branded fragrances and lifestyle fragrances Each

fragrance is sold in variety of sizes and

packaging assortments In addition we sell bath and body products that are based on the
particular

fragrance to complement the fragrance lines such as soaps deodorants body lotions gels creams
and dusting powders We sell

fragrance products worldwide primarily to department stores mass
retailers perfumeries boutiques distributors and travel retail outlets We tailor the size and

packaging of the
fragrance to slit the particular target customer

Skin Care Our skin care lines are sold under the Elizabeth Arden name and include products
such as moisturizers creams lotions and cleansers Our core Elizabeth Arden branded products
include Ceramide PREVA GE Eight Hour Cream and Intervene Our Ceramide skin care line

targets women who are 40 and over PREVA GE is our premium cosmeceutical skin care line Our
Eight Hour Cream franchise has strong international following We sell skin care products
worldwide primarily in

prestige department and specialty stores perfumeries and travel retail

outlets

Cosmetics We offer
variety of cosmetics under the Elizabeth Arden name including

foundations lipsticks mascaras eye shadows and powders We offer these products in wide
array

of shades and colors The
largest component of our cosmetics business is foundations which we

market in
conjunction with our Ceramide and Intervene skin care products We sell our cosmetics

internationally and in the United States primarily in prestige department and
specialty stores

perfumeries and travel retail outlets

UI
Trademarks Licenses and Patents

13

We own or have rights to use the trademarks
necessary for the manufacturing marketing

distribution and sale of numerous fragrance cosmetic and skin care brands including Elizabeth
Ardens Red Door Red Door Revealed Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue Elizabeth Arden Provocative

Woman Pretty Elizabeth Arden Plump Perfect Intervene White Shoulders Haiston Z-14 PS Fine
Cologne for Men Design and Wings These trademarks are registered or have pending applications
in the United States and in certain of the countries in which we sell these product lines We consider
the protection of our trademarks to be important to our business

We are the exclusive worldwide trademark licensee for number of fragrance brands including

the Britney Spears fragrances curious Britney Spears fantasy Britney Spears Britney
Spears believe and radiance Britney Spears

the Elizabeth Taylor fragrances White Diamonds and Elizabeth Taylors Passion

the Mariah Carey fragrances by Mariah Carey and Luscious Pink

the Usher fragrances He She URfor Men and URfor Women

the Liz Claiborne
fragrances Curve Realities Lucky Mambo and Bora Bora

the Juicy Couture
fragrances Juicy Couture Viva Ia Juicy and Couture Couture

the Giorgio fragrances Giorgio Beverly Hills and Giorgio Red

the Alfred Sung fragrances SUNG Alfred Sung SHI Alfred Sung and JEWEL Alfred Sung
and

the designer fragrance brands of Badgley Mischka Alberta Ferretti John Varvatos
Rocawear Bob Mackie Geoffrey Beene and Halston



Our sales personnel are organized by customer account Our sales force routinely visits retailers

to assist in the merchandising layout and stocking of selling areas In the U.S we have sales force

for Elizabeth Arden branded products that are sold in prestige distribution For many of our mass

retailers in the United States and Canada we sell basic products in special packaging that deter theft

and permit the products to be sold in open displays Our fulfillment capabilities enable us to reliably

process assemble and ship small orders on timely basis We use this ability to assist our customers

in their retail distribution through drop shipping directly to their stores and by fulfilling their

sales of beauty products over the internet

As is customary in the beauty industry we do not generally have long-term or exclusive

contracts with any of our retail customers Sales to customers are generally made pursuant to

purchase orders We believe that our continuing relationships with our customers are based upon

our ability to provide wide selection and reliable source of prestige beauty products our expertise

in marketing and new product introduction and our ability to provide value-added services

including our category management services to U.S mass retailers

Our ten largest customers accounted for approximately 39% of net sales for the
year

ended

June 30 2010 The only customer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales during that

period was Wal-Mart including Sams Club which accounted for approximately 15% of our

consolidated net sales and approximately 24% of our North America Fragrance segment net sales

The loss of or significant adverse change in our relationship with any of our largest customers

could have material adverse effect on our business prospects results of operations financial

condition or cash flows

The industry practice for businesses that market beauty products has been to grant
certain

retailers primarily North American prestige department stores and specialty beauty stores subject

to our authorization and approval the right to either return merchandise or to receive markdown 15

allowance for certain products We establish estimated return reserves and markdown allowances at

the time of sale based upon our level of sales historical and projected experience with product

returns and markdowns in each of our business segments and with respect to each of our product

types current economic trends and changes in customer demand and customer mix Our return

reserves and markdown allowances are reviewed and updated as needed during the year and

additions to these reserves and allowances may be required Additions to these reserves and

allowances may have negative impact on our financial results

Marketing

Our marketing approach emphasizes strong positioning
for each brand which is consistently

reflected in all consumer touch points including advertising packaging product experience and at

point of sale Our advertising and marketing activities are designed to optimize the engagement of

our target consumer and utilize traditional print television and radio advertising and point-of-sale

merchandising including displays and sampling For Elizabeth Arden brand products we utilize our

iconic Red Door symbol to reinforce the Elizabeth Arden brand heritage globally We increasingly

rely on new and innovative marketing methods such as digital technologies including our Elizabeth

Arden website the internet social media sites and mobile devices and downloads During 2010 and

2011 we are using
the landmark 100th anniversary

of the Elizabeth Arden brand as platform to

launch multi media advertising and public relations campaign to increase brand awareness and

leverage retail opportunity on global level

During fiscal 2010 we created and filled the new position of Chief Marketing Officer and

announced re-organization
of our global marketing department to better capitalize on our global

growth opportunities This new structure which became effective July 2010 includes the creation

of global brand management teams which are responsible for the overall brand strategy
and

regional marketing teams which are responsible for leading the local marketing efforts in their

respective regions We believe this organizational structure is consistent with the best practices of

other successful global consumer products companies



Our marketing programs are also integrated with significant cooperative advertising programs
that we plan and execute with our retailers often linked with new product innovation and

promotions In our department store and perfumery accounts we periodically promote our brands

with gift with purchase and purchase with purchase programs At ill-store counters sales

representatives offer personal demonstrations to market individual products We also engage in

extensive sampling programs

New product introductions are important in attracting consumers to our brands and in creating

brand excitement with our retail customers Our efforts are primarily focused on the identification of

consumer needs and shifts in consumer preferences in order to develop new fragrance skin care and

cosmetic products develop line extensions and promotions and redesign or reformulate
existing

products

In fiscal 2010 we introduced number of new Elizabeth Arden branded products including

PREVA GE Day SPF 30 new Ceramide Ultra Moisture Cream and Lotion and flanker fragrances

for our classic Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue and Elizabeth Arden green tea fragrances We will

continue to focus on our core Elizabeth Arden branded skin care and color cosmetics products by

investing in new product innovation and
technologies and increased advertising In addition during

fiscal 2010 we launched number of fragrances including new Juicy Couture fragrance Couture

Couture as well as new fragrances under our Britney Spears Mariah Carey Elizabeth Taylor

Alberta Ferretti and Haiston licenses and we plan fragrance launches for fiscal 2011 under our

Elizabeth Arden Britney Spears Mariah Carey Kate Spade and John Varvatos fragrance brands

With many of our retail customers our marketing personnel often
design model schematic

planograms for the customers fragrance department identify trends in consumer preferences and

adapt the product assortment to these trends conduct
training programs for the customers sales

personnel and manage in-store special events Our marketing personnel also work to design gift

sets tailored to the customers needs For certain customers we provide comprehensive sales analysis

and active management of the prestige fragrance category We believe these services distinguish us

from our competitors and contribute to customer loyalty

Seasonality

Our operations have historically been seasonal with higher sales generally occurring in the first

half of our fiscal
year as result of increased demand by retailers in anticipation of and during the

holiday season For the
year

ended June 30 2010 approximately 60% of our net sales were made

during the first half of our fiscal year Due to product innovations and new product launches the

size and timing of certain orders from our customers and additions or losses of brand distribution

rights sales results of operations working capital requirements and cash flows can vary

significantly between
quarters

of the same and different years As result we expect to experience

variability in net sales operating margin net income working capital requirements and cash flows

on quarterly basis Increased sales of skin care and cosmetic products relative to fragrances may
reduce the seasonality of our business

We experience seasonality in our working capital with peak inventory levels normally from July

to October and peak receivable balances normally from September to December Our working

capital borrowings are also seasonal and are normally highest in the months of September October

and November During the months of December January and February of each year cash is

normally generated as customer payments on holiday season orders are received

Manufacturing Supply Chain and Logistics

We use third-party suppliers and contract manufacturers in the United States and Europe to

obtain substantially all of our raw materials components and packaging products and to

manufacture finished products relating to our owned and licensed brands Our fragrance and skin

care products have primarily been manufactured by Cosmetic Essence LLC CEI an unrelated



third party in plants located in New Jersey and Roanoke Virginia Third parties in Europe also

manufacture certain of our fragrance and cosmetic products We also have small manufacturing

facility in South Africa primarily to manufacture local requirements of our products

As
part

of our Global Efficiency Re-engineering project we have reduced the number of

contract manufacturers and raw material suppliers that we use We also have substantially

completed the transition to turnkey manufacturing model with the majority of our contract

manufacturers in the United States and Europe including
GEl Under the turnkey manufacturing

model our contract manufacturers assume administrative responsibility for planning and

purchasing raw materials and components while we continue to govern strategic sourcing
and

pricing with all raw materials and components vendors Any supply chaiu disruptions caused by our

supply chain re-engineering
efforts may adversely affect our business prospects results of

operations financial condition or cash flows

As is customary in our industry historically we have not had long-term or exclusive agreements

with contract manufacturers of our owned and licensed brands or with fragrance manufacturers or

suppliers of our distributed brands and generally
made purchases through purchase orders As we

implement our turnkey manufacturing model we anticipate that we will enter into supply

agreements for finished goods with our most significant manufacturers We believe that we have

good relationships with manufacturers of our owned and licensed brands and that there are

alternative sources should one or more of these manufacturers become unavailable We receive our

distributed brands in finished goods form directly from fragrance manufacturers as well as from

other sources The ten largest fragrance
brands that are distributed by us on non-exclusive basis

accounted for approximately 13% of our net sales for the year ended June 30 2010 The loss of or

significant adverse change in our relationship with any of our key fragrance manufacturers for our

owned and licensed brands such as GEl or suppliers of our distributed fragrance brands could have

material adverse effect on our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash

flows

Our fulfillment operations for the United States and certain other areas of the world are

conducted out of leased distribution facihty in Roanoke Virginia The 400000 square-foot

Roanoke facility accommodates our distribution activities and houses large portion of our

inventory Our fulfillment operations for Europe are conducted under logistics
services agreement

by GEPL an unrelated third party at CEPLs facility in Beville France The CEPL agreement

expires in June 2013 While we insure our inventory and the Roanoke facility the loss of either of

these distribution facilities or the inventory stored in those facilities would require us to find

replacement facilities or inventory and could have material adverse effect on our business

prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

Government Regulation

We and our products are subject to regulation by the Food and Drug Administration and the

Federal Trade Commission in the United States as well as by various other federal state local and

international regulatory authorities in the countries in which our products are produced or sold

Such regulations principally relate to the ingredients manufacturing labeling packaging and

marketing of our products We believe that we are in substantial compliance with such regulations

as well as with applicable federal state local and international and other countries rules and

regulations governing the discharge of materials hazardous to the environment Changes in such

regulations or in the manner in which such regulations are interpreted or applied could have

material adverse effect on our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash

flows



Management Information Systems

Our primary information technology systems discussed below provide complete portfolio of

business systems business intelligence systems and information technology infrastructure services

to support our global operations

Logistics and supply chain systems including purchasing materials management
manufacturing inventory management order management customer service pricing
demand planning warehouse management and shipping

Financial and administrative systems including general ledger payables receivables

personnel payroll tax treasury
and asset management

Electronic data interchange systems to enable electronic exchange of order status invoice

and financial information with our customers financial service providers and our partners

within the extended supply chain

Business
intelligence and business analysis systems to enable managements informational

needs as they conduct business operations and perform business decision making and

Information technology infrastructure services to enable seamless integration of our global

business operations through Wide Area Networks WAN personal computing

technologies electronic mail and service agreements with outsourced computing

operations

These management information systems and infrastructure provide on-line business process

support for our global business operations Further many of these capabilities have been extended

into the operations of certain of our U.S customers and third
party service providers to enhance

these arrangements with examples such as vendor managed inventory third
party distribution

third
party manufacturing inventory replenishment customer billing retail sales analysis product

availability pricing information and transportation management

In connection with our Global Efficiency Re-engineering initiative during fiscal 2010 we

completed the implementation of an Oracle financial accounting system general ledger accounts

payable and order to cash in accordance with our projected timeline and on budget This

implementation was intended to improve key transaction processes and accommodate the

anticipated growth of our business We
expect this infrastructure investment to simplify our

transaction processing by utilizing common platform to centralize our primary global transaction

processing functions

We outsource certain areas of our information technology infrastructure to IBM leading

global information services and technology provider IBM also provides us with backup facilities and

disaster
recovery capabilities to enhance the reliability of our management information systems and

which are designed to continue to operate if our main facilities should fail We also have disaster

recovery plan which is tested
periodically to protect our business

operations and customer

information We also have business
interruption insurance to cover portion of any disruption in

our management information systems resulting from certain hazards

Competition

The beauty industry is highly competitive and can change rapidly due to consumer preferences

and industry trends Competition in the beauty industry is based on brand strength pricing and

assortment of products innovation perceived value product availability and order fulfillment

service to the customer promotional activities advertising special events new product

introductions and other activities

We believe that we compete primarily on the basis of brand
recognition quality product

efficacy price and our emphasis on providing value-added customer services including category

management services to certain retailers There are products that are better-known and more

popular than the products manufactured or supplied by us Many of our competitors are



substantially larger and more diversified and have substantially greater
financial and marketing

resources than we do as well as greater name recognition
and the ability to develop and market

products similar to and competitive
with those manufactured by us

Employees

As of August 16 2010 we had approximately 2240 full-time employees and approximately

382 part-time employees in the United States and 17 foreign countries None of our employees are

covered by collective bargaining agreement We believe that our relationship with our employees is

satisfactory

Executive Officers of the Company

The following sets forth the names and
ages

of each of our executive officers as of August 12

2010 and the positions they hold

Name Age Position with the Company

Scott Beattie 51 Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Stephen Smith 50 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Joel Ronkin 42 Executive Vice President General Manager North America

Pierre Pirard 42 Executive Vice President Product Innovation and Global

Supply Chain

Kathy Widmer 48 Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Oscar Marina 51 Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Hoy Heise 64 Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Each of our executive officers holds office for such term as may be determined by our board of

directors Set forth below is brief description
of the business experience

of each of our executive

officers

Scott Beattie has served as Chairman of our Board of Directors since April 2000 as our

Chief Executive Officer since March 1998 and as one of our directors since January 1995

Mr Beattie also has served as our President since August 2006 position
he also held from April

1997 to March 2003 In addition Mr Beattie served as our Chief Operating Officer from April 1997

to March 1998 and as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Assistant Secretary
from

November 1995 to April 1997 He is director of ObjectVideo Inc an information technology

company Mr Beattie is also director and member of the executive committee of the Personal

Care Products Council the national trade association for the cosmetic and personal care products

industry member of the advisory board of the Ivey Business School and member of the board of

directors of PENCIL not-for-profit organization
that benefits New York City public schools

Stephen Smith has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since

May 2001 Previously Mr Smith was with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an international

professional services firm as partner from October 1993 until May 2001 and as manager from July

1987 until October 1993

Joel Ronkin has served as our Executive Vice President North America since July 2010 as

our General Manager North America Fragrances from July 2006 to July 2010 as our Executive

Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer from April 2004 to June 2006 as our Senior Vice

President and Chief Administrative Officer from February 2001 through March 2004 and as our

Vice President Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary from March 1999 through

January 2001 From June 1997 through March 1999 Mr Ronkin served as the Vice President

Secretary and General Counsel of National Auto Finance Company Inc an automobile finance

company From May 1992 to June 1997 Mr Ronkin was an attorney
with the law firm of Steel

Hector Davis L.L.P in Miami Florida



Kathy Widmer has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since

November 2009 Prior to joining us Ms Widmer was with Johnson Johnson for 21 years where

she held numerous positions iuclnding most recently serving as Vice President Marketing McNeil

Consumer Healtheare from May 2008 until November 200c Prior to May 2008 Ms Widmer served

as Franchise lirector and Product Director for various Johnson and Johnson consumer products

including Tylenol Motrin Reach Oral Care and Pepcid from August 1996 until April 2008

Pierre Pirard has served as our Executive Vice President Product Innovation and Global

Supply Chain since February 2010 From November 2007 until February 2010 he served as our

Senior \Tice President Global Supply Chain Prior 10 joining us Mr Pirard spent 15 years at

.lolmson Johnson where lie held numerous positions including serving as Regional Director

External Manufacturing North America Consumer Sector from 2005 unit 2007 as Regional

Director Supply Chain Planning North America Consumer Sector from 2001 to 2005 and in

various positions in the finance project management supply and logistics groups for Johnson

Johnson Canada from 992 to 2000

Oscar Marina has served as our Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

since April 2004 as our Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary from March 2000 to

March 2004 and as our Vice President General Counsel and Secretary from March 1996 to March

2000 From October 1988 to March 1996 Mr Marina was an attorney with the law firm of Steel

Elector Davis L.L.P in Miami becoming partner of the firm in January 1995

I-toy Heise has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer since

November 2007 as our Executive Vice President Chief Inforuiaiion Officer and Operations

ii Planning from March 2006 to November 2007 and as our Senior Vice President and Chief

20 Information Officer from May 2004 to February 2006 From February 2003 to April 2004

Mr Ileise was the founder and principal of his own technology consulting firm From June 1999

until May 2001 Mr Heise was Senior %ice President of Gartner an information technology research

finn Prior to that time Mr Heise worked in various management and consulting capacities
for

Renaissance Worldwide global provider of business process improvement and information

technology consulting services

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

The risk factors in this section describe the major risks to our business prospects results of

operations financial condition and cash flows and should be considered carefully In addition these

factors constitute our cautionary statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

1995 and could cause our actual results to differ materially from those projected in any forward

looking statements as defined in such act made in this Annual Report on Form 10K Investors

should not place
undue reliance on an such forwardlooking statements Any statements that are

not historical facts and that express or involve discussions as to expectations beliefs plans

objectives assumptions or future events or performance often but not always through the use of

words or phrases
such as will likely result are expected to will continue is anticipated

estimatel intends plans believes and projects may be forward-looking and may
involve estimates and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from those

expressed in the forward-looking statements

Further ally forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is

made and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or

circumstances after the date omi which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of

anticipated or unanticipated events or circumstances New factors emerge from time to time and it

is not possible for us to predict all of such factors Further we cannot assess the impact of each such

factor on our results of operations or the extent to which any factor or combination of factors may

cause actual results to differ inaterialh from those contained in any forwardlooking statements



Adverse U.S and global economic conditions could negatively impact our business

prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

Adverse U.S and global economic conditions such as the economic conditions in place since

late 2003 can contribute to higher unemployment levels decreased consumer spending reduced

credit availability
and declining consnmer confidence and demand each of which poses risks to our

business decrease in consumer spending and/or in retailer and consumer confidence and demand

for our products
could significantly negatively impact our net sales and profitability including our

operating margins and return on invested capital Such economic conditions could cause some of onr

customers to experience
cash flow problems which could adversely affect product orders payment

patterns
and default rates and increase our bad debt expense Adverse economic conditions could

also adversely affect our access to the
capital necessary

for our business and our ability to remain in

compliance with the financial covenant in our revolving credit facility that applies only in the event

that we do not have the requisite average borrowing base capacity as set forth in our credit facility

These difficult economic conditions could also impair the financial condition of one or more of our

customers or suppliers causing them to shut down their operations or file for bankruptcy protection

which could disrupt and have an adverse eflŁct on our business If the recent adverse U.S and global

economic conditions persist or deteriorate further our business prospects results of operations

financial condition or cash flows could be negatively impacted

We may be adversely affected by factors affecting our customers businesses

Factors that adversely impact our customers businesses may also have an adverse effect on our

business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows These factors may

include

any reduction in consumer traffic and demand as result of economic downturns like the

recent domestic and global recessions

any credit risks associated with the financial condition of our customers

the effect of consolidation or weakness in the retail industry including the closure of

customer doors and the uncertainty resulting therefrom and

inventory
reduction initiatives and other factors affecting customer buying patterns

including any reduction in retail
space

commitment to fragrances and cosmetics and

practices used to control inventory shrinkage

Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates could adversely affect our results of operations and

cash flows

We sell our products in approximately 100 countries around the world During each of the
years

ended June 30 2010 and 2009 we derived approximately 39% of our net sales from our

international operations We conduct our international operations in variety of different countries

and derive our sales in various currencies including
the Euro British pound Swiss franc Canadian

dollar and Australian dollar as well as the U.S dollar Most of our skin care and cosmetic products

are produced in third-party manufacturing facilities located in the U.S Our operations may be

subject to volatility because of currency changes inflation changes and changes in political and

economic conditions in the countries in which we operate With
respect to international operations

our sales cost of goods sold and expenses are typically denominated in combimiation of local

currency and the U.S dollar Our results of operations are reported in U.S dollars Fluctuations in

currency rates can affect our reported sales margins operating costs and the anticipated settlement

of our foreign denominated receivables and payables weakening of the foreign currencies in which

we generate sales relative to the currencies in which our costs are denominated which is primarily

the U.S dollar may adversely affect our ability to meet our obligations
and could adversely affect

our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows Our
competitors may

or may not be subject to the same fluctuations in currency rates and our competitive position
could

be affected by these changes



We do not have coHtracts with customers or with suppliers of our distributed brands so if

we cannot maintain and develop relationships with such customers and suppliers our

business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows may be

materially adversely affected

We do not have long-term or exclusive contracts with any of our customers and generally do not

have long-term or exclusive contracts with our suppliers of distributed brands Our ten largest

customers accounted for approxunatelv 39% of our net sales in the
year

ended Jnne 30 2010 Our

only customer who accounted for niore than 10% of our net sales in the
year

ended June 30 2010

was Wal-Mart including Sams Club who accounted for approximately 15% of our consolidated

net sales and approximately 24% of our North America Fragrance segment net sales In addition

onr suppliers of distributed brands which represented approxiniatel 13% of our net sales for fiscal

2010 generally can at
ally

time elect to snpply products to our customers directly or through

another distributor Onr suppliers of distributed brands may also choose to reduce or eliminate the

volume of their products distributed by its The loss of any of our key suppliers or customers or

change in onr relationship with any oiie of them could have material adverse effect on our

business prospects results of operations financial condition or caslì flows

We rely on third-party manufacturers and component suppliers for substantially all of our

owned and licensed products

We do not own or operate any significant manufacturing facilities We use thirdparty

manufacturers and component suppliers to mnanufact tire substantially all of our owned arid licensed

products As part of our Global Efficiency Re-engineering initiative we have reduced the number of

thirdparty manufacturers and component and materials suppliers
that we use and have

implemented turnkey manufacturing process for snbstamitially all of our fragrance prodncts in

22 which we now rely on our thirdparty mauufacturers for certain supply chain functions that we

previously handled ourselves such as component arid materials planning purchasing and

warehousing Implementing this turnkev manufacturing process
has and will continue to require

substantial dedication of management resources Onr business prospects results of operations

financial condition or cash flows could be materially adversely
affected if we experience any supply

chain disruptions caused by our implementation of this turnkey manufacturing process or other

supply chain projects or if our manufacturers or component snppliers were to experience problems

with product quality credit or liquidity issues or disruptions or delays in the manufacturing process

or delivery of the finished products or the raw materials or components used to iiiake such products

The loss of or disruption in our distribution facilities may have material adverse effect on

our business

We currently have one distribution facility in the United States and use third-party fulfillment

center in France primarily for European distribution These facilities house large portion of our

inventory Any loss of or damage to these facilities or the inventory stored in these facilities could

adversely affect our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

Our business is subject to regulation in the United States and internationally

The manufacturing distribution formulation packaging and advertising of our products and

those we distribute are subject to numerous federal state and
foreign governmental regulations

The

number of laws and regulations that are being enacted or proposed by state federal and

international governments and authorities are increasing Compliance with these
regulations is

difficult amid expensive and may require reformulation or discontinuation of certain of our products

If we fail to adhere or are alleged to have failed to adhere to any applicable federal state or foreign

laws or regulations or if such laws or regulations negatively affect sales of our products our

business prospects results of operation financial condition or cash flows may be adversely affected

In addition our futtmre results could he adversel affected by changes in applicable federal state and



foreign laws arid regulations or the interpretal ion or enforcement thereof including those relating to

product or ingredient registrations product lialuliiv trade roles and customs regulations

intellectual property consumer laws piiva laws and product ingredients as well as accounting
standards and taxation requirements including taxrate changes new tax laws and revised tax law

interpretations

We may be adversely affected by domestic and international economic conditions and other

events that impact consumer confidence and demand

We believe that consumer spending oil beauty lrotlt1ts is influenced by general economic

conditions and the availability of discretionary income U.S or internal tonal general economic

downturns including periods of inflation or high gasoline pries Jr declining coiisinner confidence

may affect consumer lrliasmg patterns and result iii reduced net sales to our custoiiiers Sudden

disruptions in business conditions due to cvents suc li as terrorist attacks diseases Jr natural

disasters may have short term or soineti unes longterni adverse unpact on consumer spending In

addition any reductions in travel or increases iii restrictions on travelers ability to transport our

products on airplanes due to general eeollouni downturns diseases increased security levels acts of

war or terrorism could result in material decline iii the net sales and profitability of our travel

retail business

The beauty industry is highly competitive and if we cannot effectively compete our business

and results of operations will suffer

The beauty industry is highly comnpetinve and amm change rapidly due to consnmuer preferences

and industry trends Competition in tile beauty nidnstrv is based on brand strength pricing and

assortment of products innovation perceived Inc product availability and order fulfillment

service to the consumer promotional ativit ies advertising special events new product
ilmtrolnctions and other activities Also the trend toward eonsohidaiion in the retail trade

particularly in developed mimarkets smnhu as the hiTimited States and Western Europe has resulted iii us

becoming increasingly dependent on ke retailers imieluiding largeformat retailers who have

increased their bargaining strength We compete priunauil with global prestige beauty companies

some If whom have
greater resources than we have muid brands with

greater name recognition and

consumer loyalty than our brands Our success depends on our products appeal to broad range of

consumers whose preferences camnuot he
predicted with uertaintv aimd are subject to change and on

our ability to anticipate and
mespommd imm tit nelv amid cost effective maimer to market trends through

product innovations and puodnct line extensions \\e muua incur expenses
iii connection with product

development marketing and
advertising that are hot simlseqmmeultlv supported by sufficient level of

sales which conlrl
negatively

affect our results If operations These
competitive factors as well as

new product risks could have an adverse effect omi our busiumess prospels results If operations
financial condition or cash flows

Our business
strategy depends upon our ability to acquire or license additional brands or

secure additional distribution arrangements and obtain the required financing for these

agreements and arrangements

Our business strategy contemplates the eontimuued growth of our portfolio of owned licensed

and distributed brands Our future expansion througlm acquisitions new product licenses or new

product distribution arrangements if any will depend upon our ability to identify suitable brands to

acquire license or distribute and our ability to obtain the
required financing for these acquisitions

licenses or distribution arrangements and thus depends on the
capital resources ammd working capital

available to us We may not be able to identify negotiate finance or consumnmnate such acquisitions

licenses or arrangements or the associated working capital requirements on terms acceptable to us
or at all which could hinder our ability to increase revenues and build our business



The success of our business depends in part on the demand for celebrity beauty products

We have license agreements to inatiufacture market and listrilute number of celebrity

beauty products including those of Elizabeth Taylor Britney Spears Mariah Carey and Usher In

fiscal 2010 we derived approxiinatel 22% of our net sales from these celebrity beauiv products

The deniand for these products is to some extent dependent on the appeal to consumers of the

particular celebrity and the celebritys reputation To the extent that the celebrity fragrance category

or particular celebrity ceases to be appealing to consumers or eelebritys reputation is adversely

affected sales of the related products and the value of the brands can decrease materially In

addition under certain circumstances lower net sales may shorten the duration of time applicable

license agreement

We may not be able to successfully and cost-effectively integrate acquired businesses or new

brands

Acquisitions entail numerous integration
risks and impose costs on its that could materially and

adversely affect our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

including

difficulties in assimilating acquired operations products or brands including disruptions to

our operations or the unavailability of key employees from acquired businesses

diversiou of managements attention from our core business

adverse effects on exisling
business relatiollstlil5

with suppliers and customers

incurrermce or assumption of additional debt and liabilities and

incurrence of significant
amortization expenses

related to intangible assets and the

potential impairment of acquired assets

Our business could be adversely affected if we are unable to successfully protect our

intellectual property rights

The market for our products depends to significant extent upon the value associated with the

tradeniarks and trade names that we own or license We own or have licenses or other rights to use

the material trademark amid trade name rights used in connection with the packaging marketing

and distribution of our major owned aiid licensed products both in tIme U.S and in other countries

where such products are principally sold

Although mnost of our bramicl names are registered in the J.S and imm certain foreigmi couittries in

which we operate we may not be successful in asserting
trademark or trade name protection

In

addition the laws of certain foreign countries may not protect our imitelleetual proper rights to the

same extent as the laws of the U.S The costs required to protect our trademarks and trade names

may be substantial We also cannot assure that the owners of the trademarks that we license can or

will successfully maintain their intellectual property rights or that we will be able to comply with the

terms set forth in tIme applicable license agreenments including aiuomig
other things payment of

minimum royalties minimum marketing expenses
and maintenance of certain levels of sales

If other parties infringe on our intellectual property rights or the intellectual property rights

that we license the value of our brands in the mnarketplace may he diluted In addition any

infringement of our intellectual
property rights

would also likely result in comnmitment of our time

and resources to protect
these rights through litigation or otherwise We

mmiay infringe on others

intellectual property rights which mnav result in reduction in sates or profitability and

commitment of our time and resources to defend through litigatioui or otherwise One or more

adverse judgments with
respect

to these intellectual property rights
could negatively impact our

ability to compete and could mumaterially adversely affect our business prospects results of

operations financial condition or cash flows



If our intangible assets such as trademarks and goodwill become impaired we may be

required to record significant non-cash charge to earnings which would negatively impact
our results of operations

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the limited States we review our intangible

assets including our trademarks licenses and goodwill for impairment annually iii the fourth

qnarter
of each fiscal year or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the

carrying value of our intangible assets may not be fully recoverable The
carrying value of our

intangible assets may not be recoverable due to factors such as decline in our stock price and

market capitalization reduced estimates of future cash flows including those associated with the

specific brands to which
intangibles relate or slower growth rates in our industry Estimates of

future cash flows are based on long-term financial outlook of our operations and the specific

brands to which the intangible assets relate However actual lerfor11la1lc in tile near-term or long-

term could be materially different from these forecasts which could impact future estimates and the

recorded value of the intangibles For example significant sustained decline in our stock
price and

market capitalization may result ill impairment of certain of our illtangible assets including

goodwill and significant charge to earnings in our financial statements during the
period in which

an impairment is determined to exist Ally such
inllairment charge could materially reduce our

results of operatiomis

We are subject to risks relatcd to our international operations

We
operate global basis with sales in approximately 100 countries Approximately 39% of

our fiscal 2010 net sales were generated outside of the tJnited States Our international operations

could be adversely affected by

import arid
export

license requirements
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trade restrictions

changes iii tariffs and taxes

restrictions on repatriating foreign profits back to the LTnited States

changes in or our nnfamiliarity with foreign laws and
regulations including those related

to product registratioml ingredients and labeling

difficulties in staffing and managing internatiollal operations and

changes in social political legal aimd other conditions

Our quarterly results of operations fluctuate duc to seasonality and other factors and we

may not have sufficient liquidity to meet our seasonal working capital requirements

We
generate significant portion of our income iii the first half of our fiscal year as result

of higher sales in anticipatiou of the holiday season Similarly our working capital needs are greater

during the first half of the fiscal year We Inay experience variability in net sales and net income on

quarterly basis as result of
variety of factors includiimg new product Innovations and launches

the size and timing of customer orders and additions or losses of brammd distribimtion rights If we
were to experience significant shortfall in sales or internally generated furmds we may not have

sufficient liquidity to fund our husimmess

Our level of debt and debt service obligations and the restrictive covenants in our revolving
credit facility and our indenture for our 734% senior subordinated notes may reduce our

operating and financial flexibility and could adversely affect our business and growth

prospects

At June 30 2010 we had total debt of approximately $273 million which primarily includes

$220 million in aggregate principal aimmount outstammding of our 7% senior subordinated notes



and $59 million outstanding tinder our revolving bank credit facility both of whicb have

requirements that may limit our operating and financial flexibility Our indebtedness could

adversely impact our business prospects results of operations financial conditioii or cash flows by

increasing our vulnerability to geiieral adverse economic and industry conditions arid restricting our

ability to consuniniate acquisitioiis or fruid working capital capital expenditures and other general

corporate requirements

Specifically our revolving credit facility and our indenture for our j/o/i senior subordinated

notes limit or otherwise affect our ability to among other things

incur additional debt

pay dividends or make other restricted payments

create or permit certain liens other than customary anti ordinary liens

sell assets other than in the ordinary course of our business

invest in other entities or businesses and

consolidate or tuerge with or into other companies or sell all or substantially all of our

assets

These restrictions could linjit oar ability to finance our future operations or capital needs make

acquisitioiis or pursue available business opportunities Our revolving credit facility also requires us

to maintain specified amounts of borrowing capacity or maintain debt service coverage ratio Our

ability to meet these conditions and our ability to service our debt obligations will depend upon our

future operating performance which can be affected by general economic financial competitive

legislative regulatory business and other factors beyond our conirol If our actual results deviate

26 significantly
front our projections we may not be able to service our debt or remain in compliance

with the conditions contained in our revolving credit facility and we would not be allowed to borrow

under the revolving credit facility
If we were iiot able to borrow under our revolving credit facility

we would he required to develop an alternative source of liquidity We cannot assure von that we

could obtain replacement financing on favorable teriiis or at all

default under our revolving credit facility could also result in default uiider our indenture

for our 7Vs% senior subordinated notes Upon ihe occurrence of au event of default under our

indenture all amounts outstanding under our other indebtedness may he declared to be immediately

due and payable If we were unable to repay amounts due on our revolving credit facihtv the

lenders would have the right to proceed against the collateral granted to theni to secure that debt

Our success depends in part on the quality efficacy and safety of our products

Our success depends in part on the quality efficacy and safety
of our products If our products

are found to be defective or unsafe or if they otherwise fail to meet our custoniers standards our

relationships with custoiuers or consunmers could suffer the appeal of one or more of our brands

could be diminished and we could lose sales amid/or become subject to liabilily claims any of which

could have material adverse effect on our business prospects results of operations financial

condition or cash flows

Our success depends upon the retention and availability of key personnel and the succession

of senior management

Our success largely depends on the performance of our muanagemeni team arid other key

personnel Our future operations
could be harmed if we are unable to attract and retain talented

highly qualified senior executives and other key personnel In addition if we are tmable to effectively

provide for the succession of senior management including our chief executive officer our business

prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows may he materially adversely

affected



The market price of our common stock may fluctuate as result of variety of factors

The market
price

of our onunoii stock con Id fi uct late significantly iii
response to various

factors inan which are beyond our rout rol including

volatility in the financial markets

actual or anticipated variations iii our quarterly or annual financial results

announcements or significant devlopinents with respect to beauty products or the beauty

industry in general

general economic aflI 10111 ical comiuhujoims

governmental policies anl iegiilatioiis aIll

financial analyst and
rating agency actions

We are subject to risks associated with implementing managing and maintaining global

information systems

We have information systeunis that suport our business processes including marketing sales

order processing distribution finance and
intracomnpanv communications throughout the world We

have recently completed tIle imnplemnentatiomi of aim Oracle financial accounting order
processing

and

ordertocash systems This implenientanoim reqlirel substantial investment and dedication of

management resources All of our global iimforimiatioim svslenis are susceptible to outages due to fire

floods tornadoes hurricaimes o\\wm loss telecoinmmiunications failures and similar events Despite

the implemnentatiomi of network security measures our systems may also be vulnerable to computer
viruses aiid similar disruptions from iumiaut Imorized

tiumipering Our business lrospets results of

operations financial cojidit ton or cash fiow IIIa\ be adversely affected by the occurrence of these or
27

other events that could disrupt or damage our inforniation syslemris any failure to properly maintain

or upgrade our information systems or aicc defect or error in tile iniplementation of the Oracle

financial accounting arid order
processing systeni

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM PROPERTIES

United Siaies Our corporate headquarters are located iii Miramar Florida where we lease

approximately 35.000 square hct of general of bce space The lease
expires

iii May 2011 Our U.S
fulfillment

operations are conducted in omim Roanoke \/irgmia listribution facility that consists of

approximately 400000 square feet and is leased through September 2013 We also lease

76000square fool warehouse iii Roanoke to coordinate returns processing that is leased through

December 2011 and ii l80000square foot warehouse in Roanoke that is leased through

February 2012 From time to time we also ease additional temporary warehouse facilities to handle

inventory overflow We lease 62.000
s11m1re

eet of general office
space

for our supply chain

information systems and finance operations iii Stamford Connecticut which will be reduced to

approxuiiately 5000 square feet in the
spring

of 2011 tinder lease that
expires

October 2021
We lease approximately 49.500 square feet of general offices primarily for our marketing operations

in New York City under lease that
exllires

iii October 2017 We also lease small offices in

Bentonville Arkansas and Minneapolis .Minmmesota

Internalional Our international o1eratiomis are headquartered in offices in Geneva
Switzerland that are leased through 2017 We also lease sales offices in Australia Canada China
Denmark France Italy Korea New Zealand Puerto Rico Singapore South Africa Spain Taiwan
and the mted Kingdom and small list ribtit ion facility in Puerto Rico \Ve own small
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manufacturing and distributiou facility in South Africa primarily to manufacture aud distribute

local requiremeuts of our products

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are party to number of legal actions proceedings and claims While any action

proceeding or claim contains an element of uncertainty and it is possible that our cash flows and

results of operations in particular quarter or year
could be materially affected by the impact of

such actions proceedings
and claims our management believes that the outcome of such actions

proceedings or claims will not have material adverse effect on our business prospects results of

operations financial condition or cash flows



PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKhOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information Our common stock $.0 par value
per share has been traded on the

NASDAQ Global Select Market tinder the symbol RDEN since January 25 2001 The following

table sets forth the high and low sales
prices

for our common stock as reported by NASDAQ for

each of our fiscal
quarters

from July 2008 through June 30 2010

Quarter Ended High Low

6/30/10 $19.50 $14.35

3/31/10 $19.50 $13.90

12/31/09 $15.90 $10.29

9/30/09 $12.48 7.28

6/30/09 9.54 5.63

3/31/09 $13.60 3.93

12/31/08 $19.80 $10.55

9/30/08 $21.79 $14.34

Holders As of August 16 2010 there were 372 record holders of our common stock The

nmuber of record holders does not include beneficial owners of common stock whose shares are held

in the uames of banks brokers nominees or other fiduciaries

Diridends We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock since we became

beauty products company in 1995 and we currently have no plans to declare dividends on our

common stock in the foreseeable future Any future determination by our board of directors to pay
29

dividends on our common stock will be made only after considering our financial condition results

of operations capital requirements and oilier relevant lactors Additionally our revolving credit

facility and the indenture relating to our 73/4% senior subordinated notes due 2014 restrict our

ability to pay cash dividends based upon our ability to satisfy certain financial covenants including

having certain amount of borrowing capacity and satisfying fixed charge coverage ratio after the

payment of the dividends See Notes and 10 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Peiformance Graph The following pci formnance graph data and table compare the cumulative

total shareholder rd urns including the reinvestment of dividends on our coinnion stock with the

companies iii the Russell 2000 Index and market-weighted index of publicly traded
peer

companies for the five fiscal
years

from July 2005 through June 30 2010

The publicly traded companies in otn peer group are The Estee Lauder Companies Inc

International Flavors and Fragrances Inc Inter Parfums Inc Physicians Formula lIoldiiigs Inc

and Revlon Inc Bare Escentuals Iiic has been removed from the
peer group because it is no longer

publicly-traded company We believe that our peer group is good representation of beauty

companies with similar market
capitalizations channels of distribution and/or products as our

company The graph and table assume than $100 was invested on June 30 2005 in each of the

Russell 2000 Index the peer group and our common stock and that all dividends were reinvested
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COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Elizabeth Arden Inc the Russell 2000 Index

and Peer Group
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Elizabeth Arden Inc Russell 2000 0-- Peer Group

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Elizabeth Arden Inc 76.44 $103.72 64.90 $37.32 62.08

Russell 2000 Index $114.58 $133.41 $111.80 $83.84 $101.85

Peer Group 93.40 $122.76 $107.98 $80.41 $128.50



Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities This table provides infonnation with respect to our

purchases of shares of our common stock $01 par value per share during the three months ended

June 30 2010

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number

of Shares Approximate
Purchased as Dollar Value

Part of that May Yet

Publicly Be Purchased

Total Number Average Announced Under the

of Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or

Period Purchased Per Share Programs Propams2

April 2010 through April 30 2010 16395 $17.81 16395 $32449517

May 2010 through May 31 2010 336405 $17.28 336405 $26634846

June 2010 through June 30 2010 283760 $15.81 283760 $22147393

Totals 636560 $16.64 636560 $22147393

On November 2008 our board of directors authorized its to extend our existing $80 million

stock repurchase program through November 30 2010 The stock repurchase program was set

to expire on November 30 2008 The extension of the stock repurchase program was

announced on November 2008 All shares purchased during the quarter ended June 30 2010

were purchased on the open market

Amounts reflect the remaining dollar value of shares that may be purchased under the stock

repurchase program
described above
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We derived the following selected financial data front our audited consolidated financial

statements The following data should be read in conjunction with Managemeiits Discussion and

Analysis of Fiiiancial Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial

statemelits arid the related notes included elsewhere in this aimual report

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousands except per s/lore

c1ata 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Selected Statement of Operations Jata

Net sales $1103777 $1070225 $1141075 $1127476 $954550

Gross
profit

495.974 433l55 461873 457.679 401594

Income from operations 447931 10335 49.03O 74006 68257

Debt extinguishment charges 82 758

Net income loss 19533 6.163 19901 37334 32794

Selected Per Share Data

Earnings loss per cornirion share

Basic 0.702 0.224 0.71 1.35 1.15e

Diluted 0.682 0.224 0.68 1.30 1.108

Weighted average
number of common shares

Basi 28017 27971 27981 27607 28.628

Diluted 28789 27.971 29303 28826 29818

Other Data

EBITDA9 73.170 36493 73.798 98524 89608

Net cash provided by operatilig activities 113.950 36.986 8.037 58816 65276

Net cash used in investing activities 35.721 31.663 28.588 110.518 24335
Net cash used in provided by financing

32 activities 74337 7.529 53.120 37.584

Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Selected ltalance Sheet Data

Cash 26.881 23.102 26.396 30287 28.466

Inventories 271058 318.535 408563 380.232 269270

orkmg capital 306524 286.011 306.735 298.165 280942

Total assems 843471 884.075 070.734 930175 759903

Short-term debt 59.000 115.000 119.000 97640 40000

Long-term debt inclndmg current period 218699 223911 224.957 225.655 225.951

Shareholders equity 352617 336.778 316.601 320.927 277.847

lor the ear ended June 30 2010 income from operations include 53.9 million of expenses related to imnplenientation

of our Oracle accounting and nrder processing systems ii 51.9 million of restructuring expenses related to our Global

Efficiency Reengineering initiative and iii $1.5 nullion of restructuring expenses that are hot related to our Global

Efficmeiicy Reengineering initiative

For the year
ended June 30 2010 Oracle accounting and order processing systems implementation costs restructuring

expenses and debt extinguishment costs reduced both basic and ful1 diluted earnings ler share by $0.20 and $0.19

respectively

For the ear ended June 30 2009 gross profit
and income from uperatlolis melude costs related to the global licensilig

agreemmmemit
with Liz Claiborne If $18.9 million which did mint require the use If cash in time current period for the Liz

iaiboriu inventory purchased by us at lngher cost prior to the effective date of the license agreement and $4.4 million

$1.0 million in gross profit of Liz Claiborne transition expenses
In addition ilicome from operations mncludes $3.4

million nf expenses related to implementation of our Oracle accuimling and order processing systems ii $3.5 million of

restructuring expenses related to our Global Efficiency Reengineering initiative and iii $1.1 million of restructuring

expenses that are nut related to our Global Efficiency Reengineering initiative

Fir the year ended June 30 2003 Liz Claiborne related expenses Oracle accounting and order processing systems

implementation costs and restructuring expenses reduced basic and full diluted earnings per share $0.70 and $0.69

respectively

For the year ended June 30 2008 gross profit
and income fromim operations include approximately $15.0 million in costs

related to the glnhal licensing agreement with Liz Claiborne including product discontmuation charges In addition

income from operations includes an additional $12.0 million iii Liz Claiborne related costs and $3.0 million of

restructuring expenses including $0.7 milhoii related to our Global Efficiency Reengineering initiative



For the year
ended June 30 2008 Liz Claibonie related costs including product discontinuation charges and

restructuring expenses
reduced basic and

fully
diluted earnings per share by $0.65 and $0.63 respectively

For the year coded June 30 2007 restructuring charges reduced basic and fully diluted earnings per
share by $0.07 and

$0.06 respectively

For the year
ended June 30 2006 restructuring and debt extinguishment charges reduced hasic and fully diluted

earnings per sbare hy $0.05

EBITDA is defined as net income plus the provision br income taxes or net loss less the benefit from income taxes plus

interest expense plus depreciation and amortization expense EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to

operating income loss or iiet income loss as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

as measure of our operating perforniance or to net cash provided by operating investing and financing activities as

detenniued in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles or as measure of our ability to meet cash

needs We believe that EIIITDA is measure commonly reported and widely used by investors and other interested

parties as measure of companys operating performance and debt servicing ability
because it assists in comparing

perfonnance on consistent basis without regard to capital structure particularly when acquisitions are involved

depreciation and amortization or non-operating factors such as historical cost Accordingly as result of our capital

structure we believe EBITDA is relevant nmeasure This information has been disclosed here to permit more complete

comparative analysis of our operating performance relative to other companies and of our debt servicing ability EBITDA

may not however le comparable in all instances to tither similar types of measures

In addition EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool including the fact that

it does not reflect our cash expenditures future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments

it does nut reflect the significant interest expense or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal

payments on our debt

it does not reflect any cash income taxes that we may be required to pay and

although depreciation and amortization are noim-cash charges the assets being depreciated and amortized will often

have to be replaced in the future arid tbese measures do not reflect any cash requirements fur such replacements

The following is reconciliation of net income loss as determined in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles to EBITDA

Year Endcd June 30

4rnuunts in thunsunds 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Net inconie loss .................. $19533 6163 $19901 $37334 $32794

Provision for benefit from incotne

taxes ...................... 3293 8316 1534 7474 11281

Interest expense ............... 21885 24814 27595 29198 23424

Depreciation related to cost of goods

sold ....................... 5040 4416 4245 3640 2478

Depreciation
and amortization .... 23419 21742 20523 20878 19631

EBITDA ......................... 3170 $364933m 73798t $98524d $89608fr

Includes $3.9 million related to the implementation of our Oracle acconnting and order

processing systems $3.4 million of restructuring charges and $0.1 million of debt

extinguishment costs

Includes $23.3 million of costs related to the global licensing agreement with Liz Claiborne

$18.9 million of which did not require the use of cash in the current period $4.6 million of

restructuring charges and $3.4 million related to the implementation of our Oracle accounting

and order processing systems

Includes $27.0 million of costs related to the global licensing agreement with Liz Claiborne and

$3.0 million of restructuring charges

Includes $2.1 million of restructuring charges

Includes $1.2 million of restructuring charges and $0.8 million of debt extinguishment charges



ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANt ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in
conj

unction with the consolidated

financial statements and the accompanying notes which appear elsewhere in this document

Overview

We are global prestige beauty products company with an extensive lortolio of prestige

fragrance skin care and cosmetics brands Our branded prolucts include the Elizabeth Arden

fragrances Red Door Elizabeth 4rden 5th Atenne Elizabeth Arden green tea and Pretty Elizabeth

Arden the Elizabeth Arden skin care brajids Ceratnide Eight Cream Intervene and

PREVAGE and the Elizabeth Arderi branded lipstick fouiidation and other color cosmetics

products Our prestige fragrance portfolio also includes the following celebrity lifestyle and designer

fragrances

Celebrity Fragrances The fragrance brands of Briinev Spears Elizabeth

Taylor Mariah Carey and Usher

Lifestyle Fragrances Curve Gioigio Beverly hills PS Fine Cologne and White

Shoulders

Designer Fragrances Juicy Couture Kate Spale Ve York John Varvatos

Rocauear /1 Iberta Ferret Ii Ilalston Geoffrey Beetie

Badgley itJischka lfred Sung Bob 4Jackie aiid Lucky

In addition to our owned and hiceiised fragrance brands we lisiribule approximately 300
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additional prestige fragrance brands primarily in the Elniled Stales through distribution agreements

and other purchasing arrangements

In fiscal 2010 we introduced number of new Elizabeth Arden branded products including

PREVA GE Day SPF 30 new Cerainide Ultra Moisture Cream and Lotion and flanker
fragrances

for our classic Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue and Elizabeth 4ileu
green tea fragrances We will

continue to focus on our core Elizabeth Ardemi branded skin care arid color cosmetics products by

investing in new product innovation and technologies and increased advertising In addition during

fiscal 2010 we launched number of fragrances including new Juicy Couture fragrance Couture

couture as well as new fragrances uiider our Britney Spears Mariah Carey Elizabeth Taylor

Alberta Ferretti Halston aiid Usher licenses

Our business
strategy

is to increase net sales
operating margins anI

earnings by increasing

the sales of the Elizabeth 4rden branch through leveraging the global awareness of the Elizabeth

Arden brand iiame targeting fastgrowing geographical
markets and focusing on our skin care

expertise
and classic products such as our Eight

Hour Crean 7eramide skin care pmoducts and Red

Door fragrance increasing the sales of our prestige fragramice portfolio internationally

particularly in tile large European fragrance market and through licensimig opportunities and

acquisitions expanding tile prestige fragrance category at mass retail customers in North

America continuing to expand operating margins working capital efficiency and return on

invested capital
and

capitalizing on the growth potential
of our global brands by focusing on

both
organic growth opportunities as well as those achieved through new product innovation

We manage our business by evaluating net sales gross margins EBITDA as defined in Note

under Item Selected Financial Data EBITDA niargin segment profit and working capital

utilization including monitoring our levels of inventory accounts receivable operating cash flow

and return on invested capital We encounter variety of chahienges that may affect our business

and should be considered as described in heiii Risk Factoms and in the section Managements
Discussion arid Analysis of Financial Condition amid Results of Operations Forward-Looking

Information and Factors That May Affect Future Result



Effective june 2008 we became he exclusive global licensee for the manufacture

distribution marketing and sale of the Liz ilaiborne fragrance
lrands iiiiiier longtern license

agreement with Liz Glaiborne Inc and certain of its affiliates The Liz Claiborne fragrance portfolio

includes the Juicy Couture Curve uud Lucky fragrances In connection with the Liz Claiborne

license agreement we also assnmed license for the Usher celebrity fragrances The Liz Claiborne

licensing arrangement enabled us to grow our market share in our Nortli America Fragrance

segment ii increase our gross margins in our North America Fragrance segment by converting

existing mass custonier sales from distribution margins to owned/licensed margins and iii add

sales volume to onr International segment particularly with the Juicy Couture fragrance brand

In fiscal 2009 we incurred transition expenses relating to the Liz Claiborne license agreement

of approximately $4.4 million before taxes in addition our gross margins for the first half of fiscal

2009 were impacted by expenses
of approximately $18.9 million which did not require the use of

cash iii the current period before taxes relating to Liz Claiborne inventory that we purchased at

higher cost prior to the effective late of the license agreement In fiscal 2008 we incurred expenses

relaled to the Liz Claihorne transaction of $19.6 million before taxes In addition in connection

with this license we discontinued certain brands and products resulting in product discontinuation

charge iii fiscal 2008 of $7.4 million before taxes

In fiscal 2007 we commenced comprehensive review of our global business processes to

reengineer our extended supply chain distribution logistics and transaction processing systems We

call this initiative our Global Efficiency He-engineering initiative or often just the Initiative In May

2008 we ammounced an acceleration of the reengineering of our extended supply chain functions as

well as the realignment of oilier parts of our organization to better support our new business

1rocesses

In connection with this initiative we completed the first phase of the implementation of an 35

Oracle financial accounting system general ledger
and accounts payable in July 2009 and we

completed the reInaining portion of tIme financial accounting system as well as an order processing

system in April 2010 Both phases of this significant project were completed in accordance with our

projected timeline and budget The system is intended to improve key transaction
processes

and

accommodate the anticipated growt Ii of our business We expect
this infrastructnre investment to

simplify our transaction processing by utilizing common platfonn to centralize our primary global

transaction processing
functions

As result of the acceleration of the re-engineering of our extended supply chain functions and

the implementation of the Oracle financial acconnting amid order processing system and the

migration to shared services transaction processing
model we implertiented restructuring plan

that resulted in
restructuring

arid onetinie expenses including severance relocation recruiting and

temporary staffiiig expenditures Snbstantiallv all of these expenses were incurred in fiscal
years

2009 and 2010 From inceptiomi through June 30 2010 we have incurred total of $13.4 million

before taxes which includes $7.3 million related to our Oracle system implementation and $6.1

million for initiativerelated restrncturing are anticipating that an additional $0.6 million will

he incurred in the first half of fiscal year 2011 As result expenses associated with the Initiative

will total approximately $14.0 million before taxes consistent with our original projection of $12

million to $14 milliomi

In fiscal 2010 gross margins improved as compared to tile prior
fiscal

year by approximately

440 basis points Approximately 190 basis pomts of this improvement was due to the absence of

$19.9 million in costs that reduced our gross margin in fiscal 2009 related to Liz Claiborne

inventory purchased at higher cost prior to the mime 2008 effective date of the license agreement

and transition expenses As resnlt of the Initiative amid other activities gross muargimi
also improved

by an additional 250 basis points at the end of fiscal 2010 as compared to the prior
fiscal year We

expect our fiscal 2011
gross muargins to improve ami additional 225 to 250 basis points over our fiscal

2010 gross margimi We expect to use portion
of this anticipated margimi improvement to support

organic growth of our key bramids and drive improved profitability



Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S generally

accepted acconnting principles requires us to iiiake estimates and assumptions that affect the

amounts of assets liabilities revenues and
expenses reported in those consolidated financial

statements We base our estimates on historical experience and other factors that we believe are

most likely to occur Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates which are

recorded in the period in which they become known Actual results could differ front those estimates

If these changes result in material impact to the consolidated financial statenients their impact is

disclosed in Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition arid Results of

Operations and/or in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements The disclosures below

also note situations in which it is reasonably likely that future financial results could be affected by

changes in these estimates and assumptions The term reasonably likely refers to an occurrence

that is mnore than remote bul less than probable in the judgment of management

Our most critical accounting policies and estimates are described in detail below See Note to

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements General Inforniation and Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies for discussion of these and other accounting polices

Accounting for Acquisitions and Intangible Assets Under the accounting for business

combinations consideration paid in an acquisition is allocated to the underlying net assets based on

their respective estimated fair vahmes The excess of the consideration paid at the acquisition date

over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill

The judgments made in deterimumiiug the estimated fair value and expected useful lives assigned

to each class of assets aiid liabilities acquired can significantly affect net income For examnple
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different classes of assets will have useful lives that differ aiid the useful life of property plant and

equipment acquired will differ substantially froiii the useful life of brand licenses and trademarks

Consequently to the extent longer-lived asset is ascribed greater value tinder the purchase method

thaii shorterlived asset net income iii given period may he higher

Determining the fair value of certain assets and liabilities acquired is judgmental in nature and

often involves the misc of significant estiimiates and assumptions One of die areas that requires more

judgnient is determining the fair value amid useful life of
intangible assets lmi this process we often

obtain the assistance of third
party valuatiomi firiiis for certain intangible assets Because the fair

value and the estimated useful life of an intangible asset is subjective estimate it is reasonably

likely that circumnstammces may cause the estimate to change For example if we discontinue or

experience
decline in tIme profitability of one or more of our brands the value of the intangible

assets associated with those brands or their useful lives may decline or certain intangible assets

such as the Elizabeth Arden brand trademarks may no longer be classified as an indefinite-lived

asset which could result in additional charges to net income

Our
intangible assets consist of exclusive brand licenses trademarks and other intellectual

property customer relationships and lists non-compete agreemnents and goodwill The value of these

assets is exposed to future adverse changes if we experience declines in
operating results or

experience significant negative industry or economic trends We have deterniined that the Elizabeth

Arden tradenmarks have indefinite useful lives as cash flows froni the use of the trademarks are

expected to be generated indefinitely Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives such as our

Elizabeth Arden trademarks are not amortized but rather tested for
immmpairment at least annually

We typically perform our annual impairmmment test during the fourth
quarter of our fiscal year or

more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of goodwill may
not fully be recoverable There is two step process

for impairment testing of goodwill The first

step used to identify potential impairnient compares the fair value of reporting unit with its

carrying amount including goodwill The secomid step if necessary umeasures the aniount of the

impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of the
goodwill aiid intangible assets to their



respective earrvmg values if an inipairment is ileutilieI tile carrying value of the asset is adjusted

to estimated fair value

During the
quarter

etided lime 30 2010 we completed our annuai impairment testing of the

Elizabeth Arden trademarks with tile assistance of tlurd
party

valuation firm During the quarter

ended June 30 2010 we also completed our annual impairment testing of goodwili In assessing the

lair value of these assets we considered the income approach anti market approach Under the

income approach the fair value is based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows Under

the market approach the fair value is based on quoted market prices and the number of shares

outstanding of our common stock The analysis and assessments of these assets and goodwill

indicated that no impairment adjustment was required as the estimated fair value exceeded the

recorded carrying value hypothetical 10% decrease to the fair value of our Elizabeth Arden

trademarks or hypothetical 1% increase in die discount rate used to estimate fair value would not

result in an impairment of our Elizabeth Arden trademarks hypothetical 10% decrease in the fair

value of our iNortli America Fragrance reporting unit would not result in an impairment of our

goodwill

Due to the ongoing uneertai utv in capital timarket conditious we will continue to monitor and

evaluate the expected future cash flows of our reporting units and the long-term trends of our

market ea1italization for the purposes of assessiug the carrying value of our goodwill anti indefinite

lived Elizabeth Ardemi trademarks other trademarks and intangible assets If market arid economic

conditions deteriorate this could increase the likelihood of future immaterial imoncash impairment

charges to our results of operations
related to our goodwill indefinitelived Elizabeth Arden

trademarks or other trademarks amid intangible assets

Depreciation and Amortization lepreeiatiomm
and amortization is provided over the estimated

useful lives of the assets using lie straight
line inetluid Periodically we review the lives assigned to 37

our longlived assets and aljmIst the lives as circumstances dictate Because estimated useful life is

subjective estimate it is reasomiahly likely that circumstances may cause the estimate to change For

example if we experience significant declines in net sales in certain channels of distribution it could

affect tile estimated useful life If eertaui of our longlived assets such as counters or trade fixtures

which could result in mhlitiotial charges to net income

LongLimed Assets We review for the impairniemit
of longlived assets to he held and used

whenever events or changes iii circumstances indicate that tIme
carrying amount of such assets niay

not be fully recoverable Measurement of an mnpairnient
loss is based on the fair value of the asset

compared to its carrying value Au inmpainnemmt
loss is recognized to the extent the carrying amount

If tile asset exceeds its estilimatel fair value Because the fair value is subjective estimate it is

reasonably likely that ciremnustances may cause the estimate to change The same circumstances that

could affect the estimated useful life of lollg-livel asset as discussed above could cause us to

change our estimate of the fair value of that asset which could result in additional charges to net

income We did not record any adjmistmnemits
ill fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 Long-lived assets to be

disposed of are reported at tIme lower of
carrvimmg amount or fair value less costs to sell

Revenae Recognition Sales are recognized when title and risk of loss transfers to the customer

the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectibility of the resulting receivable is probable Sales

are recorded net of estimated returns markdowns and other allowances The provision for sales

returns and markdowns represents managements estimate of future returns and markdowns based

on historical experience amid commsiderimmg current external factors and market conditions

Allowances for Sales Retarns and Markdonns As is customary in the
prestige beauty business

we grant certain of our customers primarily North American prestige department stores and

specialty beauty stores subject to our authorization and approval the right to either return product

for credit against amounts previously billed or to receive markdown allowance Upon sale to such

customers we record provision for product returns and markdowns estimated based on our level of

sales historical and projected experience with product returns and markdowns in each of our



business segments and with
respect to each of our product types current economic trends and

changes in customer demand and customer uiix \\ make detailed estimates at the segment

product and customer level which are then aggregated to arrive at consolidated provision for

product returns and markdowns and are reviewcd periodically as facts and circumstances warrant

Such provisions and markdown allowances arc recorded as reduction of net sales Because there is

considerable judgment used in ealuating the allowance for returns anti markduwns it is reasonably

likely that actual experience will differ froni our estimates If for example customer demand for our

products is lower than estimated or proportionateh greater amount of sales is made to prestige

department stores and/or specialty beauty stores additional provisions for returns or markdowns

may be required resulting in charge to income in the period in which the determination was made

Similarly if customer demand for our products is higher than estimated reduction of our

provision for returns or markdowmis ma hc required resulting in an increase to income in the period

in which tile determination was made As percentage
of

gross sales our expense for returns and

markdowns was 9.2% 8.1% and 7.0% for the fiscal years eiiding June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively hypothetical 5% change in the value of our allowance for sales returns and

markdowns as of tune 30 2010 oubl result iii 51 .1 iiiillioii change to net income

Allowances for DonbtJitl Accounts Receirable We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts

to cover uncollectible accounts receivable and we evaluate our accounts receivable to determine if

they will ultimately be collected This evahmatioii includes significant judgments and estimates

including an analysis of receivables aging and custouter-hy-eustomer review for large accounts It

is reasonably likely that actual experience will differ front our estiiiiates which may result in an

increase or decrease in the allowance for douhtful accounts If for exautple the financial condition

of our customers deteriorates resulting in an impairment of their ability to pay additional

allowances may be required resulting in charge to income in die period iii which the

deterniimiation was made hypothetical 5% change in tIme value of our allowance for doubtful

accounts receivable as of Jo tic 30 2010 would result in 50.3 million change to net income

Provisions for Inventory Obsolescence We record
provision

for estimated ohsolescence and

shrinkage of inventory Our estiniates consider the cost of inventory forecasted demand the

estimated market value the shelf life of the inventory amid our historical experience Because of the

subjective nature of this estimate it is reasomiald\ likel that circumstances may cause the estimate

to change If for example demand for our products declines or if we decide to discontinue certain

products we may need to increase our provisiomi
for uivciitorv obsolescence which would result in

additional charges to net income In pothctical 5% change in the value of our provision for

inventory obsolescence as of June 30 201 would result in $1 million change to net iiicome

Hedge Contracts We have designated each qualifing foreign currency contract we have

entered into as cash flow hedge Unrealized gains or losses net of taxes associated with these

contracts are included in accuimiulated other coumprehensi income omi the balamice sheet Gains amid

losses will onl be recognized iii earnings in tIme period iii which the forecasted transaction affects

earnings

Share-Based Compensation All share-based
paymnemils

to emplo\ ees including the
grants

of

employee stock options are recognized in the consolidated financial statements based omi their fair

values bitt only to the extent that vesting is considered probable Compensatiomi cost for awards that

vest will not be reversed if time awards expire without beimmg exercised The fair value of stock options

is determined using the Black-Schmoles option-pricing model The fair value of the marketbased

restricted stock award is determined using Monte Carlo simnulaliomi model and the fair value of all

other restricted stock awards is based ott the closing price of our couiuiomi stock omi the date of grant

Compensation costs for awards are amortized using the straight -line method Option pricing model

input assumiiptions such as expected ternm expected volatihit amid risk-free interest rate impact the

fair value estimate Further the forfeiture rate impacts tile amount of
aggregate compensation

These assumptions are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgnment to develop

When estimating
fair value sommie of the assmnuptiomms are based on or determuined from external data



and other assuJllptions may he lerived lroiii our historical experieiice wit Ii sharebased

arrangements The
appropriate weight to piace oil historical experience

is matter of judgment

based on relevant facts and circunistances

We rely on our Instorical experience all postvested ternhinatiori activity to provide data for

estimating our expeCtel term for use iii deternining the fair value of our stock options \Ve currently

estimate our stock volatility by consiiering mr historical stock volatility experience
and other key

factors The riskfree interest rate is the implied yield currently available on U.s Treasury zero

coupon issues with remaining term equal to the expected terni used as the input to tile Black

Scholes model We estimate forfeitures using our historical experience Our estimates of forfeitures

will he adjusted over the requisite
service period lased OIl tile extent to which actual forfeitures

differ or are expected to differ from their estnnates Because of tIle significant aiiiouiit of judgment

used in these calculations ii is reasonably likely that circinnstances may cause the estimate to

change If for example actual forfeit ures are lower than our estimate adlitiollal charges to net

iflColfle max be requnred

Income Totes hid UaInzlio Reseices valuation allowance iuiav he reluIirel to reduce

deferred tax assets to the iunouuit that is mo likely iliaui not to he realized \\e consuu ler projected

luture taxable income and ongoing tax plamuuing strategies in assessing potential valuatioii

allowance Iii the event we letermimille that we may not he able to realize all or part
ol our deferred

tax asset in the future or that new estimates indicate that previously recorde valuation allowance

is no longer requirel au adjusilnent to tIme lef erred lax asset would likely he Imarged or credited to

net income in die periol iii which such letennilmatioli was mnale

recognize iii our consolidated financial statemeiits the impact of ta position
ii it is more

likely thaum not that such position
will he sustained on audit basel oil its tecliuiical merits \Vlmile we

believe that our assessmImeumts of whether our tax positions are more likely thamu not to he sustained are

reasonable each assessment is subjective and
requires

the use of sigumificant jultlgnielits As result

one or more of such assessments may prove ultimately to be incorrect which couihl result iii

change to 1111 iuucomne See ote 12 to the ots to Consolidated luiammcial Siateumuemuts

Foreign Currency Contracts

\\e operate in several foreign countries wluiclu
exposes us to market risk assOiaiel with hreigli

curreiicv exchange rate fluictiiatiouis Our risk Illamlagemneni policy is to cuter into ash flow hedges to

reduce portion
of the exposure of our foreign subsidiaries revellumes to Iluictuatioiis iii currency

rates using foreign currency lorward contracts We also enter into cash flow llelges for portioll of

our forecasted inventory ltmrchiuuses to reduce the exposure of our Camuadiami amid Australian

suhsidiaries cost of sales to stall luctumatioi is Additionally when aplrolriate we liter iiito and

settle foreign currency contracts to reduce iii exposure of 0111 hneign subsidiaries halaiice sheets to

fluctuations in curreiicv rates The principal curreumci es hedged are British pouuuuds Eunos Canadian

dollars and Australiami dollars We 10 not enter into derivative financial contracts for speculative or

trading purposes

Chamiges to fair value of tIme foreign currency contracts are recordel as comnponeuit
of

accmnulated other comnpreheiisive incommie loss within stockholders eqliii to the extemmt such

contracts are effective and are recognized iii net sales 01 cost of sales iii the period iii which the

forecasted transaction affects earnings Changes to fair value of ammv comltIats deemed to he

ineffective Would he recognized ill earnimigs imnmumehiatelv There were imo aimuommuits mecomded in fiscal

years 2010 200k or 2008 relating to foreign umrrencv lit racts used to Ilelge forecasted revenues

or forecasted cost of sales resulting fromim hedge inc ffectiveness

When appropriate we also miter into aiiI settle foreign currency omit mats for huiros British

poummmls and Cauiadiaim dollars to reduce exposulle
of our foreign suhsiliaries balance sheets to

fluctuations iii foreign ulrmeuu\ rates Ihese contracts are mused to hedge balance sheet exposure



generally over one month and are settled before the end of the month in which they are entered into

Changes to fair value of the forward contracts are recognized in selling general and administrative

expense in the period in which the contracts expire

The table below summarizes the effect of the pre-tax gain loss from our settled
foreign

currency contracts on the specified line items in our consolidated statements of operations for the

years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousands 2010 2009 2008

Net Sales 766 S14.124 8854
Cost of Sales 662 852 620
Selling general and administrative 1336 3.252 2614

Total
pre-tax gain loss $1440 $18.228 $12088



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following thble
olilpares our lustorical results of oleratiolis iIicIuhilg as perceiitage

of

net sales on corlsolilated basis for the years eIIle1 June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 \InoiIilts in

thousands other thaii percentages Perceiitagis ina 1101 add due to roiiiitliiig

lear Ended June 30

201 2009 2008

Net sales $1103777 100.0% $1 070.22.5 100.0% 1.141.075 100.0%

Cost of sales 602763 54.6 632654 59.1 674.9.7 59.1

Depreciation related to cost of

goods sold 5.040 0.5 4.416 0.4 4.245 0.4

Gross profit 495.074 44.9 433.155 40.5 461.873 40.5

Selling general and almnhisl rat lye

expenses 427 762 38.7 401.073 37.5 392.32

Depreciation and amortization 23.19 2.1 21742 2.0 20.523 1.8

Income from operations
44.793 4.1 10335 1.0 49.03 4.3

Interest expense 21.385 2.0 24814 2.3 27.595 2.4

leht extinguishmeiit charges 82

ncoine loss income before

taxes 22.326 2.1 14.479 1.4 21.435 1.9

Provision for benefit from income

taxes 3.293 0.3 8.316 0.8 1.534 0.1

Net income loss 19.533 1.8 6163 0.6 19.901 1.7

lear Ended Jutie 30

010 2008
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Other data

EBITDA and EBITDA margin1 .. 73.170 6.6% 36.493 3.4% 73.793 6.5%

For definition of EBITlA and recomiciliatioml of 111 imlconie to E131lDA see ote under

Item Selected Financial Data EBlTl1 margin represeilts EBITD divided net sales

Includes $23.3 million of
expenses $18.9 million of which lid not

require
the misc of cash

related to the Liz huibonie license
agreemmielit

Inc to Liz liilrmie umventorv lint was

purchased at higher cost prior to tIle .linie 2008 effective date of the license agreeniemil am1

transition expenses

Includes $27.0 million of expenses relaied to lie iz Claiborne license agreemmielit imicluditig

product djscontinuatiomi charges

At June 30 2010 our operations
were organizel into the following rcportalle segmnemits

North America Fragrance The North Anierica Fragrance segment sells our portlolio of

owned licensed and distributed fragrances to department stores imiass retailers and

distributors in the United States Canada and Puerto Rico This segment also sells our

Elizabeth Arden products iii prestige clepartmiient stores in Canada and Puerto Rico and to

other selected retailers This
segmnen

also includes our direct to consumer iusiiless which is

comprised of our Elizabeth Arden bmanded retail stores and global c-commerce business

International The International segment sells our portfolio of owned and licensed

brands including the Elizabeth Arden products in approximatelY 00 countries outside of

North America through perfumeries boutiques department stores and travel retail outlets

worldwide

Other The Other reportable segment sells our Elizabeth Arden proliiCts iii prestige

department stores in the United States amid through the Red loor beauty salomis winch are

owned and operated by an unrelated third
party

that licenses the Elizabeth Arlen and Red

Door trademarks front its for use in its salons



olnlnellcing .IuI 2010 our operations
will be organized into Iwo reportable seglilents

North America am1 hitermiational lime
portioll

of our iusiness
operations

flint sells our Elizabeth

Anien products iii prestige departmnemit stores in the l1Jnited States amid through tile Red ioor beauty

salons has been comisolidated with our North America Fragrance segment 10 create the North

America segnielli

Segmneill 1roht loss excludes depieciation and alimortizatiojl interest eXpelise
kilt

extinguisiiinent charges consolidation and elinlimiatioIl adjustments and nimallocateol cor1mormmte

expeimses
which are shown in tile table below reconcilnig segment profit loss to consolidated net

income loss before inconle taxes Included in llllaiiocateI corporate ex1enses are employee

incelitive costs ii reslrlmcturnmg charges iii costs related to time Initiative and iv costs relalel 10

the iz Claiborne license agreement These
expenses are recorded ill iillallocatel corporate expenses

as these itflls are cemitrallv directel aIIl controlled aiii are not iflcliile1 in internal immeasures of

segmmmemmt operating perforimmamice Xe 10 not have any immtersegmnent sales

The following
table is comparative summary of our net sales and segment lrofit nportalmle

seglnelmt for the years ended Jumie 30 2010 2009 and 2008 and reflects the basis of presemitalion

described in Note Geimeral Information Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and

Note 19 Segment Data aimd Related Information to tile Notes to Consolidated Imnancial

Statements for all periohs presented

Year Ended June 30

ilnoun Is in tiiOiiSaiIS
_______________________ _______________________ _______________________

Segment Net Sales

North Anierica Fragrance

International

Other
_____________ _____________ _____________

lotal

Heconciliat iii

Segnient Net Sales

Less

nallocated Sales Allowances

Net Sales

Segniemmt
Profit Loss

Non ii America Fragrance

International

Other

ess

Depreciation amid Anion izatioti

Imitemest expense net

Consolidation and Itlunination Adjustments

Lnallocated Corporate Expenses

Income Loss Before income Taxes

Amnoutmis sliowmi for the year ended June 30 2010 include $5.5 million related to lower thaii

normal prumg charged to the North America lragrammce segment for certaimi sales of inventory

by that segment that were undertaken at lime direction of corporate rather than segmeill

nialmagetilent

tmiallocated
corporate expenses include employee incentive costs ii rest rmict un img charges

iii costs related to the Initiative and iv costs related to the iz Claibormie license agreemnemmi

ltxchmidimig items addressed ill footnotes through below unallocatel corporate expenses

for the year emulel Jimmie 30 2010 increased as compared to June 30 2009 and 2008 primarily

dime to higher nceim live colmmpemlsanomm costs

lilI
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2010 2009 2008

672.990 662.235 688.807

384.t7 366.361 400689

4634 41.629 5-f.799

S1.103.777 $1070225 $1144.295

1.103777 1.070.225 $1.144.295

3.220

$1103777 $1070225 $1141075

1l4.474 107.289 116.855

17.250 2.232 16997

2.802 10.688 3450

28.459 26158 24.768

21.885 24.814 27595

23.1031 16.469 15.141

32.6491 41 .407 41 .463o

22826 14.479 21.435
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Other

Net sales increased 11.3% or $4.7 million primarily lime to higher sales of Elizabeth

Arden skin care and color cosnietic products

Gross Margin For the
year

ended Juiie 30 2010 and 2009
gross niargins were 44.9% and

40.5% respectively Gross margin for the veai ended June 30 2009 included Si 9.9 million of

charges $18.9 million of which did not require the use of cash related to the higher cost Liz

Claiborne mventory purchased prior to the June 2008 effective date of the Liz Claihorne license

agreement which reduced
gross margin for fiscal 2009 approximately 190 basis points In

addition gross margin in the current year period benefited from higher proportioii
of sales of lasic

stock items of owned and licensed hrands which reflect higher gross margins as compared to

distributed Irtulds and promotional proihict sales the favoralde
nilpact

of foreign currency

translation and lower distribnt ion and freight costs

SGA Selling general md admmistrative
expenses

increased 6.7% Jr $26.7 million for the

year ended Jme 30 2010 coimipared to die year ended June 30 2009 TIme increase was principally

due to higher general and administrative expenses
of $17.0 million and ii higher royalty and

advertising and sales promotion expenses of $7.1 million primarily due to higher sdes of licensed

brands The increase in general and administrative expenses was principally clime to higher incentive

compensation and payroll costs of $20 million and higher losses in the current year pemicl of S2.2

million related to the impact of foreign currency tramislatiomi of onr affiliates balance sheets

Partially offsetting these increases in general and adiimimiistrative
expenses were transition

expenses
of

$3.4 million in the prior year pcrioil related to the Jnne 2008 license of the Liz Claihorne fragrance

brands For the year ended Jtnie 30 2010 total restructuring and Initiative related onetime costs

were $7.3 million as conipared to $8.0 million for the ear ended June 30 2009

Segment Profit Loss

North .ifnerco Jrogmncc

Segment profit increased 6.7% or $7.2 million Ilie increase in segment profit was mostly

due to higher sales and improved gross margins due to higher proportion of basic stock sales

of owned and licemisecl brands which reflect higher gross margins as
comnparei

to distributed

brands and promotional product sales and lower freight and distribuiioii costs partially offset

by higher selling general and adnministrative expenses

International

Segment profit was SI 7.3 million as compared to loss of $2.2 million in the prior year

period The improvement in segment results was primarily due to the impact of favorable

foreign currency translation and improved gross margins due to higher proportion of basic

stock sales which have higher gross margins as compared to proniotional product sales and

lower freight and distribution costs partially offset by higher selling general and administrative

expenses

Other

Segment loss decreased liv 57.9 million from the prior year period primmiarily due to higher

sales and improved gross margins

Interest Expense Interest expense net of imuterest income decreased 11.8% or 52.9 million

for the year ended June 30 2010 conipareil to tIme ear ended lnne 30 2009 The decrease was due

to lower average borrowings under our revolving hank redil facility during the current year period

and lower average interest rates under such credit facility



Proiisioi for Benefit from Income Ta.re.
provision

for ilicoille taxis of S3.3 million was

reeorled for the year ended Jutie 30 2010 ioinpared to benefit from iiicoiiic takes of $8.3 million

Or the year etided June 30 2009 The lax ineollie loss from our loi1leli amid ititeriiational

latiolls consisted of tIle following for the ear ended June 30 2010 and 2009

Ol IIiIeI

June 10 Julie ttt

mmis iIwu.cuu/s 2010 20

Doiiiestic
pie-tax

incoilie loss 222 S2ft2

loreigut lilytax iticoitle 22.O04 12 142

Iotal ineottie loss before icoine t--xes 522.82b 14.479

ye lax rate 14.4% T7.4%

The decrease iii the effective tax rate in the current year as coin1iareil to the prior year was

iiiaitilv ilne to higher earnings
contributions from 0111 interliatiomial operations iii the current

period as coitipared to the prior year and ii shift in the ratio of earilings couitrihimitiotis between

jurisdictions which have different tax rates Our lomestic
operations are tax ci lee tel at higher rate

tItan 0111 imtternatioiial operations Ihe tax provision was partially offset net lax benefit of $1.7

million of which $0.8 miiilhioii related 10 the expiration
of the statute of hirititatioris for certain

lmrIueogllizel tax benefits ii $0.6 million related to research and levelohiuIleIlt and foreign tax

redits iii 50.4 nnllion related to tax benefits due to changes ill estimates for certain entities and

iv SOT uttilhiout related to the reversal of valuation allowatices associated itli the umet operating

losses pIevioIlsh Iecorlel liv certain utternaliotial subsidiaries which have hieiorne realizable Iliese

llillouiults were iiartiallv offset by $0.6 inillioii resulting from changes in statutory tax rates lIme prior

year effective lax rate iuicluided tax adjustinemits to record lax benefit of $0.7 iiiilhion from research

iumd levelohiumielll
and foreigui lax credits attributable to prior years through lie year ended June 30

2009 partially
offset by 50.5 nullion of valuation allowances associated itli net operating losses

getieuated by ertaini iiiteriiatioiial suihisidiaries as well as iiy changes to stallItI\ lax rates See \otc

12 to the \otes to onsolidated luumancial Statements

Vet Income Loss \et income for the year ended mime 30 2010 as HI 9.5 umiihhioii

oun1iared to net loss of $6.2 uullioui for th year ended June 30 2009 lhi increase iii net income

was priumiarih the result of hughier sales improved gloss milargins
and lower ntterest expense iii Ihie

cimmueiit year 1ti0h iiauliahl offset by higher selling general and admiiinisirat expeilses

LBI1Ii net income pius the
provision

for ilicoine taxes or uiet loss less the benefit

morn income taxes iumteiest expense plus depreciation and amilortizalion expense increased by

a1i1iroxmiatehv 536.7 to S73.2 mnilhioji for the year ended June 30 2010 coni1iared to 536.5

mullion for thie year ended June 30 209 The increase in EBllDA was priuilauih\ ihie result of higher

sales irilhiroveih gross muarguls
and lower interest expense p1rtiahly offset by higher selling general

muoh aduiuitiistrative
expenses

in the current year period hor neconucihiat ion of net income ti

for the years eIlIel Juiiie 30 2010 and 2009 See iNote uuulhel Iteimi Selected Iiuianciah

lata

ear Ended juie 30 2009 Compared to Fear Emided june 30 200

Vet Sales Net sales decreased 6.2% or $70.9 nnllion for thie year ended tunic 30 2009

omii1iared to the eai ended Julie 30 2008 Excluliug the unfavorable inn1iact of foueigut currency

tianislatioii net sales decreased 3.0% 01 $34.5 imnilion In ahlitioli to the nuifavorable innhlact
of the

foreign currenic ratislation die lower net sales were primarily due to certain Nort hi Amnericani

lustonilers rediuciuig basic stock repheinshmnent
orders to reduce inventor levels iii light if weak

niniomini conhitions Also contributing to thur net sales decline were the credit constraints of various

distrihiutors anol ciustonilers globally The sales declines affected most listuihinltel amol owned or

licensed fragrance brands and our skin care and color
htollicts Fragmanices laiuiuihieh siuie due prior



year penod including the Juicy Cotli tire fragrances ira La Juicy aiid Dir/v English 11w 9LV

Rocawear fragrance and the Elizabeth Ardeui fragrance Pretty Elizabeth Arlfl generated total of

S62.6 million of net sales Net sales of other Liz Claiborne fragrance brands and the sher fragrance

brands that we distributed in the prior year period but now iriariufacture iiicreased $70.3 million as

result of the June 2008 Liz Claiborrie license agreement Pricing changes had an imuumnalerial effect

oti net sales

Aorth America fragrance

Net sales decreased by 39% or $26.6 million Excluding lIe unfavorable impact of hreign

currency translation net sales lecreasel 3J or $2 million The lower net sales were

primarily due to certain custoimiers reducing lasic stock replenishimeuit orders to reduce

nuyentory leyels in light of weak economic conditions Mso contributing to the net sales lecline

were credit constraints of certain customers The sales declines affected most oiui listlillutei

arid owned or licensed fragrance brands These declines were Jartiallv offset by net sales of

fragrances launched since the prior year inchmling the Juicy Couture fragrances faa La Juicy

and Dirty English the 91X Rocawear fragrance aiid the Elizabeth Ardetu hagraiice Pretty

Elizabeth Arilen which collectively generated total of 546.1 million of net sales for this

segment Net sales of other Liz Claiborne fragrance brands and the cher fragrance brands that

we distributed in time prior year period but umow umianufacture increased Sfl8.8 umui11iouu as result

of the June 2008 Liz Ciaihoruue license agreement

In tern lion 11

Net sales decreased by 8.6% or $34.3 million Excluding the itmifavorable iumIlact of foreign

currency translation International net sales decreased O.9% or S3. unilliouu The sales declines

included $29 million of lower net sales to travel retail outlets due to sharp reductiomi in

passenger traffic at airports as result of the global recession an lower sale associated with

the credit couslrainls of various distributors globally Partially offsetting time deciease were

approxunatelv $17.2 million of increasel Liz Claihorne fragrance sales inclniimlg sales from the

latniches of ira La Juicy and Iirty English

Oilier

Net sales decreased by 24.0% or 513.2 million The sales decline was priinaiiiv ihue to

lower sales of Elizabeth Ardeim hraimded products as resuli of certain customneu rehliciuig hasic

stock repleuislmnment orders to reduce inventory levels in light of weak ecotmoumili olidil iomo and

door closillgs at several department stores

Gro Margin lor both time years ended June 30 2009 and 2008
gross margmums were

Gross margin was iulupactel by higher sales of Liz Claihorne brands whiiclm as licemmsed brands

reflect higher gross margins timaim when they were distributed brands net of the $i8 umuilhion charge

which lid not
require

the use of cash in fiscal 2009 related to the Liz Claihorime nmveiitorv

p1mrl1asedI priol
to the June 2008 effective date of the Liz 1aiborne licensing agreeummeimt This

positive
lactor was mostly offset liv time murmfavoralle iummlat if foreign ciirremmc tramislatioum lower

sales volutuues in our imiglier lulargium European amid travel retail nuarkets amid higher proportiotu
of

lower
lnargimm promnotioumal lrohmmt sales as conupared to basic stock rlt1t

SGrl Selling general auml adnuiiuistrative
expenses

iuucreased 2.2% or 58.8 niilliomi br 11w

year enlel June 30 2009 compared to the year ended June 30 2008 lIme iuureas was lmmimiipiIlly

due to higher advertising promnoliomial and royally cosis of 13 mnillion most of which melated

to lime iz Claiborume fragrance brands amid imew fragrance latunchues and ii ransil ion
expemises

of

$3f million related to the Juuue 2008 hicemmse of time Liz Claibormie fragrance bramuds Ihese increases

were partiitliy offset $9.3 mnilliomu of lower general and alnlimmislrative
expemuses

1mm fiscal 2009

priiiiarily iravelrelaled pmolessiomnil service and payroll costs including imiceuutive counpensation



ilird I/0r the year einleI Jutie 30 2009 total reslructnrilig
IflI Initiative relatel onetime costs

were 58 iltilhioti as conlpareI to S3 niIlioi for tile year ended June 30 2008

Segiiieii Profit Loss

\orli IF1CIYCO liIgIiIIce

Segiiieiil profit decreased 8.2% or $9.6 iiiilhion lhe decrease in segment profit was mostly

due to lower sales Segmeiit profit was also iinpactel by higher advertisuig
and promotional

osls to
support

the liz iaihoriie fragrance brands and new product launches and higher

royalty costs ssocialel with the liz Claihorne am licenses Partially offset hug these

liegal ive ililpacts were higher sales of he recently licensed Liz 3aihorne fragrance Iralids

wIlilli arrv higher gross margins as licensed brands than onr list rillited fragrance brands

/1 IeFtiIFO/1f

Segiiieiil loss was $2.2 million which is decrease of SI 9.2 million from lie
prior year

jirohit ol SI iiuillioii The lecrease wis due to the linfavoralle impact of loreigli currency

ratislat ion lower sales priiiiarilv in our higher gross margin European aiii travel retail

iiiarkeis alIl lower
gross Inargilis

IW ii higher prOpOttioli 01 proliiOiiolIal prol1mt sales as

olliparel to basic stork 1odiicts

iIe

Segtiieiil loss increased Iw $7.2 million priniarilv due to lower sales ii

47

Interest Lrpense luiterest expense net ol interest imicoille decreased 0.1 or $2.8 million

or the year elilel tine 30 2009 conn1ared to the year etided June 30 2008 The decrease was due

to lower itilerest rates titoler our revolving hank relit facility

Benefit froiiz/Prorisioi for Income Taues lenefit froiri iliconie taxes of $8.3 million was

ecorded for the year eiided June 30 2009 coinparcl to
proxisioil

for iinonie taxes of $1.5 million

br the year enled Juiie 30 2008 The pretax loss income from our domestic and internatioiial

operations
oiisistel of the following for the year eiided Julie 30 2009 and 2008

Year Ended

hint to June 30
morn ii dsou/s 2009 2008

Doinest ic liretax ilicomne loss S2662 12.927

Foreign pretax ilicome 12142 34.362

lotal loss income before income ta es S14479 21.435

flee live tax rate 57.4% 7.2%

Flie increase iii the effective tax rate wa mainly due to increased losses being
incurred in the

1/S which are taxeffected at higher rate than the international operations as well as adjustments

to record net tax beneht of 50.7 niillion from research and development and foreign tax credits

mtirilnitahle to prior years through the year ended June 30 2009 The tax benefit was partially offset

lv 50.5 million of valuation allowances associated with net operating
losses generated liv certain

international subsidiaries as well as liv charies to statutory tax rates The prior year effective tax

rate imiclin le net tax benefits of 50.2 million rommi research and development and foreign tax credits

itrilnitable to prior ears partially offset liv $0.1 million of valuation allowauices associated with net

operating
losses generated liv certain imiternational subsidiaries as well as by changes to statutory

tax rates See ote 12 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



.ti Lo Irwe Net loss for the ear enlel liiiie 30 2009 was $h.2 nlillIii OiiiJarel to

net income of 9.9 million for tIle year eiided June 30 2008 The decrease iii tie income was

niaiiilv driveti overall sales declines and the unfavorable impact of foreign clirreIlv translation

partially offset liv increased sales of the Liz Claiboriie and sher brands am our iiewlv latiiiclied

fra gra 11s

FRill IIlT1 net income pills the provision for income taxes or net loss less 11w Ieilefit

from inc inme taxes lull
liiicrest

exjellse plus depreciation and amortization exi ei se lecrea se 1v

S37.3 mitillion to S3.T million for the year emled Jutie 30 2009 compared to S73.8 inillioti for the

year eiided
.1 nile 30 2008 The decrease iii Ll31T1A was primarily the result of overall iiet sales

declines and the titilavoralule impact of foreign currency translation as discussed above 1oi

reconci liatioii of net icoijie to EBITI\ for the years ended June 30 2009 am 2008 see Note

111111cr Iteum elected litmaticial Data

Seasonalitv

Our operations have Iiistoiicallv been seasoiial svith higher sales generally ocilirrilig iii tIle first

half of our fiscal ear as result of increased demand by retailers in
alticilatioIl

of and during the

holiday season Fur the ear etided June 30 2010 approxinlatev 60% of our lid sales were inai he

duriiig the first half of otin fiscal year Due to product innovation aiii new jIoiiidt lauiticlies the size

am timing of cer ai orders from our customers and alditiOlls or losses of brand histrihution rights

sales results of operations workitig capital requirelulents
and cash flows cati vary sigiiificaittlv

betweeti
111a1tIs

of tIle saimue and differeiut years As result we expect to exlerielue
vaiiabilitv iii

net sales operating Iiiargimm
lid incommie workimig capital requirements and cash flows oti quarterly

basis hmmcreased sales of skimu care and cosmetic products
relative to hagraiices iiiav reduce the

48
seasonalilv of our huisiness

\Ve experience seasoiialitv iii our working capital with peak iimveiitoiv levels iioriuuallv froiuu July

to October and 1IcaL reeivalle balaiices norniallv from Septemler to December Diii working

capital Inirrowimugs are also seasonal and are normally highest in the iflolitils of epteiuihem October

and Noeiiuher lutrimug tile mouths of December January auid February of each ear rash is

iiorinallv generated as uistomiler payments on holiday season orders are received

IiquiIitv anll Capital Resourees

Iiitlet1
.1 unite 10

linoten/s Ii //osa/s 2010 2009 2008

INet cash provided operating activities $1 l3.9 16.98 8.037

Net cash used iii invest
iuig

activities 35.721 31 .663 28.588
Net cash used iii provided liv financing activities 74.337 7.529 791
i\et increase decrease in ash amid cash equivalents 3779 3.294 3.891

a..J Flows For lie year emided June 30 2010 net cash provided liv operal ilig
activities was

$1 14.0 million as compared to 537.0 million for the year ended June 30 2009 This increase in

cash provil 1e liv era 1mg act ivmes was pri ncipallv due to 11 igher mitt iiiconmme ill ipn Iye acc ni ml

receivable olectiomls and comitniued reductions in inventory levels which has resulted iim lower

accounts

For tile year euuled Jimmie 30 2009 net cash provided liv ojeranhlg activities wa 37 imuillion

as compared to S8 miuilhiomu for the year ended June 30 208 This increase iii cash pmovided

operating activities was due to less cash used for working capital requiremuieuuts partiali offset liv

lower net ilicomne lime reduction in working capital requirements dumrimmg the veam emuded .1 nimue 30

2009 resulted froumm reductions iim inventory pulrllases due iii part to ohm hhal l1ficieimcv

ReEuugimmeerimmg
imuil iat ive as well as inventors purchases made ill June 2008 ill collnletiolu with the



Liz Claihorne liceiise agreemelit anl ii reductions 01 accolIllis rect ivahie associated vitii ihe lower

net sales Partially
offset by iii decrease iii accounts payable of 550.8 million due to the timing of

payments afll rediictioiis in iiiveiitorv plirelli

The following chart illustrates our net rash used in investing activities during the years ended

June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

ear Ended June 30

4mmints in t/ousnnds 2010 2009 2008

Additions to property
and equipment $35.383 $26330 522155

Acquisition of licenses and listrillltor assets 333 5.333 6433

Total 535721 531.663 528588

For the year ended June 30 2010 net cash used in investing activities of $35.7 million was

composed of approxiniatelv $35.4 million of capital expeiidit tires primarily for the iillpleInentatiOn

of the Oracle financial accouninig and order processing stem instore count ers and displays tools

arid molds and computer hardware and software In aiditon net cash used in iiivesting activities

included the remaining Sovereigim Sales contingent
consideration of 50.3 million that was paid iii

September 2009

For the year ended June 30 2009 net cash used in investing activities of $31.7 million was

composed of approximately $26.3 million oh capital expenditures primarily
for the implementation

of the Oracle financial accounting and oider pr 5mg system instore counters and displays tools

and molds and computer harlware and software In adhtmori iiet cash used in investing activities

included the $5.3 million payment of the seond iiistallment of
contingent

comisideratiomi associated

with our acquisition
of the fragrance business of Sovereign Sales LLC

We currently expect to inlmr between mill oil and $3 inilliomi in capiial expenditures in the

year ending June 30 2011 primarily for illstore counters uil displays ii computer hardware

and software and iii leasehold immlpmovelulellts

For the year ended Juiie 30 2010 tie cash used in financing activities was 574.3 million as

coinpare1 10 net cash used in financing activities of $7.5 million for the year emided June 30 2009

During the year emled June 30 2010 hot rovings under our credit facility decreased by $56.0

million to $59 million at June 30 2010 and we also made
pavnienls

under capital lease

obligations of $1.9 million hi additioii in May 2010 we repurchased $5.0 million of our 73/4%

seiuior sulordimlated notes For tile year endcl imimme 30 2010 repuicliases of common stock totaled

$13.8 iiuihlion compared to 51.6 mmiilliomi for the year emided Jimmie 30 2009

For the year emided June 30 2009 mmcl cash used in financing activities was $7.5 million as

compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $16.8 immilhion for the year etided June30

2008 luring the year ended lime 30 2009 borrowings tinder our credit facility decreased by $4.0

million to $115.0 million at June 30 2009 aiid we also made payments under capital lease

obligations
of $2.0 million During tIme year emldel Jumie 30 2008 borrowings under our credit

facility increased by $21.0 million to Si 19 million at lime 30 2008 primarily due to our

purchase of inventory from Liz Claiboriie iii onnerl jolt with our license agreement For the year

ended Jumie 30 2009 repurchases of comnmnmoii stock totaled 51.6 mnillion omnpared to $7.4 million

for the year enled June 30 2008

Interest paid uluring the year ended June 30 2010 included $17.5 million of interest payments

on the 73/4% senior subordinated notes clue 2014 and 52.9 million of imiterest paid on the

bofrowings under our credit facility Interest paid during tIme year ended June 30 2009 included

$17.4 million of interest payments on the 7% senior subordinated miotes due 2014 and $7.0

million of interest paid omi the lorrovings tinder our credit facility Imiterest paid during the year



ended June 30 2008 included $17.4 million of interest payments on the 73/4% senior subordinated

notes due 2014 and $9.5 million of interest paid on the borrowings under our credit facility

At June 30 2010 we had approximately $26.9 million of cash of which $20.5 million was held

outside of the United States Of the cash held outside of the U.S $7.4 million was considered cash

in excess of local operating requirements and could have been repatriated to the U.S without

restriction or tax effect The balance of such cash held outside the U.S approximately $13.1

million was needed to meet local working capital requirements and therefore considered

permanently reinvested in the applicable local subsidiary

Debt and Contractual Financial Obligations and Commitments At June 30 2010 our long-

term debt and financial obligations and commitments by due dates were as follows

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Amounts in thousands Total Year Years Years Years

Long-term debt including current

portion1 $220000 $220000
Interest payments on long-term

debt2 58256 17050 34101 7105

Operating lease obligations 75954 18153 23601 15009 19191

Capital lease obligations 32 32

Purchase obligations3 441480 310841 55639 37250 37750
Other long-term obligations4 5422 5422

Total $801144 $346076 $118763 $279364 $56941

Total scheduled maturities do not include $1.3 million of swap termination costs that were

recorded as reduction to long-term debt are amortized to interest expense over the remaining

life of the 3/4% senior subordinated notes due 2014

Consists of interest at the rate of 73/4% per annum on the $220 million aggregate principal

amount of 73/4% senior subordinated notes See Note 10 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements

Consists of obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business related to purchase

commitments for finished goods raw materials components advertising promotional items

minimum royalty guarantees insurance services pursuant to legally binding obligations

including fixed or minimum obligations and estimates of such obligations subject to variable

price provisions

Excludes $4.5 million of
gross unrecognized tax benefits that if not realized would result in

cash payments We cannot currently estimate when or if the payments will be due See Note

12 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Future Liquidity and Capital Needs Our principal future uses of funds are for working

capital requirements including brand development and marketing expenses new product launches

additional brand acquisitions or product licensing and distribution arrangements capital

expenditures and debt service In addition we may use funds to repurchase material amounts of our

common stock and senior subordinated notes through open market purchases privately negotiated

transactions or otherwise depending upon prevailing market conditions our liquidity requirements

contractual restrictions and other factors We have historically financed our working capital needs

primarily through internally generated funds our credit facility and external financing We collect

cash from our customers based on our sales to them and their respective payment terms

We have $325 million
revolving credit facility with syndicate of banks for which JPMorgan

Chase Bank is the administrative agent which generally provides for borrowings on revolving basis

with $25 million sub-limit for letters of credit See Note to the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements Under the terms of the credit facility we may at any time increase the size of the credit



facility ltJ to 375 iiiillion wil hoot
entering

into formal aIlenlInent
requiring

the consent of all of

lie 1allks s1iljecl to our satisfaci iOn of cerlInl coiIlitions The credit faciht
exIires

iii 1eceinber

2012

ilie crelit facility is guaraiiteeoi lv all our U.S sIilsidiaries atid is collateralized by lirst

priority lieu oii all ol Out .5. 4111iilti tinol Puerto Rico accounts receivable dliii LS iuveiitorv

l3orrowiuigs
uuiuiler the crelit facility au liiniied to 85.O% of eligible accounts reco ivahle and 85.0%

1f 11w appraised net liquidation
value of Ow inventory as determined pursuant 10 the ternus of the

relit facility proviIed however that from August 15 to October 31 of each veam our borrowing

base may be temporarily
increased by up to $25 iunllion Our obligations imumoler he credit facility

rank senior to our .i/% senior subordinated notes tIne 2014

The credit facility has only one Iniancial maintenance covenant luicli is debt service

overage ratio hat must le uuiaintaiued at not less than .1 to if average borrowing base
capacity

declines to less than $25 million $35 million from Ieceunber through May 31 Our average

borrowing base capacity for each of the quarters during fiscal 2010 lid hot fall below die applicable

thresholds ulotel aiove Accordingly the debt service coverage ratio lid not apply to die
quarter

nioled june 30 2010 We were in compliance with all
applicable covenants unoler the credit facility

for he quarter and year ended Juuie 30 2010

inler the ternis of the credit lacihtv \Vt may pay di idends or repurchase comiimnoii stock if we

niiaiiulaiuu borrowing base capacity of at least $25 million from June to Novemuuher 30 uid at least

35 million from leceinber to May 31 after making the applicable payment Time credit facility

rest rids us from incurring
additional nontrade indebtedness other than reuinancings and certain

uuiall amounts ol iuidebiedriess

Borrowings under the credit portiomi of tie credit facility bear interest at floating rate based

die Applicahle Margin which is deterlmnilel by reference to specific fiumaitcial ratio At our

mption
die Applicable Margin may he apphe Ito either the London InterBank Offered Hate lABOR

11w prime rate The reference ratio for determnung the Applicable Margin is debt service

overage ratio lime Applicable Margin charged on JBOH bails
ranges

from .00% to .75% and is

for prilmie rate loans except that die Applicable Margin oui the first $25 million of horrowimigs

From August 15 to October 31 of each year while the temporary increase iii our borrowing base is iii

dfect is .00% higher At June 30 2010 the Applicable Margin was 150% for LII3OR loans and

1% for
prniie

rate loans The comnmitmrient fee on the unused portion
of the credit facility is 0.25%

Vor the years emuleol June 30 2010 aml 200 the weighted average
aimimual interest rate on

torrowings
under our crelit facility was 2.7% and 3.3% respectively The interest rates payable by

is on our 73/% senior subordinated notes and on borrowings unoler our revolving credii facility are

ml nnpacted credit rating agency actions

At June 30 2010 we had $59.0 inil in i-iorrowings and $4.4 million iii letters of credit

umtstandnug
unoler the creolit facilit ii $158.6 million of eligible accounts receivable ami

Iumyentories available as collateral under the creolit facility and iii remaining lorrowing availability

of S995 million The borrowing availability under the credit facility typically declimmes iii tIme second

half of our fiscal year as our higher accounts receivable balances resuiting fuomii holiday season sales

mre likely to olecline due to cash collections

At .Juume 30 2010 we had outstanding $220.0 million
agguegate primiciluil aniomuimt of 73/4%

senior sumbordimmated notes The i/40/ seumior subordinated notes are gutaramiteed by our J.S

subsidiaries See ote 10 to tIme JNotes to Counolidateol Financiah Stateuuieuuis llie immoleni tire pursuauit

which the 73/4% senior subordinated notes weue issued lroxilos that such notes will be our senior

sumhordimiatel obligations The 7% senior smmbordiumated imotes rtuik junior to till ol out existing
amid

mmtumme senior uidebieolness including indebtedness under die credit facility ammol pan passmm iii right

of payment to till of our senior sumborolinateol inlebtedness Interest oum the 73/4% senior subordimiaied

motes is payable seniiannually on lehruarv 15 and August 15 01 each year lime imidemit mire generally



permits its subject to the satisfaction of fixed charge coverage ratio and in certain cases also

net income test to incur additional indebtedness
pay

dividends pnrchase or redeem our common

stock or redeem subordinated nidebtedness The indenture generally limits our ability to create liens

merge Jr transfer or sell assets The iiidentnre also provides that the holders of the 73/4% senior

subordinated notes have the option to require os to repurchase their notes in the event of change of

control involving us as defined in the indentnre

Based upon our internal projections we believe that existing cash and cash equivalents

internally generated funds and borrowings under our credit facility will be sufficient to cover debt

service working capital requirements and capital expenditures for the next twelve months other

than additional working capital requirements that may result from further expansion of onr

operations through acquisitions of additional brands or licensing or distribution arrangements

deterioration in the economic and retail environment however coiill cause its to fail to satisfy the

financial maintenance covenant tinder our bank credit facility that applies only in the event we do

not have the requisite average borrowing base capacity as set forth under the credit facility In such

an event we would not lie allowed to borrow tinder the revolving credit facility and may not have

access to the capital necessary for our business In addition default under our credit facility that

causes acceleration of the debt tinder this facility could
trigger

default under our outstanding

73/4% senior subordinated notes In the event we are not able to borrow under our credit facility we

would be required to develop an alternative source of liquidity There is no assurance that we could

obtain replacement financing or what the terms of such financing if available would be

Repurchases of Common Stock On November 2008 our board of directors authorized us to

extend our existing $80 million cotnnton stock repurchase program through November 30 2010 As

of June 30 2010 we had repurchased 3A30.498 shares of common stock on the open market under

the stock repurchase program at an average price
of $16.86 per

share at cost of $57.9 million

including sales commissions leaving $22 million available for additional common stock

repurchases under the program For the
year

ended June 30 2010 we purchased 904260 shares of

Coummnomi stock on the open market under the stock repurchase prograni at an average price of

$16.55 per
share and at cost of $15.0 million including sales commissions The acquisition of

these shares by us was accounted for under the treasury method

We have discussions from time to time with manufacturers and owners of prestige fragrance

brands regarding our possible acquisition
of additional exclusive licensing and/or distribution rights

We currently have no material agreements or cotnnmitments with
respect to ans such acquisition

although we periodically execute routine agreements to uiaintain the confidentiality of information

obtained during the course of discussions with such manufacturers and brand owners There is no

assurance that we will lie able to negotiate successfully for any such future
acquisitions or that we

will he able to obtain acquisition financing or additional working capital financing on satisfactory

terms for further expansion of our operations

Forward-Looking Information and Factors That May Affect Future Results

The Securities and Exchange Commission encourages companies to disclose forward-looking

information so that investors can better understand companys future
prospects

and make

informed investment decisions This Annual Report ott Form 10-K and other written and oral

statements that we make front time to time contain such forwardlooking statements that set out

ammtmcipated results based on managements plaits and assumptions regarding future events or

performance We have tried wherever possible to identify such statements liv using
words such as

anticipate estimate expect project intend plait believe will and similar

expressions
in connection with any discussion of futnre operating or financial performance In

particular these include statements relating to future actions prospective products future

1ierforjnamice or results of current and anticipated products sales efforts expenses and/or cost

savings imiterest rates foreign exchange rates time outcome of
contingencies

such as legal

proceedings and financial results list of factors that could cause our actual results of operations



and financial condition to differ materially from our forward-looking statements is set forth below

anti these factors are discussed in
greater

detail under Item IA Risk Factors of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

factors affecting our relationships with our customers or our customers businesses

including
the absence of contracts with customers our customers financial condition and

changes in the retail fragrance and cosmetic industries such as the consolidation of

retailers and the associated closing of retail doors as well as retailer inventory control

practices including but not limited to levels of inventory carried at point of sale and

practices used to control inventory shrinkage

risks of international operations including foreign currency fluctuations hedging activities

economic and political consequences of terrorist attacks disrnptions in travel unfavorable

changes in U.S or international la or regulations diseases and pandemics and political

instability iii certain regions
of the world

our reliance on third-party manufacturers for substantially all of our owned and licensed

products and our absence of contracts with suppliers
of distributed brands and components

for manufacturing of owned and licensed brands

delays in shipments inventory shortages and higher costs of production due to the loss of

or disruption in our distribution facilities or at key third party manufacturing or fulfillment

facilities that manufacture or provide logislic services for our products

our ability to respond in timely manner to changing consumer preferences and

purchasing patterns
and other international awl domestic conditions and events that

impact retailer and/or consumer onfidence and demand such as domestic or global

recessions

our ability to protect our intellectual property rights

the success or changes in the
timniimg or scope of our new product launches advertising

and merchandising programs

the quality safety and efficacy of our products

the inipact of competitive products and
pricing

our ability to implement our growth strategy
and

acquire or license additional brands or

secure additional distribution arrangements ii successfully and cost-effectively integrate

acquired businesses or new brands and iii finance our growth strategy and our working

capital requirements

our level of indebtedness our ability to realize sufficient cash flows from operations to

mueet our debt service obligations and working capital requirements and restrictive

covenants in our revolving credii facility and the indenture for our senior

subordinated notes

changes in product mix to less profitable products

the retention and availability of key personnel

changes in the legal regulatory and political environment that impact or will impact our

business including changes to customs or trade regulations
laws or regulations relating to

product ingredients or other chemicals or accounting standards or critical accounting

estimates

the success of and costs associated with our Global Efficiency Reengineering initiative

and related restructuring plan including our transition to turnkey nmammfacturing process

and ommr implementation of new Oracle financial accounting and order processing systemn



the potential for significant impairment charges relating 10 OF trademarks goodwill or

oilier intangible assets that could result from number of factors inclmuhng
downward

pressure 011 0111 stock pmic and

oilier unanticipated risks and uncertainties

We caution that the factors described herein and other factors could cause our actual results of

operations
and financial condition to liffer materially from those expressed iii any forwardlooking

statements we make and that investors should not place undue reliance on any such fonvardlooking

stateiiients Further aimv forwardlooking statement speaks only as of the date on which such

statement is made and we undertake no ohligation to update any forwardlooking statenment to

reflect events or circumstances after tile date on which such statement is made or to reflect the

occurrence of allticipatel or imnamiticipated events or circimimistamices New factors emerge from time to

time and it is not possible for its to predict all of such factors Further we cannot assess time impact

of each such factor on our results of
operations or tile extent to which an factor or combination of

factors may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained ill any forwardlooking

stat euients

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

As If Jumme 30 2010 we had $59.0 million in borrowings outstamiling under our revolviiig

credit facility Borrowings under our revolving credit facility are seasonal with peak borrowings

typically in the nmonths of September October and November Borrowings under the credit facility

are subject to variable rates and accordingly our earnings and cash flow will be affected by changes

54
iii interest rates Based

111111 our average borrowings under our revolving credit facility during the

year ended June 30 2010 and assuming there had been two percentage point 200 basis points

change iii the
average interest rate for these borrowings it is estimated that our interest expense for

the year ended june 30 2010 would have increased or decreased by $2.2 million See Note to the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateimmemits

Foreign Currency Risk

We sell our products in approxunatelv 100 countries arommd the world During each of the years

ended .lune 30 2010 and 2009 we derived approximatel 39% of our net sales from our

international operations We conduct our immtermmational operations in variety of different countries

arid derive our sales iii various currencies including the Euro British potmiitl Swiss franc Canadian

dollar and Australiami dollar as well as the dollar Most If our skill care and cosumetic products

are produced iii thirdparty mnanufacturuig facilities located in tile U.S Oni operatiomis may be

subject to voiatihitv because of currency clnmges inflatiomi arid changes iii political and economic

conditions iii time countries iii which we operate With
respect

to imiternational operations our sales

cost of goods sold and expenses are typically denominated iii comubination of local currency and

the U.S dollar Our results of operations are reported in U.S dollars Fluctuations ill currency rates

can affect our reported sales margins operating costs amid the anticipated settlement of our foreign

denominated receivables and pavables weakening of the foreign currencies in which we generate

sales relative to the currencies in which our costs are denominated which is primnarilv the U.S

dollar may adversely affect our ability to meet our obligations and could adversely affect our

business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows Our comnpetitors may or

may not lie subject to the sanme fluctuations in currency rates and our competitive position could be

affected by these changes

As of jumie 30 2010 our subsidiaries outsile the United States held 27.3% of our total assets

The cumulative effect ol
translating

balance sheet accommnts fromn time functiommal curremicy into the

U.S dollar at current exchange rates is included in accimnmlated other comnprehensive loss iii our

consolidated balance sheets



As of Juiie 30 2010 we had notional amounts of 15.1 million British pounds under open

foreign currency contracts that expire between July 3l 2010 and May 30 2011 to reduce the

exposure of our foreign snlsidiarv revenue to fluctuations in currency rates As of June30 2010

we had notional amounts of 6.8 millioii Canadian dollars aiid 7.9 million Australian dollars under

open foreign currency contracts that
expire between July 31 2010 and \lav3O 2011 to hedge

portion of our forecasted inventory purchases to reIuce the exposure of our Canadian and Australian

subsidiaries cost of sales to fluctuations in currency rates We have designated each qualifying

foreign currency contract as cash flow lie Ige The gains aiid losses of these contracts will only be

recognized in
earnings in the

period iii which tile forecasted transaction affects
earnings or the

transactions are no longer proIahle of occurring Time realized gain net of taxes recognized during
the year ended June 30 2010 froni the settlements of these contracts was approximately $0.3

million At June 30 2010 the unrealized gain net of taxes associated with
opeit foreign currency

contracts of approximately $0.4 million is included in other conlprelwnsivc income loss in our

consolidated balance sheet See Note 15 to the Notes to Consolidated Finamicial Statements

When appropriate we also enter into alIl settle
foreign currency contracts for Euros British

pounds and Canadian dollars to reduce the exposure of our foreign subsidiaries balance sheets to

fluctuations in foreigii currency rates As of Juiie 30 2010 there were no such foreign currency

contracts oulstandiiig The realized gain net of taxes recognized during the year ende1 June30
2010 was $1.3 niillion

We do not utilize foreign exchange contracts for trailing or speculative purposes There can le

no assurance that our hedging operations or oilier exchange rate practices if any will ehiiiiinate or

substantially reduce risks associated will fluctuating exchange rates

UI
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Report of Management
Itlizabeth Arden Inc and Subsidiaries

Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

We prepared and are responsible for he consolidated financial statements that appear in the

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the veir ended June30 2010 of Elizabeth Arden Inc the

Company These consolidated financial statements are in conformity with aceonnhing principles

generally accepted iii the United States of America and therefore include amounts based on

informed judgments anl estimates We also
accept responsihilitv for the preparation of the oilier

financial information that is included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10K

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The managenment of the lomnpanv is responsible br establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a 15f and 5d15f under tile

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ihe Companys internal control over financial reporting is

designed to provide reasonahle assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles in the inited States ot America Conipanvs internal control over financial

reporting inclndes those policies and procedures that
Pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately amid fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

Company ii provide reasonable assnrance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation
of financial statements iii accordance with generally accepted accounting principles arid

that
receipts

and
expenditures of the Company are being made oily iii accordance with

authorizations of inanagenment and directors of the Company and iii provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevemitiorm Jr tnnelv detection of unauthorized
acquisition use or disposition of the 57

Companys assets that could have material effect on the consolidated financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes iii conditions or that the

degree of compliance with time
policies or pocedmmres may deteriorate Management of the Company

assessed the effectiveness of the Companys iniermmal control over financial
reporting as of June 30

2010 In making this assessmneimt management used tIme criteria set forth liv the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of tIme Treadwav Conunission COSO in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework Based on our assessment using those criteria nianagemnent concluded that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of Jimmie 30 2010

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the independent registered public accounting firm that audited

the consolidated financial statenmenis that appear in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10K
for the year emmded June 30 2010 has issued an unqualified attestation on tIme Companys internal

control over financial reporting as of June 30 2010 as stated in their report which is included

herein

Is Scott Beanie Is Stephen Smith

Chairman President and Chief Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Executive Officer

August 17 2010



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Elizabeth Arden Inc

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly

in all material respects
the financial position of Elizabeth Arden Inc and its subsidiaries at

June 30 2010 and June 30 2009 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended June 30 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all

material respects
effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2010 based on

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is

responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

included in the accompanying Report of Management appearing under Item Our responsibility is

to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Companys internal control over

financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements

included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management

and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over

58
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that

our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys

internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and

iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York New York

August 17 2010



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Amounts in thousands except shares and par value

As of

June 30 2010 June 30 2009

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 26881 23102

Accounts receivable net 170067 190273

Inventories 271058 318535

Deferred income taxes 33496 14827

Prepaid expenses and other assets 58892 50024

Total current assets 560394 596761

Property and equipment net 76583 64110
Exclusive brand licenses trademarks and intangibles net 179444 186321
Goodwill 21054 21054
Debt financing costs net 3509 4705
Deferred income taxes 1301 10530
Other 1186 594

Total assets $843471 $884075

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Short-term debt 59000 $115000
Accounts payable trade 98441 121413 59

Other payables and accrued
expenses 96429 73192

Current portion of long-term debt 545

Total current habihties 253870 310150

Long-term Liabilities

Long-term debt 218699 223366
Deferred income taxes and other habilities 18285 13781

Total long-term liabilities 236984 237147

Total habihties 490854 547297

Commitments and
contingencies see Note 11

Shareholders Equity

Common stock $.01 par value 50000000 shares authorized

31897303 and 31444935 shares issued respectively 319 316

Additional paid-in capital 297137 285847
Retained

earnings 118946 99413

Treasury stock 3632589 and 2728329 shares at cost

respectively 62303 47334
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 1482 1464

Total shareholders
equity 352617 336778

Total habilities and shareholders equity $843471 $884075

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



ELIZABETh ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Amounts in thousands except per share data

\ear Ended Juiie 30

$1103.77

602.763

5.04

607803

49574

427.762

23.4 19

451181

44.793

21885

82

21.967

22.826

3.2 93

19533

0.70

0.68

28.017

28.789

1.070.225

632654

4.4 it

637.070

433.155

401078

21742

42282

10335

24814

24814

14479
8.3 16

6163

0.22

0.22

27971

27.971

2008

$1141075

674957

4245

679202

461873

392320

20523

412843

49030

27595

27595

21435

1534

19901

0.71

0.68

27981

29303

The accompanYing Notes are an integral part
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

2010 2009

Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Cost of sales

Depreciation
related to cost of goods sold

Total cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Other expense

Interest expense

Debt extinguishment charges

Other expense net

Income loss before income taxes

Provision for benefit from income taxes

Net income loss

Net income loss per
common share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average number of comnnion shares

Basic

Diluted



ELiZABETh ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ShAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Amounts in thousands

Balance at July 200
Issuance If coiuuuuioiu stock

lIjO1I

exercise stock opt louis

Issuance couhuulon stock for employee

stock purchase plan

Issuance of restricted stock uiCt of

rfeitulls

.uuuortizatiouu of sluareIlasell awards

Repurchase of OlIllhloul stock

119 rehensh ye lid mile

Net licouhie

loreigu cli rrcm dV ransla

adjumsinuemuts

Disclosure of reclassificat 1111

amhhoIlhits 111 of taxes

nrcalizeI
hiedgi ig

loss
amisiuhg

huirimig
till period

Less reclassification adjulstuhlellt

for
hiedgumig

losses imicluided iii

lIlt iulOllhe

Net llIiralizeh cash flow
lielIgimig

lo

Iota colupreileutsive lilcoulle loss

Balance at juuia 30 2008 31.157

AeeUinUIael

Common Stock
Additional

Treasury Stock Other Total

Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Shareholders

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount Ineonie loss Equity

30.473 $305 $265245 856751.862$33tro 3.581 $320927

524 6.823 202 4.450 2378

110 1.718 1719

50

7188 7188

41 7439 7439

19.901 19.901

95

16659 16659

-- 8491 8491

8.168 8168
-- 19.901 8.073 11.828

$31 $280973 $1055762475$45768 4.492 $336601

IM
61

Ilie
aeroitipariving

Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Fiilanial Stateitienis



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY Continued

Amounts in thousands

Aceuniulaled

Common Stork
Additional Treasury Stock

Tolal

_________________ aid-in Retained oinprehensive Shareholders

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount Income loss Equity

Balance at July 12008 31.157 $312 $280973 s105576 2.475 $45.768 $336601

Issuance of COifliflOfl stock opoii

exercise of stock options
62 667

Issuance of conlinon stock for

employee stock purchase plan 176 1.388 .39

Issuance of restricted stock net of

forfeitures 50

Amortization of share-based

awards 2.820 2.820

Repurchase of common stock 253 1.566

Comprehensive income

Net loss 6.163 6.163

Foreign currenc ranslat ion

adjustments
6.-83 6.483

Disclosure of reclassification

amounts net of taxes

Unrealized hedging gain arising

luring the period
22.974

Less reclassification adjiistmeiit

for hedging gains included iii

net income 13.46.3 13.463

Net unrealized cash flow hedging

gain
9.511 9.511

Total comprehensive loss income 6.163 3.028 3.135

Balance at lime 30 2009 31445 $316 $285.84 99.413 2.728 $-17.334 1.464 $336778

The accompanying Notes are an integral pan of the Cotisolidated Financial statements



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ShAREHOLDERS EQUITYContinued
Amounts in thousands

Aecuinulated

Common Sto Addtio.llal ireasury Stock
Other Total

aid-in Relained omprehensive SharhoIders
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount Income Ios Equity

Balance at July 200 31.445 $3th $285-t7 99.413 2.728 S47.334 $1.464 $336778

Issitaimee 0111111411 stock upon

exercise of stock options 155 1.589 1591

IS5Iilii ol 411110011 stock for

employee stock purchase plan 149 1.322 1323

Limamice of restricted stock net of

forfeit ores 148

II mort izat cuim of shareI aseu

award 4.771 4771

Hepurchiase of cominiomi stock 905 149b9 14969
xccss tax heitehit fr dlii sliarehasec

awards 3.608 3608

cnnpieliensive iiicouii

ilicoule 19.533 19533

loreigmi ciirreiicv translation

adjtisttiieitts 397 397

usclosui of reclassificatiort

illilOllIlts net of taxes

iireahized
huedgiimg gain arising

luring the period 650 650

Less ledlassifidanoll
tdjuisiuiieiut

14cr medgm hg gal
its ncluded ill

net niconi 271 271

Net uimcrealized cash flow hiedgimig

gall 379 379

Fctcl
olhlhcrellelmsive iiicnmti loss .. 19.533 18 19515

Balance at mime 30 2010 11.897 $3 $297 137 $1 18.946 3.633 $62.303 S1.482 $352617

lie
arcumilpahlying

Notes are au iliteglal pan die otisolidateti Financial Staterneiits



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Dollars in thousands

Year Ended June 30

64

2010 2009 2008

Operating activities

Net income loss 19533 6.163 19901

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation
and amortization 28459 26158 24.768

Amortization of senior note offering credit facility and

swap tennination costs 1459 1437 1225

Amortization of share-based awards 4271 2.820 7188

Debt extinguishment charges
82

Deferred income taxes 1996 11.515 5033
Change iii assets anti liabilities net of acquisitions

Decrease increase in accounts receivable 20339 22.479 2474
Decrease increase in inventories 48.276 88.143 28331
Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets 12.373 32.054 2.597

Decrease in accounts payable 18.931 50811 7927
Increase decrease in other payables and accrued

expenses
25.9 19 3.394 826

Other 1.579 114 491

Net cash provided by operating
activities 113.959 36986 8037

Investing activities

Additions to property
and equipment 35.388 26.330 22.155

Acquisition
of licenses and other assets 333 5.333 6433

Net cash used in investing activities 35721 31663 28588

Financing activities

Paynments on proceeds froni short-term debt 56.000 4.000 21.360

Payments oil long-term debt 545 1.149 1227
Repurchase of senior subordinated notes 5000
Payments under capital lease obligations 1927 2.009

Repurchase of common stock 13279 1.566 7439
Proceeds from time exercise of stock options

1.59 668 2.378

Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 1323 1.390 1719

Financing fees paid 863

Net cash used in provided by financing

activities 74.337 7.529 16.791

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 122 1088 131
Net increase decrease in cash amid cash equivalents 3.779 3294 3891
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

23.102 26.396 30.287

ash and cash equivalents at end of year
26881 23.102 26396

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Interest paid during the
year

20499 24.584 27082

Income taxes paid luring the
year 2417 1.747 10.182

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Flow Information

Additions to property
and equipment not included

above 2.632 6.991

Repurchase of common stock not included above 1190

The accompanying Notes are an integral part
of time Consolidated Financial Statements



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE General Information and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Bnsness /lctnltv Itlizalieth Arden Inc the Company or Thur is

global prestige
beauty products company that sells fragrances skin care and cosnietic products to

retailers in the United States and
approxi

rnateiv 00 countnes internationally

Basis /onsolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the

Companys whollyowned domestic amid inierimatiomial subsidiaries All significant intercompany

uccounts anl transactions have been elimnimiated iii consolidation

I/se oJhstnnates lime
1re1aratioii

of the consolilate1 financial statements iii conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles requires mimanagememit to make estimates and assumptions

that affect tile reported ainommts of assets and liabilities aiid disclosure of contmgent assets and

iahilities at the late of the financial statemnemits and the reported anuounts of revenues and expenses

luring the reporting periol Actual results could differ from those estimates Significant estimates

include expected useful lives of brand licenses trademarks other intangible assets and property

plant and equipment allowances for sales returns and markdowns sharehased compensation fair

value of long-lived assets allowances for doubtful accounts receivable provisions
for inventory

obsolescence and income taxes and valuation reserves Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revised estimates which are recorded iii the period in which they become known

Revenue Recognition Sales are recognized when title and tile risk of loss transfers to the

customer the sale
price

is fixed or determni miahie and collectibility of the resulting receivable is

65
probable Sales are recorded net of estunated returus markdowns and other allowances which are

granted to certain of tile Companys cmmstonmers and subject to tile Companys authorization and

approval ihe provision for sales ret minis and markdowns represents managements estimate of

lutnre returns and inarkdowmms based on historical and projected expenence and considering current

external factors aiid market conditions luring the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 one

customer accounted for an aggregate
of 15% 16% and 15% respectively of the Companys net

sales

Foreign Currency Translation All assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries amid affiliates

that do not utilize tile 11.5 dollar as its fnnctional currency are translated at yearend rates of

exchange while sales and
expeuses are translated at weighted average rates of exchange Unrealized

translation gains or losses are reported as foreign currency translation adjustments through other

accumulated comprehensive loss or income included in shareholders equity Such adjustments

resulted in net unrealized losses of $0.4 million and $6.5 million for the year ended June 30 2010

and 2009 respectively and net unrealized gains of 50.1 million during tile year ended June 30
2008 Gains or losses resulting from foreipn currency transactions are recorded in the

foreign

subsidiaries statements of operations Such net losses totaled $4.0 million $1.8 million $2.2

million in the
years

ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash and interest-hearing

deposits at banks with an original nuaturity date of three months or less

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable Time Company maintains allowances for

doubtful accounts to cover imncollectible accounts receivable and evaluates its accounts receivable to

determine if they will ultimately he collected This evaluation includes significant judgments and

estimates including an analysis of receivables
aging

amid customer-by-customer review for large

accounts If for example the financial condition of the Companys customers deteriorates resulting

in an impairment of their aliility to pay iditional allowances mnav be required resulting in

charge to income in the period in which the determination was made



EliZABETH ARDEN INC ANt SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Inrcntoies Inventories are statel at the lower of cost or market st is leterininell Ilsilig
the

weigi it average ii ie th 01 ee ole

Propeutv Hid LqIil//Fleflt and Depreciation Property aiid equipment are stated at cost

kx1enlitures for major iniprovelneilts
aiid allitiolms are recordel to the asset accounts while

replacements niajilletialice and
repairs

which do not improve or extend time lives of time respective

assets are charged to
expelise iepreciatioii is 1rovided over the est iiiiated useful lives of the assets

mmsnig
time straighthue method \\hieii fixed assets are sold or otherwise disposed of time accounts are

relievel of the origilmal cost of the assets and the related accumulated depreciation and aiiv resulting

profit or loss is crehitel or lialgeul to uuonie ee Note

LucIsire Brand Liceises Tra/enl/kS 111 Intangibles Exclusive of intangible assets that

have ilmlefiluite useful lives and are not being
amortized lie

omuipaiiys intangille assets are being

aumiottizei
usnmg

time straightline unction1 over their estimated useful lives ee Note

InIe/miteLireI and LongLiied issets Goodwill and intangible assets with iiidefuuite lives

are hot amortized but rather tested for impairhuient at least aiitiually An anmuttal
unpairmellt

test is

performed during the Conipauivs fourth fiscal
quarter or uumore frequeiutlv if events or changes iii

circumstances indicate the carrying value of goodwill
and iuulefiniteliveci iimtamigible assets mmiav not

fully be recoverable There is two step process
for

inupairment testing
of goodwill The first step

used to identify potential impairment compares tIme fair value of
reporting

unit with its carrying

anuomnit including goodwill Uue second step if necessary measures the auuioulit of the jinpairimlent

by comparing tile est unated fair value of tIle goodwill
amid iumtangible assets to their respective

carrying
values if an iilipairnment is ilehlt ihed the

carrvulg
value of tIle asset is adjusted to

estimated fair value ee Note

Louiglived assets are reviewed oii aim ongoing basis for impairnient
based oil coluiparisoli

of

the carrying
value of such assets aganist time undiscoumuted future cash flows If all inipairmnent

is

identiheI time carrying value of time asset is alJllsted to estinmateii fair value No such adjust tuments

were recorded for 11w years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Senior .\ote Offiiing Costs and Credit Fad/itt Costs lebt issuance costs amid transaction fees

which are associalel with the issuance of senior notes and the revolving credit failitv are being

amulorlizel and charged to interest expense over the tern of time related notes or the teruil of the

credit facility lii auiv peuiod iii whichi the senior notes are redeemed the unamortized debt issuance

costs anI liauisactiorm hes relating to the notes beimig redeemmued are expensed hu addition

termination costs uelated to iimterest rate swaps ale amortized to immterest expense over the remaining

life of the related imotes ee Note 10

Cost of tals included in cost of sales are the cost of prodmicis sold tIle cost of gift with

1mhase items pro\itIl to customers royally costs related to pat11tl technology or formulations

warellousumg listribution and supply chain costs The major couulponeults of warehiousiumg

hstmibutioli and supply chain costs include salary amui related benefit costs for eimiplovees iii the

warehousing djstlihultjoll and sulhlv chain areas and facility related costs iim those areas

Sellumg General and ldninistratil Costs included ium selling general and alnhimustrative

expenses are advertising creative levelopmneumt
ahml

pronmot
ion costs not paid direct lv to the

Companys custouluers royally costs related to iradeuuuarks salary and lelatel ienelit costs of the

Comnpanvs employees iii tIme finance huiuuian resources iiiformnatiomu technology legal sales and

marketing areas facility related cosls of the oinpauuvs
admnituistraiive fuumctions am1 costs pail to

coumsuhtarmts ama1 third
pamiy providers for related services



ELIZABETh ABIEN INC ANI SUBSIIIARIES

NOTES To CONSOLIIATEI FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContiriued

A/rerftsing 1111 Pouiolwnul osIs dvertciitg atil pIolIlotillal 0515 laiI lirecliV to

ilstotIier for zoods and rvices provided priniarilv OJ adveilising nul certain direct selling

costs are expiised as incurred and me rerded as itluctioti of sales dvrtisirig arid

lniiIoiiorIal costs not foull direct lv 10 the onipanvs ustonlers are exp used as incurred and

cci rled as mi olliponelil of Ot ol goods sOld ill tIle il goodS iVlI to lIstOilers or

ellilig gneral anI ahillillislrative x1tise.\dvertisiiig aiid irilnlioIlal 115 totaled

1iIrxi1t1mt1Iy
lilillioll ii. lililhioli a1 2rM Illillioli Itirilig the years nled .luiie 30

2010 2009 and 2003 rsptiveI\ \dvrtiIn mid 1iroitiotional cots iiIilles
proiilotioll

lirect

eIiillg 0Oil advertising iid tiiedimi plmillcIIt

IncOme Iu.rs Ihie
pr vision 141 tue lie taxes Is tIle tax 1avmlble or reliiuidalIe for the period

hlis or 10juL15 the change ditiiuig the period ill Ieftlueh lax assets and liabilities and ceutain other

midjitstiiieuits Tue Coiiipati provides 11 hteurel taxes itiidei the lialility method tinder such

iiietliol deferred taxes are adjusted lot tax tale cliahiges as they occur Iekrred iiicoiiie lax assets

aIll liaiilities ate ounjlitei auiuiiiallv 141 Iitferelles bet weeui the financial statement and tax iases

ol assets and liabilities that vihI result tu taxable or Ieluctilile atliottlits in the litture hiaseri on

nacteI tax laws and rates applicable to the periods iii which the dilferences are expected to affect

taxable income valuation allowance is
pros

iiel br Ieferrel tax assets if ii is mote likely tiiaii not

that tiles items will either
expire

before the
onipatlv

able to realize their lelleht or that future

ieitlciibiIilv is uncertain

The oitipattv recognizes
iii its ouisohilatel financial stateilietits lie impact ol tax

positioti
if

ii is more likely than not that sitihi
position

will be shIstailiel oil ahilit based oil its technical merits

While the iotnpaitv believes that its assessliieits ol whether its tax positions are more likel than not

to he stistaijied are reasonable ad assessitietit is stibjeclive
all

leqililes
tile 115 of significant

judgunetits As resmili one or iliore of such mesessuiielits niav prove
nIh natelv to be incorrect which

could result iii hialige to net iiicoliie

I/edge Contiacis The
olilpmiliv

has leigllated each loreigim currency coult tact entered into as

of Juiie 30 2010 as cash blow lielge tireahized gains or losse net of taxes associated with these

contracts are included iii accitiiinlated other coiiiprehieltsive loss income on the balance sheet

Gains amid losses will oid lIe recognize iii eainiuigs in the period ill which tIle forecasted transaction

affects earnings

ccmnofate/ Oilier oinjneliensíie Loss lncome/ omprel/ensne Income Loss \ccu in ulated

otliet coinhuellcuisive loss iiicotue imiclmules ahlitioli to tui iuicoilie or net loss millrcaiizel gains

miitl losses xi1in1e1 buouti lii consolidatel stateliieiils of operations mind recorded directly into

.eparale section of sliareitolilems eqnit\ oui tIn ollsolilmltel balance sheet lliese itiirealized gains

miuid losses mire referred 10 mis other ounprelicmlsivc loss income items llie olupmnivs
acciiuiimilmtted

other ouilpIehelisive loss sliowii on the onsolilmitel l3alatice lieet mit Jutie 30 2010 mind Jutie 30

2009 consists of boreign cnrtcncv trmiuislmttiomt miiljusttiients winch are not admisted for income taxes

since the relate to indeliuiite ilivestliieuits ill iiont smilsiliaries and tIle ituircahized
gains losses

net of taxes related to the Conipmnivs foreign mirrelicv contracts rcspeciivel

Ihic coiliponents if accntiiulmttcd other olliprehiellsive loss income mis of Jntie 30 2010 2009

rid 2008 were mis follows

llItlllel 111lt 30

inwunts in i/iuIIsanis 2110 2019 2008

ttmnuhmitive foreign ilrremicv trmitislmition mliljtisllllenis S1 .839 1.442 .041

nrealized liedgitig gmliti hss net of tmi\es 3i17 22 9.533

itccimiiiulated other cotnprehiensie loss 1.482 .4f 4.492



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENWNTSContinuetl

The Companvs comprehensive income loss consists of net income loss foreign currency

translation adjustments which are not adjusted for incouie taxes since they relate to indefinite

investnhents in non-U.S subsidiaries and the unrealized gains losses net of taxes related to the

Companys foreign currency contracts

The components of comprehensive income loss for time years ended June 30 2010 2009 and

2008 were as follows

Year Ended Jnne 30

4mourmts in t/wnsnnds 2010 2009 2008

Net income loss 19.533 56163 $19901

Foreign currency translation adjustments 397 6483 95

Unrealized hedging gain loss net of taxes 379 9511 8168

Total comprehensive income loss 519.515 $3.135 $11828

Fair Value of Financial Instruments TIme Companys financial instruments include accounts

receivable accounts payable currency forward contracis short-term debt and long-term debt See

Note 10 for the fair value of the Companys senior subordinated notes The fair value of all other

financial instruments was not materially different than their carrying
value as of June 30 2010 and

June 30 2009 See Note 15

Share-Based Compensation All share-based pamcnts to employees including the
grants

of

employee stock options are rccogmzed in the consolidated financial statements based on their fair

values but only to the extent that vesting is considered probable Compensation cost for awards that

vest will not he reversed if the awards expire without being
exercised The fair value of stock options

is determined using the BlackScholcs optionpricing muonlel The fair value of the marketbased

restricted stock award is determined using Monte Carlo simulation model and the fair value of all

other restricted stock awards is based on the closing price
of the Comnpammvs common stock 5.01 par

value Common Stock omi the date of grant Compensation costs for awards arc anmortized using

the straight-line method Option pricing
model

input assumptions such as expected term expected

volatility and risk-free interest rate impact the fair value estimate Further the forfeiture rate

impacts the amount of aggregate compensation These assumptions are subjective and generally

require significant analysis and judguient to develop When estiumating fair value some of the

assumptions are based on or determined from external data and other assumptions may he derived

froni the Companys historical experience with share-based arrangements The appropriate weight to

place on historical experience is matter of judgment based on relevant facts and circumstances

The Company relies on its historical experience
and post-vested termination activity to provide

data for estimating expected term for use in determining the fair value of its stock options The

Company currently estimates its stock volatility by considering historical stock volatility experience

and other key factors The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield curremmtly available on U.S

Treasury zero-coupon issues with remaining term equal to the expected term used as the input to

the Black-Scholes model The Company estimates forfeitures
using

its historical experience which

will be adjusted over the requisite service period based on the extent to which actual forfeitures

differ or are expected to differ from such estimates Because of tIme significant amount of judgment

used in these calculations it is reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate to

change If for example actual forfeitures are lower thaim tIme Companys estimate additional charges

to net income mnay
be required

ReclassiJications To conforum to the presentation
for tIme

year
ended June 30 2010 certain

reclassifications were made to the prior years Consolidated Financial Statements and the



ELIZABETH ARDE INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

ccompanying footnotes During the
year

ended June 30 2010 the Company recorded out-of-period

djustments which relate to fiscal
years

2001 to 2009 Net sales and gross profit for fiscal
year

2010

decreased by $2.7 million and $0.9 million respectively The Company did riot adjust
tile

periods as it concluded that such adjustments were not material to the current or prior periods

onsolidated financial statements

NOTE Net Income Loss Per Share

Basic net income loss per share is computed by dividing the net income loss by the weighted

iverage shares of the Companys outstanding Common Stock The calculation of net income loss

per diluted share is similar to basic income loss per
share

except
that the denominator includes

potentially dilutive Commoii Stock such as stock options
and non-vested restricted stock For the

year ended June 30 2009 diluted loss
per

share equals basic loss
per share as the asstmmed exercise

of outstanding options non-vested restricted stock and the assumed purchases under the employee

stock purchase plan would have an anti-dilutive effect The following table represents the

onIputation of income loss per
share

Year Ended June 30

4mounts in thouSnn/s except per share data 2010 2009 2008

Basic

Net income loss $19533 6A63 $lc901

Weighted average shares outstanding 28017 27971 27981

Net income loss per basic share 0.70 0.22 0.71

Diluted

Net income loss $19533 6163 $19901

Weighted average
basic shares outstanding 28017 27971 27981

Potential comnion shares treasury method 772 1322

Weighted average shares and potential diluted shares 28789 27971 29303

Net income loss per
diluted share 0.68 0.22 0.68

The following table shows the number of shares of Common Stock subject to options
and

restricted stock awards that were outstanding for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008
which were not included in the net income per diluted share calculation because to do so would have

een anti dilutive

Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Number of shares 1821594 3310627 1117193

Includes 486.265 options to jurchase shares that were excluded as the Company was in loss

position and including themii would have been antidilutive

NOTE Restructuring Charges

In fiscal 2007 the Company commenced comprehensive review of its global business

Irocesses to re-engineer its extended supply chain distribution logistics and transaction processing

systems In May 2008 the Company announced decision to accelerate the re-engineering of its

extended supply chain distribution and logisics functions as well as the realignment of other parts



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

of its organization to better support its new business processes This initiative also included

migration to shared services model to simplify transaction processing by consolidating
the

Companys primary global transaction processing functions and the implementation of new

financial acconnting and order processing system The Company refers to this initiative as the

Global Efficiency Re-engineering initiative or sonietimes simply as the Initiative

As result of the acceleration of the Initiative the implementation of the Oracle financial

accounting and order processing system awl the
migration to shared services transaction

processing model the Company implemented restructuring plait that resulted in restructuring and

one-thue expenses including severance relocation recruiting
and temporary staffing expenditures

From
inception through June 30 2010 the Company has incurred

restructuring
and onetinie

expenses relating to the Initiative totaling SI 3.4 million before taxes which includes $7.3 million

related to the Oracle system impleumentation and S6.1 nmillion for initiativerelated restructuring

The Company currently estimates that Initiative-related expenses wilt total approximately $14.0

million before taxes consistent with its original projection
of $12 million to $14 million The

following table summarizes the restructuring costs by year incurred related to the Initiative

Year Ended June 30

4inounts in t/ionsanils 2010 2009 2008

Restructuring expenses
under the Initiative $1878 $3544 $673

Unrelated to the Initiative for the
years

ended June 30 2010 2009 amid 2008 the Company
70 incurred approxiniatelv $1.5 million $1.1 million and $2.3 million respectively of other

restructuring expenses

Aggregate amounts paid during the ear ended June 30 2010 for restructuring were $3.8

million All of the restructuring expenses discussed above are included in selling general and

administrative expenses in the Companvs consolidated stat cmnent of operations and as described in

Note 19 have not beeii attributed to any of the Companys reportable segments amid are included in

unallocated corporate expenscs At June 30 2010 aimd 2009 the Company had restructuring

liability of $0.6 million and $1.0 million respectively

NOTE New Aeeounting Standards

Subsequent Events

In February 2010 new accounting guidance was issued related to subsequent events This

guidance amended guidance previously issucl iii May 2009 regardiiig subsequent events and states

that an entity that is Securities and Exchange Conunission filer is iio longer required to disclose

the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated The adoption of this guidance did

not have an impact on the Coinpanvs consolidated financial statements

Fair aine Measurenen Is and Disclosu iec

In January 2010 the FASB issued an update to Codification Topic 820 Fair Value

Measurements ann Disclosures amending the disclosure requirenments under Topic 820 The update

requires additional disclosnres for transfers in aiid out of evels and fair value nmeasumremnents as

well as enhanced disclosures for activity in Level fair value measurements In addition the update

also clarifies existing requirements regarding tIme level of disaggregation
for assets amid liabilities and

disclosure of inluts and valuation techniques used to measure fair value TIme additional disclosure

requirements under Codification Topic 820 were effective for the Company beginning January

2010 and did not have an impact on lEe Comnpanvs comusohidated financial statenments



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Effective July 2009 the Company adopted the requirements of Codification Topic 820 for

non-financial assets an1 liabilities Adoption did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

Iii August 2009 the FASB issued an update to Codification Topic 820 that provides additional

guidance omi the fair value measurement of liabilities Specifically this update provides clarification

in circumstances in which quoted price in an active market is not available The update to

CoJification Topic 820 was effective for the Company beginning July 2009 aiid did not have an

impact on the Comnpamivs consolidated financial statements

Determining Whet/icr Inst rutnents Granted in ShareBased Payment Transactions Are

Participating Securities

In June 2008 the FASB issued an update to Codification Topic 260 Earnings Per Share that

iddresses whether instruments granted in share-based payment transactions are participating

securities plior to vesting amid therefore need to be included in the earnings allocation in computing

arnings share under the two-class mnmeihod The update to Codification Topic 260 requires

invested sharebased
ayimiemil awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to hvidends or dividend

qiiivalents whether paid or unpaid to be treated as participating securities and to he included in

the computation of earnings per
share pursuant to the two-class mniethod The revisions to

Codification Topic 260 were effective for the Company leginning July 2009 and did not have an

mnpaet on the ompanvs consolidated financial statements

Business ombinaiions

In Deceniher 2007 the FASB issued an update to Codification lopic 805 Business

Coin binalions which
significantly changed the accounting for business combinations in iiumber of

areas inclin ling the treatuleint of contingent consideration preacquisition contingencies transaction

costs restructuring costs amid income taxes revisions to Codification Topic 805 were effective

or acquisitions that occur after .Julv 2009 and did not have an impact on the Conipanvs

eonsolidatel financial statenients

Sful Li/e oJ Intangible Assets

In April 2008 the FASB issued an updnte to Codification Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill

and Other which amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension

assumptions usel to lelermnimle the useful life of recognized imilangible asset This amendment is

effective on prospective
hasis to all

intangible assets acquired and for disclosures on all intangible

assets recognlizel omm or after the leginning cf the first annual
period subsequent to December 15

2008 The amnendimmerit to Codification lopic 350 was effective for the Company beginning July

2009 amid did mlot have immaterial
inipact on the Conipanys consolidated financial statemmients
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NOTE Accounts Receivable Net

The following table details the provisions and allowances established for potential losses from

uncollectible accounts receivable and estimated sales returns in the ordinary course of lllsiIleSs

Year Ended June 30

4nounts in thousands
2010 2009 2008

Allowance for Bad Debt

Beginning balance 5340 4.502 4023

Provision 3.258 2.936 1402

Write-offs net of recoveries 2471 2.098 923

Ending balance 6.127 5.340 4502

Allowance for Sales Returns

Beginning balance 12246 11.574 12126

Provision 65.582 59.774 51191

Actual returns 58.260 59102 51743

Ending balance 19568 12246 11574

Increase in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 primarily due to certam product

discontinuations in North America Fragrance prestige department store and specialty beauty

store customers which have return rights Increases in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008

primarily related to increase in net sales to North America Fragrance prestige department store

and specialty beauty store customers that have return rights as result of the Liz Claiborne

license agreement

NOTE Inventories

The components of inventory were as follows

Juiie 30

AnoILnt in thousands
2010 2009

Raw and packaging materials 8.1f 64147

Work iii progress
30 004 30777

Finished goods 182.910 223611

Totals $271.058 $318535
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ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

NOTE Property and Equipment

Property and equqnlent is comprised of the following

June 30
Estimated

Inwiii /s in tInninunis 2010 2009 ife

Land 64 64

luiIIing and huhIling improvements 953 924 40

easeh1oll
n111rovenlents 1835 10220 15

lacIiiiiery cllupnlent furniture and fixtures and vehicles 13.922 12.067 14

oinpu1er elnjplIleIlt
afll software 5377 23.0 10

OUIIt95 aiid 1JIl fixtures 62.721 55.015

Iool iunl 11I0lIS 20315 17.786

163.579 19.137

ess accumulated depreciation 94979 78 107

68.600 41.030

Projeci in urogress 7.983 23.080

Property auui
euipuI1cu1I net 76.583 ô.-t 10

Ilalauice at June 30 2009 includes $17.8 million related to the iuuipleuuieuutatioui of hue Oracle

accounting anl orler prosmg systems

lotal
11e1reciatioul expense including deprecialion recorded iii cost of goods sold for the years

11lel .liuiie 30 2010 2009 and 2008 was $18.9 million $16.4 million and $15.3 million

respectively At June 30 2010 the Company had approximately $3200 of property and

equuinuleIut tinder capital leases

NOlE Exclusive Brand Licenses Trademarks and Intangibles Net

ii
hli

73

Weighted

Average
Estimated

Iife

It tile fi ite

18

11

17

Weighted

Average
June Estimated June 30

lnnun/s in fliousanas 2010 i.iI 2009

hZahttll Aiden braiid trademarks $122415 Indefinite 122.415

hxilutsive hranl licenses and related trademarks 84793 18 82.4 17

xlui5iVt 1rand trademarks 43535 43.202

Other
iuutatigihles1 20330 17 20.330

Xht5i\ hramn iceulses tralemarks and

iutangihles gross 271073 268364

Accuuuuiulated aruiortizatioui

Exclusive brand licenses and related

trademarks 45595 39.913
Exclusive brand trademarks 38768 36.588
Other intangibles 7266 5.542

Ixciuusive Irautl licenses trademarks and

iniangible net $179444 186.321

Prituiarily consists customer relationships customer lists and
non-coni1iete agreemitents
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At June 30 2010 the Company had goodwill
of $21.1 million recorded on its consolidated

balance sheet The entire amonnt of the goodwill in all periods presented relates to the North

America Fragrance segment The amount of goodwill
recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at

June 30 2010 did not change from the prior year end balance as the Company did not recoril any

additions or impairments during fiscal 2010

The Company has determined that the Elizabeth Arden trademarks have indefinite useful lives

as cash flows from the use of the trademarks are expected to be generated indefinitely Goodwill and

intangible assets such as the Companys Elizabeth Arden trademarks with indefinite lives are not

amortized but rather tested for impairment at least annually An animal impairment test is

performed during the fonrth quarter
of the Companys fiscal year or more frequently if events or

changes in circumstances indicate the earning value of goodwill
and indefinitelived intangibles

may not fully be recoverable There is two step process for impairment testing of goodwill The

first step
of this test used to identify potential unpairnient compares die fair value of reporting

unit with its carrviimg amount including goodwill The second step if necessary measures the

amount of the impairment by conipariiig
the estimated fair value of the goodwill and intangible

assets to their respective carrying
values If an impairment is identified the

carrvuig
value of the

asset is adjusted to estimated fair valne

During the quarter ended June 30 2010 the Company completed its annual impairment testing

of the Elizabeth Arden trademarks with the assistance of third party
valuation finn During the

quarter
ended June 30 2010 the Company also completed its annual impairment testing of

74 goodwill In assessing the fair value of these assets the Company considered the income approach

for the Elizabeth Arden trademarks and market approach I7iider the income approach the fair

valne is based on the present value of estimated fntnre cash flows Under the market approach the

fair value is based on quoted market prices
and the number of shares outstanding of Common Stock

The analysis and assessments of these assets mimic1 goodwill indicated that no impairment adjustment

was required as lie estimated fair value exceeded the recorded carrying
value Simmmilarlv ito such

adj ustmnents fin impairment of intangible assets and goodwill were recorded for tIme fiscal years

ended June 30 2009 and 2008

Due to the ongoing uncertainty in capital market conditions the Company will continue to

monitor and evaluate the expected
future cash flows of its reporting units and the long term trends

of its market capitalization for the purposes of assessing tIme carrying
value of its goodwill and

indefinitelived Elizabeth Arden trademarks other trademarks and intangible assets

Amortization expense for the years ended Jimmie 30 2010 2009 and 2008 was $9.6 million

$9.8 million and $9.5 million respectively Amortization expense based on current facts and

circmnnstances for fiscal years ending June 30 2011 2012 2013 2014 and 2015 is expected to be

$8.5 million $6.4 million $5.5 million $4.5 million and $4.2 million respectively

NOTE Short-Term Iebt

The Compammv has $325 million revolving bank credit facility the redit Facility with

syndicate of banks for which JPMorgan Chase Bank is the administrative agent which generally

provides for borrowings omi revolving basis with $25 uiillion sublimit for letters of credit Under

the terms of the Credit Facility the Couipanv may at any time increase the size of the Credit

Facility up to $375 million without entering imito format amendment requiring the consent of all of

the banks snbjeet to the Companys satisfaction of certain conditions The Credit Facility expires in

December 2012
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The relit Iacilitv is gllarallteeI by all of the Coinpanys U.S subsidiaries and is collateralized

by first priority
lieu on all of the Counpaiiys J.S. Canada and Puerto Rico accounts receivable

and U.S inventory Borrowings under ihe Credit Facility are limited to 35% of
eligible accounts

receivable and 85% of the appraised net hm1uidatioii value of time Couumpaiivs inventory as

determined pursuant to the terms of the Ciedit Facilitv provided however that from August 15 to

October 31 of each year the borrowing base may be temporarily iiicreasecl by up 10 $25 million The

Companys obligations unler the Credii Facility rank senior to the Companys 73/% Senior

Subordinated Notes due 2014 the .i/40/ enior Subordinated Notes

The Credii Facility has only one financial maintenance covenant which is debt service

coverage
ratio that ummust be maintained at not less than 1.1 to if average borrowing base calacity

declines to less thati $25 iuuillioi $35 million from December through May 31 TIme Conipanvs

average borrowing base capacil for each the quarters during fiscal 2010 did not fall below the

applicable thresholds noted above Accordii ugly the debt service coverage ratio did 1101 apply for the

eiided june 30 2010

nder time termmms of the reht Facility the Conmpauiv may pay dividends or repurchase Conimomi

Stock ii the Company maintains borrowing base
capacity

of at least 25 million from .lumne to

Noveuriber 30 and at least $35 million from leceiimber to May 31 after making the applicable

li1Ynut Time iedit Facility restricts tile Company from
incurring

addit iommal muontrade

indebtedness other than refinamicings anl ertain small amounts of indebtedmiess

UI

Borrowings uner the creIit portion of the Credit Facility bear interest at floating rate based 75

on the Applicable Margin which is deicrmined by reference to specific financial ratio At the

Companys option the Applicable Margin may be applied to either the London lnterbaiik Offered

Rate LlI3OR or tIme
pliumu rate The reference ratio for determining time Applicable Margin is

debt service coverage ratio Ihe Applicable Margin charged on il3OR loans
ranges

from .00% to

1.75% and is 0% for prime rate bails excpt that the Applicable Margin omi the first $25.0 mnilliomi

of borrowings from August 15 to October 15 of each year while the temporary increase in the

Companys borrowing base is in effect is 1.00% higher At June 30 2010 the Applicable Margin

was 1.50% for LIBOII loans and 0% for prime rate loans The onlnhitmnent fee on tile unused

portion of the Credit Facility is 0.25% Far the fiscal years endei .lune 30 2010 and 200 the

weighted average
anumual interest rate on borrowings under time Credit Facility was 2.7% and 3.3%

respectively

At june 30 201 the Company had $59.0 million in outstanding borrowings arid

approximately $4.4 mnilliomm in letters of credit out standing uiider the Credit Facility compared with

$115.0 million in outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility at June 30 2009 As of june 30

2010 the onipanv had approximately $158.6 mimillion of
eligible accounts receivable and

inventories available as collateral mmnder the Credit Facility and
remailming borrowing availability of

$99.5 milliorm The Company classifies the Credit Facility as shortterm debt on its balance sheet

because it expects to reduce outstanding borrowings over the next twelve months
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NOTE 10 Long-Term Debt

The Coiriparrv long-term deit consisted of the following

june 30

inwunts ut thousands 2010 2009

74/4% Senior Subordinated Notes due January 2014 $220000 5225.00

Termination costs on interest rate swap net 1.301 1.634

Riviera lernl Note

Total debt 218699 223.911

Less Current portioii of longterni debt 545

Total longterni debt $2 18.699 $223.366

Senior Snbou/noted iVotes In January 2004 the Company issued $225.0 iriillioii aggregate

principal ainoiiiit of 73/40/f Senior Subordinated Notes due January 2014 In February 2004 the

Company entered 11110 1111 interest rate swap agreenient to swap $50.0 million of lie oust aiidiiig

7Y% Senior Subordinated Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBO1I The swap agreeinenl

was scheduled 14 mature in February 2014 and was teruiinated March 16 2006 As resnh of this

action the Company incurred termination costs of $2.5 million The swap termination costs were

recorded as reduction to longterm debt and will be amortized to interest expense over the

ii remaining life of the 73/% Senior Subordinated Notes The Company had designated the swaf

agreement as fair value hedge

76

In May 2010 the Company repurchased $5.0 million of its 7% Senior Sulordinatel Notes at

par value In connection with this repurchase the Company incurred approximately $82000 in debt

extingnislnnent costs

The indenture pursuant to which the 73/4% Senior Subordinated Notes were issued the

Indenture provides that such notes will be senior subordinated obligations of the Coiopanv lhe

74% Senior Snhordinated Notes rank junior to all existing
arid future senior indebtedness of the

Company including indebtedness under the Credit Facility
and pan passu in right of payment to all

senior snbordiiiated iiidebtedness of the Company The Indenture generally perniits the Company

subject to tIme satisfaction of fixed charge coverage ratio and in certain cases also net iucoune

test to incnr additional indebtedness pay dividends purchase or redeem capital stock of tIme

Coinpamiv or redeem subordinated indebtedness Tire Indenture generally limits the ability of the

Conipanv to create liens merge or transfer or sell assets The Indenture also pro\itles that the

holders of the 7Ys% Senior Subordinated Notes have tile
option to require the Company to

repurchase their notes in the event of change of control in the Company as defined in the

Indenture

In connection with tIre 2006 acquisition
of certain assets of Riviera Concepts Inc Riviera

tire Company assumed ri promissory note held by Riviera in the principal amount of approximately

$3.4 million The final installment of $545000 was paid on July 15 2009

At June 30 2010 and June 30 2009 the estimated fair value of tire Companys 74/4% Seuior

Subordinated Notes and at June 30 2009 the estimated value of the Riviera Ternum Note using

available market information and interest rates was as follows

June 30

ttuounts ía tliousund/ 201t 2009

1/% Senior Subordinated Notes $216150 5193.500

Riviera lermmi Note 545
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The scheduled maturities and redemptions of longterm debt at June 30 2010 were as follows

lmommts in /Iousnnds
Year Ended June 30 Amount

2011 through 2013

2014 220000

After 2014

Total $220000

fotil scheduled mnaturil ies 10 not include approximately $1.3 million of swap termination costs

that were recorded as reduction to long-term debt and are being amortized to interest expense

over the remaining life of the 73/4% Senior Subordinated Notes

NOTE 11 Commitments and Contingencies

lhe Company has lease agreements for all of the real
property

it uses arid owns small

manufacturing facility in Soul Ii Africa The Companys leased office facilities are located in

Miramar Florida Stamford onneclicutz Bentouville Arkansas Minneapolis Miminesol and New

York New York iii the II nited States arid Australia Canada China Denmark France Italy New

Zealand Puerto Rico Singapore South Africa South Korea Spain Switzerland Taiwan and the

United Kingdom The Company also has leased distribution facilities in Roanoke Virginia and

Puerto Rico Comnpaiuvs remit expense for operating leases for the years ended Juuie 30 2010
2009 and 2008 was $20.2 million $20.7 million and $20.7 million respectively The Company
also leases distribution equipment office and computer equipment and vehicles The Company
reviews all of its leases to determine whether they qualify as operating or capital leases As of

June 30 2010 the Company has both operating and capital leases Leasehold improvements are

capitalized and amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the asset or current lease term The

Company accounts for free rent periods and scheduled remit increases on straight-line basis over the

lease term Landlord allowances and incentives are recorded as deferred rent and are amortized as

redmmci ion to rent expense over the lease termmi

The Companys aggregate minimum lase payments under its operating and capital leases and

commitments under other longiernm contractual
obligations other than longterm debt at June 30

2010 were as follows

Other

Operating Capital Long-ternm

lrnninu/s in /honsnnd/ Leases Leases Ohligations Total

2011 $18153 32 $18185

2012 13625 2711 16336

2013 9976 2711 12687

2014 7990 7990
2015 7019 7019
and thereafter 19191 19191

Total $75954 $32 $5422 $81408

Excludes approximately $4.5 million of
gross unrecognized tax benefits that if not realized

would result in cash paymnents The Company cannot currently estimate when or if tIme

paynments
will be dime See Note 12
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In connection with the August 2006 acquisition of certain assets comprising ihe fragrance

business of Sovereign Sales LLC $12 million of the purchase price was in the form of contingent

conSileration the majoritY of which was to be paid iii two installments over two years from the late

of closing if certain financial targets and other conditions were satisfied The conditions for all

installments were satisfied and the Company recognized liability of $6.3 million $5.3 million and

$0.3 million in the consolidated balance sheets at June 30 2007 June 30 2008 and June 30 2009

respectively The first installment was paid in September 2007 and the second installment was paid

in July 2008 The final installment of contingent consideration of $0.3 million was paid in

September 2009

The Company is party to number of legal actions proceedings and claims While any action

proceeding or claini contains an element of uncertainty and it is possible that the Companys cash

flows and results of
operations

in particular quarter or year could be materially affected by the

impact of such actions proceedings and clainis management of the Company believes that the

outcome of such actions proceedings or claims will not have material adverse effect on the

Companys business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

NOTE 12 Income Taxes

Income loss before income taxes consisted of the following for the fiscal years emided June 30

2010 2009 and 2008

Year Ended June 30

4tnounts in thousands 2010 2009 2008

Domestic 222 $26621 512927

Foreign 22604 12.142 34362

Total income loss before income taxes $22826 $14.479 21.435

The components of the
provision

for benefit from income taxes for the fiscal
years

ended

June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousands 2010 2009 2008

Current imicoine taxes

Federal 302 783 133

State 371 205 160

Foreign 4616 3.777 6274

Total current 5289 3199 6567

Deferred income taxes

Federal 797 9.121 $4065
State 572 1.498 1494
Foreign 1771 896 526

Total deferred 1996 11515 5033

Total 3293 8.316 1534
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hit lola illonic tax provision benefit diflers from the amount obtained

statulorv federal imicollit lax rate to ilIolmle before income taxes as follows

Year Ended June 30

14.363

7.857

20.297

7.742

8437

3718

62.414

673
30976
4482

36131

766

25517

by applying tile

8570

7095

24541

5509

7A07

2055

55177

2161
27654
3948

33763

1201

20213

2010 2009 2008

1.540 9.t 1.913 13.2

616 2.7

5.367 25.0

inioun/s I/lsn/s .F// 1iitugs Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Income lax llOVi5iOl1 Iamofit at statutory

rates 7.i39 35.0% 55068 35.0% 7.503 35.0%

Stale taxes mid of federal hejielis 101 .8 1.124 7.8 883 4.1

Tax omi foreign earnings at different rate

from statutory rate

Research and development and foreign tax

credits

liange iii IS amnl foieigll aural ion

all vance

Other

Iota

Deferred income laxes reflect the net ax effects of teniporarv differences between the
carrying

amounts of assels and hal tihit ie for finiajicial reporting umrposes and the amounts used for tax

purposes 1d operat inig
loss carnyfoiwan Is The lax effects of significant items comprisnig the

Connipamivs net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows 79

698 4.8

525 2.3
581 2.5

3293 14.4%

208 1.0

544

57

58316

3.8
0.4

139

350

1534

0.7

1.6

7.2%

As ot .Jumie to

2t10 2009
inouii Is lU I/OIISuI/S

leferre tax set

tx itllsts

tockhasetl olnpeltsat ion

\ei operating loss carrvlorwards

lii ye into iy

Research and developrilelil lax imuemitives foreign tax credits

alternative rriiininiutn tax and other tax credits

Other

ross deferred tax assets

AttOililts ivabhi

Initanigildi assets

Other

eferre tax liabilities

\aliiatiomm allowances

Lola net eleire lax assets
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The following table represents
the classification of tile Companvs net delerred tax assets and

liabilities

As of June 30

irnounts in tIwnsnids 2010 2009

Current net deferred tax assets 530.296 511.804

Noncurrent net deferred tax liabilities assets 4779 8409

Total net deferred lax assets 525.517 $20213

At june 30 2010 the OIIIIMIIWs consolidated balance sheet includes
gross

deferred tax assets

of $20.3 million from net operating
tosses toiiiirisei of $15.3 llIiIliou and $4.2 nliliiolI of U.S

federal and state net operating
losses respectively and $0.8 nnlliou of foreign net operating

losses

The need for valuation allowance against domestic deferred tax lisset was considered The

Conipany is in domestic cumulative taxable loss position of $22 million for the threeyear period

ended june 30 2010 which is considered significant evidence indicating that the Company may not

he able to realize some portion or all of these deferred taxes in the future lowever the Company

believes based on the weight of all available evidence that it is mmmore likely than not thai it will

generate sufficient domestic taxable income to realize the dommiestic net operating loss iarrvforwards

before they expire This conclusion considers available evidence hot Ii

positive
and negative

including the Conipanys past operating
results and forecast of fntnre taxable income In

determining future taxable income assumptions utilized include the anticipated amount of pretax

80
domestic operating income and enmcted tax rates The Conmpanv concluded that the positive

evidence supporting the realizability of the domestic deferred tax assets was sufficieut without

having to assume the use of
iotemttiitlly

available feasible and prmideiit tax plammimimig strategies The

assumptions utilized in forecasting pritiix income are based omi historical data umd expected

business cycles The domestic losses were generated in fiscal years 2008 and 2009 amid were mainly

attributable to expenses
associated with tile Liz Claihorne license agreement aud charges related to

the Global Efficiency Reengineering luitiative and are not considered to he reflective of the core

historical earmiings of the business In fiscal 2009 the retail 1111 consumer markets were severely

utlpacted by one of time worst holiday seasons in recent history mmmarkets have begun to recover

and the Comnpanv believes tins positive recovery trend will continue and that it will
generate liretax

profits as markets improve The Conmpanv has
strong

donmestic earnings history including

domestic pretax book income in fiscal years 2005 2006 and 2007 of $28.8 mimiliioim $18.5 million

and $7.6 million respectively These earnings were based omi consistent business model of selling

fragrances and cosmetics with stroug brand recogmmitiomm
Time Company also anticipates that

unproved pretax operating income will result from unproved gross margins due to the Global

Efficiency Reengineerirtg Initiative and the Liz Claiborne license agreement

At June 30 2010 the ommljians- had United States federal operatimlg
loss carrvforwards of $46.9

iiiillion that will begin to
expire on June 30 2024 The Company had state amid local net operating

loss carrvforwards of $80.1 million that will expire as follows approximately $0.8 million at

June 30 2011 $0.7 million at June 30 2013 59.1 million during tile priod from 2014 to 2017

and $69.5 million in 2018 and thereafter Aim equivalent aniotmimt of federal and state taxable income

would need to he
generated

ill order to fully realize tite United States federal mmd state mmet deferred

tax assets before their
expiration

In contrast to the 15 Imitermial Revenue ode muamly 15 slates do

not allow the carrvhack of net operating
loss iii any sigmmificant anmonmmt or have suspended the

utilization of net operating
losses for specific period of titume As result ill these states the

Companys net operating
loss carrvforwards are significantly higher tlmamm lie federal net operating

loss carryforward To the extent that the Company does mmot generate sufficient state taxable income

within the statutory carryforward periods to utilize the loss carrvforwards in these states the loss

carrvforwards will
expire

mmnmmsed The state and local net operatimmg loss carryforwards have an
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effective lax rate of approxitiiateiv 4.7% 1114 ollilallv believes that hasel oil us projections
of

future taxable ilicolne in its doiiesiic jIlrisliciiolls it ill realize these net operating losses 1efore

they expire

At Jtiii 30 2011 the oiiipanv had foreign lid operalitig loss calTvlor\vaflls of aplroxiiilatelv

$4.4 iiiillioii that begin to expire
iii lisca veal 11 Tue Coinpanvs ibilitv to use foreign net

operatnig
loss carrvlorwards is depeiideiit oii generating sufficient liii iire taxable iiicoiiie prior to

their
expiration

As restill au ejiiivaleilt auiiouuiit of hreigii taxable ilicollie would need to be

geileratel in oidei 10 fully realize tIle foreigti net deferred tax assets Ioweveu uiue to the ouiipaiivs

limited operating history in certain foreign jurisdictions and the uincertaiuit\ of achieving stifficietit

profits to utilize foreign net operating
loss carrvforwards iii these jurisdictiouis and tile ilearterin

expiration of certain foreign net operating
loss carrvforwarls as of

.1 uuie 30 2010 the
ounpaliv

has

recorded vaRiation allowance of ap1roxiulmtely $0 uiuiliion related to these foreign net operating

loss carryforwards and $0.2 niihhiouu oil othieu net ilel ired tax assets

In eva ia ing lie ii ee 611 va Ii ta ii oil dl iwa ice the .oi II HillY est iiiiales fiji ic xal ult ilicolne

based on management approvei forecasts ibis
process requires significant juidgulleult liv

mnanlagement
aboul nnatlers that are liv nature jimicertaiuu If future events differ siguiificamitlv froiii

the Conipanvs current forecasts valuat Oil allowance una need to be established winch could

have material adverse effect oti its results of oleratioiis
and huiaiicial Oillitioui llic Conipaiiv will

continue to monitor auui ulpiate its assuniptions
aulh forecasts of future taxable iiicoiuie and assess

the need for valuation allowance

81

ieferred tax assets relating to tax benefits of employee stork option awards have been reduced

to reflect stock option exercises during the year euided June 30 2010 Swiie exercises resulted ill tax

leIuctions in excess of previously recorlel benefit based on the otnn ahne at the tulle of grant

vindfalls Although the addilional taxe uuefit for the windfalls is reflected ill ilet opelatilig loss

carryforwards the athhitiouual lax benefit asocialed with the wnitlfalls is uiot recogmlizel lou fiuianicial

statement purposes multi1 tile deduction rethulces taxes payable Accordingly wiiidfahl
gross

tax

benefits of $1 .6 million are not reflected iii deferred tax asset The deferred tax assets will lie

recognized with an offset to additional paidui capital as the winlfall reduces current taxes PuIYalk

At June 30 2010 the Company had defrred ta asset of $3.1 niihlioii related to the Colnpanvs

marketbased restricted stock l3R onipensat ion
expemlse see \ote 14 to tile \otes to

Consolidated Financial Statenwuits At mile 30 2010 the MBR award hal not vestel uuld the

grant expires
in March 2011 If the \lBR award hoes not vest lie related It fern tax asset that

has been recognizel will be required to be written off iii March 2011 to lhuu extent there are

sufficient realized windfall crediis recognized ill paidui capital

At June 30 201 the total amount of
gross imuirecognized tax benefits was ST.8 million These

unrecognized tax bemlefits could favorably affect the effective lax rate uI fuilumme period if and to the

extent recognized The
ouiipaiiv

does llot Wect changes ill thie amniouuit of unirecogmiized tax benefits

to have significant impact oni its results of oleral ions over the next 12 mont hIs
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reconciliation of the hegniinirg and eIiiing amount ol gross unrecognized tax benefits as of

June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 was uS follows

\eav tIIll rile 30

Amounts in f/iOnsai/s 2010 2009 2008

Beginning balance SO.725 $b.033 55.337

Additions based on tax positions related to the current ear 16 .348 67
Additions for tax positions of prior years 284

Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations .. 994 989

Gross balance at June 30 2010 5.837 6.676 6.013

Interest and penalties 20 49 20

Ending balance 55.817 $6225 56.033

The Conipanv amnI its ii niIetic uihsidiuiries file imicornie tax returns with federal state and local

tax authorities witliiin tine nited State Flie oniipaiiv
also files tax returns for its international

affiliates iii various foreign jnnriditioris lire tatuite of linnitationns for tine Coinpanvs .5 felerai

tax return years renlains
openn

br die year ended lime 30 2007 and subsequent fiscal years The

year
ended June 30 2004 arid sunlse1urerni

fiscal years nemai subject to exanhiniation for various

state tax jurisdictions In additionr the onirpanlv
has sinlsilianes in various loreigni jinriIiflons that

have statutes of limitations generail\ ranging
fronru one to ten years The year enided .Ianuarv 31

UU 2002 and subsequent fiscal years rcnruainu subject to e\annnimnatiori ha various foreign jurisdictions
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The Coinipanv recoguuize initerest accrued related to inuirecognized tax benefits iii interest

expense arid related ln1iiI1i iii tire
provision

br innconuie taxes in the coilsOliiatel statenierit of

operations which is conisistenit with tine reogniitioli
of these itenlis iii

prior reporting 1iiiioils

NOTE 13 Repurelnases of Common Stock

On November 2008 the Board authorized tire Connupanv to exien1 us existing $80 million

Common Stock repurchase pruugrarnr tinrourghr \overruher 30 2010 As of uric 30 2010 the

Company had repnnrliasel 3.430.498 hiares of Courunruoru Stock on die
open

market under die stock

repurchase program at air average price
of Si 6.86

per
share at cost of $57.9 iruillioni including

sales coimnissiOns leaving $22 mullion available for additional orniniionn Stock repmnrcliases mnnler

the program During die \ear errdeul uric 30 2010 tIre
onipariv reltrrcliased 904.260 shares of

Common Stock respectively on lie
opein

nuiunrket irnnler tire stock repurchase ogim at air average

price of $16.55 arid at cost of 15.0 nuiillioin including sales conirnissioris The onnpanv

accounted for the acqurisition
of these shares unnuuler the reasurrv method

NOTE 14 Stock Plans

At June 30 2010 the Conruj aiiy had Inree active stock incentive plans one for the benefit of

noneniplovee directors of tine Cornipunnivs Board of Directors the Board the 2004 Director

Plan and two for the henrelni of eligible erniplovees and independent contractors the 2000 Stock

Incentive Plan and the 2004 Stock hnncerrt ive Plain Inn addition as of June 30 2010 stock options

granted under the Cornpanrvs 1995 Stock Option Plan arid 1995 NonEniplovee lirector Plan were

still outstanding The 1995 Stock 011 0fl Plan has expired by its terms and no fuirt her grants
of

options
will occur unnder the 1995 5t nL Optionn Plan The 2004 lirecton Plan replaced he 1995

NonEmployee Director Plan arid no Imurtluer
grants

of stock
options

will occur under tine 1995

NonEmployee Director Plan \hl five
plunnus were adupted by tire Board anol approved by tile

Companys shareholders
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The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan the 200f to el it IIa ii ithorizes the Coiiipanv to grant

awards with
respect

to total of 2.700.00 shares of oiniiioii Stock Hie stock Options
awarded

under the 2004 Incentive Plan are exercisable al aiiv jute or iii any insta ilnients as determined by

tire conipeilsalion committee of the Board at the itne of
grant

anti may be either incentive or non

1imalified
stock

options
under the Interim llevenue ode as tieterinined liv the compensation

coinruittee Time exercise trite
for Ock option grants

is c9uai to the cloiuig price
of the Common

Stock oil lie date of grant At .lruiie 30 10 2-t3.93 shares of oimuiiion Stock remained available

for
grant

tinder the 2004 Incentive Plan Iii addition at .1 tine 30 2010 4.399 shares of Common

Stock reimmairied availahie for grant
tinder time 2000 Stock Iroetit ive Plan

On August 16 2010 all orntstaudinig hiare of pcrlorntlaticehasei Ietrictel stock originally

granted on Aiigio.t 20 2007 were lorfeiie because the applicable nnnnuuliutive earililigs per
hinted

share target was riot achieved As result an alhitiorlal 26.300 diares ol ounm000 Stock became

available for grant
uuIer tIme 2004 Incentive Plant and au additional 3L00 shares of Coinnion

Stock lwciitne available nnmiler the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan

The 2004 lirector Plan authorizes die oiiintrtv to gralit liotI1ualitiel
stock

options
for up to

30.00 shares of Cotunitout Stock to imotieunplovee directors of tile ommipaniv
Each year on time date

of tIn auirninal meeting of the shareholders antI provided bitt suiIiieult itniuriber of shares remain

available tinder the 2004 lirector Plan there will atltoiilatiaiiv ho granted to each eligible director

who is reelected to the Board an option to pIIthuits 6000 shares ol Coiuitrioni Stock or such other

anuiouint as the Board deternitiutes based out onnltetitive review of comparable coullpamlies
Each

option granted wider the 2004 lirector Plait out an aluminat hiarehiolders Imleeting
dale will become

exercisalle three years from the date of grant
if swim

pelsoit
iia conitimimned to serve as director

until that date unless exercisabihitv of tin option is accelerated lilt to deat ii disability or retirement

in good standing at or after
age

70 option umiav be exercisable after the expiration
of tell years

fromim the late of grail The exercise price
vill

equal
the losing pine of the Cumnuiron Stock omi the

date of
grant

At June 30 2010 167000 shares of ouuinitoll Stock reuttainmed available for
grant

mIumleu lie 2004 lirector Plant

Iou the yeats elulel Juuute 30 2010 2009 itml 2008 total sltaneiutsed conimpensation cost

charged against
imicoumme for all stok 1datts was 548 million 52.8 nuiillioim arid S7.1 million

respectively
The tax benefit uelated to the tonii1oiisttioii

cost chiargid to lulcoutte for tire years elldeI

.Jimite 30 2010 2009 amid 2008 was a1tpioxinuiatelv
S0.7 uitiliioni 51.6 umiillionm ann1 S0 million

respect ivelv

As of June 30 2010 there were ap1mo.inimatclv S4.6 ninillioui of iintlecognuizeh ompensation costs

related to nonvested sharebased arraitgenumeumts granted uuuiden tIme Conmpanvs sharebased

connpelisatiout plans These costs are ex1teted to be ecogumized over weightedaverage period of

a1rxilltatel\
11111 \eiius

riocA Op/ions

0mm August 16 2010 the Board granted to cutiploecs
stock options for 17L700 shares of

Coumiution Stock mnider tIle 2004 lntcemmtive Plani Fhie stock options are dime to vest in equal thirds over

tltreeyeam period on tbttes that are two buisiutes days afteu the ouutpanivs financial results for

each of the fiscal veals ending June 30 201 2012 arid 2013 arc 1uibdiilv aninmoniniced butt only if

the
persout receiving the grant

is still cuiiploved tIn Coumipaui at tile tulle
vesting

The exercise

price
of those stock options

is Sl6.1 pet
lane vliichi was the closing price

of the orminnon Stock

oil the effective late of giant Ilme weighitdaverage gnauitdate fain value of options granted was

7.22 per
smite ltsel on the l3lackSchiole opt ion pricing

utmodel Time
opt oils expire ten ears fromui

the date of grunt

kent Lnth/ Jiie .30 20/0 On lii uust 17 2109 lie Board gralitel to emiiplovees stock

options
for 288.000 shares of ounrnon Stock tinnier tile 2004 lnneuitive Plait Tin stock options are

thiui to vest in equal thirds over threevt an petimh on dates that are two busiutess lays after the
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Coiiiparivs finaiicial results for each of tile fiscal years enhng June 30 2010 2011 and 2012 are

JUbIiclV announced 1111 oiil if he person receivilig
the grant is still employed by the Company at

the time of vesting The exercise
price

of those stock options is 59.33
per

share which was the

closilig price of the Con tinon Stock oii the effective date of grant The weightedaverage grantdate

fair value of 0itiolls granted was Sf 11
per

share based oii the BlackScholes optionpricing model

The options expire tell years from the late of grant

Oii Novcmler 12 2009 the late of tile Coinpaiivs most recent annual shareholders meeting

die omnpanv gralltel stock
options

for an aggregate
of 30.00 shares of Common Stock to five

nonemployee luectors under tile Coinparivs 2004 NoiiEinplovee Director Stock Option Plan In

addition tile Board ott that late granted 6.000 shares of Common Stock to art employee director

under the Colnpall\s 2004 Incentive Plait All of tile stock
options granted on Noventher 12 2009

are exercisable three wears froni tire late of
grant

if such
Emersomis continue to serve as director until

that date Tire exercoe price
of those stock

options is $13.48 per share which was the closing price

of the CoilnIloll Stock ott the tiate of grant The weightedaverage grantdate fair value of options

gIaffll was $.98 er share based on the BlackScholes
011 lomipricimlg iiiodel The opt ions expire

ten wears from the late of grant

lear En/e/ .Jire 30 2009 On August 18 2008 the Board granted to employees stock

01tiOils
for 294.600 shares of Common Stock tinder the 2004 Incentive Plan Tue stock options are

due to vest itt equal
thirds over hreevear period on dates that are two business days after the

Conmpaiivs financial results for each of the fiscal years ending June 30 2009 2010 and 2011 are

84 publicly
aiinoirnced bitt only if tire imsmt receiving tile grant is still employed by the Commipanv at

the tune of vest ilig ilie exercise iri of those stock options is $18.88 per
share which was the

closing price
of the Common Stock on the effective late of grant The weightedaverage grantdate

fair value of options granted was S7 10
per

share based on the l3lackScholes optionpricing model

The options expire
ten wears from the late of grant

On Novcimtber 12 2008 tile late of time Coulpammvs 2008 aiinual shareholders meeting the

Company granted stock options an aggregate of 30.000 shares of Conumnon Stock to five

mtoiieinplovee directors tinder the Counpanvs 2004 NonEminpiovee Director Stock Option Plamm 1mm

addition tile Board omt that late granted 6.000 shares of Coninion Stock to an employee director

tinder the omnpanvs 2004 hrucemitive Plait All of the stock
optIons granted omi Noveimiber 12 2008

are exercisable three years from tile late of
grant

if such
persons continue to serve as director until

that late Time exercise pnce of those stock oplions is Si 3.88 share winch was the closing price

of the Comnmllon Stock on the late of grant Tile weightedaverage grantdate fair value of the

options granted was $4.99 share based on the BlackSclioles
opt ionpricing model Tire

options

expire
ten ears froinu the late of grant

Jew Laded June 30 200 On August 20 2007 the Board gramited to employees stock

options for 347 150 shares of ommimmiomi Stock umlder tile 2004 Incentive Plant ihe stock
options are

hue to vest iii equal tlmirls over threewear period on dates timat are Iwo business days after tile

Comnpamivs fiirarciai results for each of the fiscal wears emidimig Jutie 30 2008 2009 and 2010 are

publicly anmtottmlcel bitt only if time
pemsomi receiving

the
grant

is still emnpiovel by tire Company al

time tulle of vesting FIle exercise price
of those stock

ojtion5
is $23.59 per sliare which was the

closing price
of the Coillimlon Stock on the effective late of grant The weightedaverage grantlate

fair value of
opt ions granted was $8.76 share based omi the BlackScholes optiollpricimig mnodel

The optiomms expire tell wears from tire late of grant

On ovemmlher 14 2007 the late of the Comnpaimys 2007 anmiual shareholders mneeting the

Company granted
stock

options for air aggregate of 30.000 simares of Comnumon Stock to five

nonemployee hrectors ummler time 2004 Director Plait and 6.000 shares of Cotnntotr Stock to an
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emphvee director under the 200f Incentive Plan All of the stock options granted on November 14

2007 are exercisable hree ears Ironi the ilate of
grant

if such persons contulue to serve as

director until that date The exercise price
of those stock

optiolls
is $24.31 per share which was the

closing price
of the oiiutioii Stock oji the date of grant weightedaverage grantdate fair value

of the options granted was .7
per

share based on the l3iackScltoies optionpricuhg model The

options expire teli ears lroiii tile date of grant

Compensation expense recorded 1r time years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 resulting

from stock
option grants to ein1ilovees and directors of the Company amounted to approximately

$2.2 million $2.4 million and $2.7 inillioii respectively

11w
option activities llnier the Companys stock option plans are as follows

Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

%eighled Veighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Beginning outsi anhing

options
3.310627 516.74 3191.393 $16.59 3.397.968 $15.31

New grants
324.000 9.79 330.600 18.34 383.150 23.66

Exercised 54.993 10.26 62216 10.73 523941 13.03

Canceieh/itxpired 10.350 23.56 149.150 19.80 65.784 18.88 85

Ending outstanding oiliotIs
3.469284 $16.36 3310.627 S16.75 3191.393 $16.59

Exercisable at efll of 1teritai
2.784.491 16.62 2.622.983 2.431.761

Weighted rage fair vail

per
share of otions granted

during the yar 4.32 6.87 8.76

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Nim mher \Vei lited Number Weighted

Outstanding Average %eighted Exercisalle Average Weighted

as of Remaining Average as of Remaining Average

Range of lone to Contractual Exercise June 30 Contractual Exercise

Exercise lrice 2010 Life Price 20t0 life Price

7.25 514.00 1.647.6 3.1 $12.07 1287.690 1.4 $12.59

$14.01 $20.00 832.868 55 $17.13 647.598 4.7 $16.63

$20.01 Over 988.726 $22.87 849.203 5.0 $22.73

3.469.284 $16.36 2.784.491 3.3 $16.62

The intrinsic value of stock option is the ainouiit which tile current market value of the

unlerlving stock exceeds the exercise priP of the option Tue intrinsic value of stock
optiolls

outstanding anti exercisable at .Juiie 30 2010 2009 and 2008 was $2.5 million $0.1 million and

$4.5 million respectively ilie total intrinsic value of stock options
exerciSei luring tile years ended

June30 2010 2009 and 2008 based impomi
the average market price during the period was

approximately Si .0 mnilliomi S0.2 million and $5.3 inillioti respectively



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC ANI SLBSIDIARIFS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The weightedaverage grantdate fair value of options granted luring the years ciided June 30
2010 2009 and 2008 was estimated oii the grant late using the l3lackSciioles optionpricing
model with the following assumptions

ear IndeI juiie 30

2010 2009 2008

Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Expected price volatility 55.0% 37.0% 32.7%

Risk-free interest rate 2.22 2.45% 2.37 3.17% 4.06 4.66%

Expected life of options in years

In February 2008 the Company accejtei tile tender of 120.8 llaIes of oIIltI1oll Stock at

fair market value of $18.72 per share representing cost of approxiniateiv 52.3 iiiillioii as pavnlent

for the exercise price of stock options exercised the olnpanvs chief executive officer as

permitted under the 1995 Stock Option Plan and auihorizel the
OII1J iclisal ion roillillittee of the

Board Tile fair market value of the tenderel shares was equal to lie closing price ol the oininon

Stock on the late that the
Coiripanv was givell notice of tIle tender of shares Tue

acquisition
of

these shares by the Company was accounted for under time treasury mitethiod

In September 2007 tile Comnipany accepted the tender of 81 .231 hiairs of otilinoil Stock at

fair market value of 526.93
ier

share
representing cost of

aptiroxilmiatelv S2.2 Illilliomi as payment

for the exercise price of stock
options

exercised tile om ripaiiv iii icf exetlil ive officer as

go permitted under the 1995 Stock Option Plan and authorized hv lie
onlpemisat ion committee of the

Board The fair market value of the tendered shares was equal to the loiIlg p11cc of the ommori
Stock on the date that tile Company was given notice of tile tender of shares amid the Imller of shares

was approved by the compensation committee of the Board hiie
ailmisiuioml of hcsc shares the

Company was accounted for under the treasury iiiethod

LFnploee 5tock Puichase Plan Ilie
onipamly ruirremil iv has ii imn dovee Stock Purchase

Plan ESPP under wlncii employees in certain countries are peimiiiticd lepOsit alter tax funds

from their wages for purposes ol
purcilasing Commmmiioii Stock at 15% iisoimnl imoin tue lowest of

the closing price
of lie Commnon Stock at either time start of lIe omit rilliI ii ml lMrol 01 the end of the

contribution period 0mm May 30 2010 and November 30 2009 jumrrliasc of omiimmion Stock

occurred uniler this plan for 61368 shares and 87.957 siiares.respectivelv lor tIme ears ended

June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 the
omnpamlv

recorded cost assoaicl with the ESPP of

approxnnateiv $0.5 million $0.4 million amid $0.5 llmiilioml reslrtivelv lIme next pnnlmtse under the

ESPP wiii be consummated on November 30 2010

/estrcted Stock

On August 16 2010 the Board granted to emmipiovees 46.400 shares of crvicihiascil restricted

stock The servicebased restricted stock will vest imi eqnai thirds over literyear Perioll on late

that is two business lays after tile Companys financial resmmlt for each of the years eiiding .Jumie 30

2011 2012 amid 2013 are pullirlv announced hut orm1 if the
person receiving the

grant
is still

employed the Conipaiiy at the time of vesting Tue fair value of lie seivicebased restricted stock

granted was based on the closing price of tile
ommmpanvs coinmmmomm stock omi the late of grant The

servicebased restricted stock is recordel as additional paidin capital iii shareholders
equity as

amnorlizat lou occurs over tile threeyear vesting jeiiod

Year Ended June .30 20/0 Omi August 17 2009 the Boauh granted to emulllovees 259.200

shares of servicebased restricted stock The servicebased restricted stock wiii vest iii equal thirds

over threeyear period on late that is two business lays after lie
oilipammvs

Financial reumiIs for
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each of the
years ending June 30 2010 2011 and 2012 are publicly announced but only if the

person receiving the grant is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting The fair value of

the service-based restricted stock granted was based on the closing price
of the Companys common

stock on the date of grant The service-based restricted stock is recorded as additional paid-in

capital in shareholders equity as amortization occurs over the three-year vesting period

Year Eric/ed June 30 2009 On August 18 2008 the Board granted to employees 117800

shares of performance-based restricted stock and 121133 shares of service-based restricted stock

All or part
of the performance-based restricted stock will vest on date that is two business days

afier the Companys financial results for fiscal 2011 are released to the public but only if the

person receiving
the

grant
is still employed by the Company and ii the Company achieves

cumulative earnings per
diluted share target

The service-based restricted stock will vest in equal

thirds over three-year period on date that is two business days after the Companys financial

results for each of tile fiscal
years ending June 30 2009 2010 and 2011 are publicly announced

but only if the person is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting The fair value of the

restricted stock granted was based on the closing price of the Common Stock on the date of grant

The restricted stock is recorded as additional paid-in capital in shareholders equity as amortization

occurs over the three-year vesting period

Year Ended June 30 2008 On August 20 2007 the Board granted to employees 68700

shares of performance-based restricted stock and 80300 shares of service-based restricted stock All

or part
of the performance-based restricted stock will vest on date that is two business days after

the Companys financial results for fiscal 2010 are released to the public but only if the person

receiving the grant is still employed by the Company and ii the Company achieves cumulative

earnings diluted share
target

The service-based restricted stock will vest in equal thirds over

three-year period on date that is two business days after the Companys financial results for each

of the fiscal years ending June 30 2008 2009 and 2010 are publicly announced but only if the

persot is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting
The fair value of tIme restricted stock

granted was based on the closing price of the Common Stock on the late of grant TIme restricted

stock is recorded as additional paid-in capital in shareholders equity as amortization occurs over the

three-year vesting period

sununary of the Companys restricted stock activity for the year ended June 30 2010 is

presented below

Weighted

Average
Shares Grant late

Restricted Stock 000 Fair Value

Non-vested at July 2009 842 $18.79

Granted
259 9.33

Vested 99 $18.52

Forfeited 111 $15.15

Non-vested at June 30 2010 891 $16.52
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iii March 2005 the Company granted to employees 410.800 shares of MBRS The MB1IS will

only vest if the Companys total shareholder return
surpasses

tile total shareholder return of the

Russell 2000 Index over three four five or six-year period from the date of grant in which case

the MBRS will vest at that time As of Jnne 30 2010 the MBRS had not vested If the grant does not

vest in March 2011 the shares will be forfeited Upon adoption of FAS 123R on July 2005 the

Company revalued tile MBRS using Monte Carlo siimilation model using tile assumptions

presented below

Three Mouths Ended

Septeruher 30 2005

Expected dividend yield 0.00%

Expected price volatility 40.00%

Risk-free interest rate 3.72%

Derived service period in years

Compensation expense for tue
years ended June 30 2010 and 2008 resulting from all

restricted stock
grants to employees of tile Company amounted to approximately $2.1 million and

$3.9 million respectively Compensation expense for the
year

ended Juiie 30 2009 related to all

restricted stock
grants was insignificant During the year eiided Junc 30 2009 the Conipany

reversed $1.7 million in previously recognized share-based compensation relating to the

performance-based restricted stock granted in August 2007 and 2006 In addition by the end of

fiscal 2009 the Company also reversed all share based compensation cost related to the August 2008

performancebased restricted stock grants that had been recorded in earlier interini periods during
fiscal 2009 as the Company determined that the vesting of shares under the August 2006 2007 and

2008 performance-based restricted stock grants was not probable

NOTE 15 Fair Value Measurements

Accounting standards define fair value as ihe price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer liability in tile principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in

an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date The accounting

standards also have established fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs to valuation

techniques used in measnring fair value into three broad levels as follows

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either

directly or indirectly

Level Unobservable inputs based on die kunpanvs own assinuptions

The Companys derivative assets and liabilities are currently composed of foreign currency

contracts Fair values are based on market
prices or determined using valnation models that use as

their basis readily observable Illarket data that is actively quoted and all be validated through

external sources including independent pricing services brokers and mimarket transact ions

The following table
presents the fair value hierarchy for those of die Coin1lallvs financial assets

and liabilities that were measured at fair value on recurring
lasis as of june 30 2010

iimouritc in t/ioosinI level level i.evel Total

Assets

Foreign currency contracts $50-i $504
Liabilities

Foreign cnrrency contracts S145 $145
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As of june 30 2009 the Companys foreign currency contracts were measured at fair value

tinder Level as an asset of $0.5 millioll and as liability of $0.4 million See Note 16 for

discussion of the Comnpanvs loreign currenc\ contracts

Accounting standards require
nonfniaucial assets and liabilities to be recogllizeI at fair value

subsequent to initial recognition
when they are deemed to be otherthantemporarily impaired As of

June 30 2010 the Comnpaiiv
did not have any nonfinancial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value

NOTE 16 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company operates
iii several foreign countries which exposes it to market risk associated

with foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations The Companys risk management policy is to euler

into cash flow hedges to reduce jortion
of the exposure of the Companys foreign subsidiaries

reveuuues to fluctuatioiis in cnrreuicv rates uing foreign currency forward contracts Company

also enters into cash flow lmelges portion
of its forecasted inventory purchases to reduce the

exposure of its Canadian and Australian suljicliaries cost of sales to such fluctuations Additionally

when appropriate the Company enters iiito and settles foreign currency contracts to reduce the

exposure of the Comnpauvs foreign subsidiaries balance sheets to fluctuations in currency rates The

principal currencies hedged are llritish potitids Euros Canadian dollars and Australian dollars The

Company does not enter into derivative financial contracts for speculative or trading purposes

Companys derivative financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at fair

value deterniined using pricing
models based on niarket prices or determined using valuation models 89

that use as their basis readily ohservable market data that is actively quoted and can he validated

through external sources imicluding iudependent pricing services brokers and market transactiolis

Cash flows from derivative financial instruments are classified as cash flows from operating

activities in the consolidated stateitieuits of cash flows

Foreign currency contracts used to hedg forecasted revenues are designated as cash flow hedges

rhese contracts are used to hedge forecasted subsidiarieW revenues generally over approximately 12 to

18 inoitths Changes to fair value of the foreign currency contracts are recorded as component of

accumulated other coinprelmeutsive income loss within stockholders equity to the extent such

contracts are effective and are recognized itt net sales in the period in which the forecasted tramisactioul

affects earnings or the transactions are no longer probable of occurring Changes to fair value of any

contracts deenied to be ineffective would be recognized in earnings immediately were

aniounts recorded iii fiscal 2010 2009 or 2008 relating to foreign curreticy contracts usel to hedge

forecasted revenues resulting front hedge ineffectiveness As of June 30 2010 the Couipanv had

notional anmounts of 15.1 mnilhioum British pounds under foreign currency contracts used to hedge

forecasted revenues that expire
between July 31 2010 amid May 30 2011

Foreign currency contracts used to hedge forecasted cost of sales are designated as cash flow

hedges these contracts are mused to hedge forecasted Canadian and Australian subsidiaries cost of

sales generally over approxiulialely 12 Ic 18 months Changes to fair value of the foreign currency

contracts are recorded as commiluoneut
of accumulated other comprehensive incomne loss within

stockholders equity to the extent such contracts are effective and are recogmlizel in cost of sales iii

the period in which the forecasted trauusact ion affects earnings Changes to fair value of any

contracts deemumed to he ineffective would he recognized in earnings immediately There were imo

amounts recorded in fiscal 2010 2009 cr 2008 relating to foreign currency contracts used to hedge

forecasted cost of sales resudlimug from hedge ineffectiveness As of June 30 2010 the Comnpammv
had

notional amounts of 6.8 ummilliomu anadiatm dollars and 7.9 million Austrahiami dollars mnmder foreign

currency contracts used to hedge forecasted cost of sales that expire between July 31 2010 and

May 30 2011



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

When appropriate the Company also enters into and settles foreign curreiicv contracts for

Euros British pouiids and Canadian dollars to reduce exposure of the Coiiipanvs foreign

subsidiaries balance sheets to fluctuatioiis in foreign currency rates Iliese contracts are used to

hedge balance sheet exposure generally over one month and are sell led mefore the emmJ of the month
in which they are entered into Changes to faii value of the lorward contracts are recognized in

selling general and admiiiistrative expense iii the period iii which lime contracts expire For the years

ended June 30 2010 and 2009 the Company recorded credit of .3 niilliori and $3.3 million

respectively in selling general and administrative
expenses

related to these contracts For the
year

eiided june 30 2008 the Coiiipanv recorded charge of 52.6 million iii selling general and

administrative expenses As of June 30 2010 there were mio such foreign currency contracts

outstanding There were mio amounts recorded in fiscal 2010 2009 amid 2008
relating to foreign

currency contracts to hedge subsidiary balance sheets
resulting from hedge inellectiveness

The
following tables illustrate the fair value of

outstanding foreign currency contracts and the

gains losses associated with the settlement of these contracts

Fair Value of lerivative Instruments

Asset Ierivatives liability Derivatives

ilinounis in t/wusunds As of June 30 201 As of June 30 2010

Balance Balance
Sheet Fair Sheet Fair

Location Value Location Value

Derivatives designated as effective hedges

Foreign Exchange Contracts Other assets $504 Other pavables $145

Total

At June 30 2009 the Companys foreign currency contracts were measlmrel at fair value under

Level as an asset of $0.5 million and as liability of S0.4 million

Gain Loss Recognized on Derivatives in Other Goinprehensive Income Loss Xe of Tar

Lffective Portion

Year Ended June 30
Amounts in t/ousand.s9 2010 2019 2008

Currency ContractsSales 745 $8.9-t4 57972
Currency ContractsCost of Sales 366 567 196
Total 5379 S9.511 $81o8

Gain Loss Reclassified from Accumulated Oilier Gompreliensive Income into Income Effective

Portion

Year Fnded June 30

4mnounts in thousands 2010 2009 2008

Currency ContractsSales 766 514.124 58854
Currency ContractsCost of Sales 662 852 620
lotal 104 514.976 $9474

Recorded in net sales on the consolidated statements of income
Recomded in cost of sales on the consolidated statements of income
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NOTE 17 Quarterly Data Unaudited

Net sides

Gross proht

Income Loss froni operations

Net ilicorrie loss

Income loss per
common share

Basic

Diluted

June 30
2009

$212562

90820

38
3609

0.13

0.13

Fiscal Quarter Ended

March 31 December 31
2009 2008

$203471 $370005

86557 150475

5115 24800

3704 13666

0.13

0.13

September 30
2008

$284187

105303

9313
12516

NOTE 18 Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

Ihe lollowing condensed financial statements as of Jtmne 30 2010 and Jimmie 30 2009 and for

the years eiided June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 show the consolidated financial statements of the

Coiiipaiiv
and in separate

fimiancial statements the financial statements of iliose subsidiaries that

are guarantors of the 7/4% Senior Subordinated Notes plus in each case the financial statements

of nonguarantor entities ehimiiiiiation adjustments and the consolidated total The Companys

subsidiaries DF Enterprises Inc FD Management Inc Elizabeth Arden International Holding

Inc Elizabeth Arden Financing true RDEN Management Inc and Elizabeth Arden Travel Retail

Inc. are guarantors
of the 73/4% Senior Subordinated Notes Equity income of time guarantor

snbsiliaries is included in other expense income net All subsidiaries listed in this note are wholly

owned sulsidiaries of the Company and their guarantees are joint
and several full anl

unconlilioflal All iriforniation presefltel
is iii thousands

Condensed consolidated quarterly
and interim imiforniation is as follows iinonnts in

housands except /PI share data

Fiscal Quarter Ended

June 30 March 31 December 31 September 30
2010 2010 2009 2009

$228243 $217026 $393345 $265164

104218 10181 174324 15620

3664 1023 36483 5668

2293 3856 21056 40

0.08 0.14 0.75

0.08 0.14 0.73

Net sales

Cross profit

Loss Income from operations

Net loss iiicoimie

Loss income per comnion share

Basic

liluted

RI
liIJ

91

0.49 0.45
0.48 0.45

of Page Intentiomially
Left Blank



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Balance Sheet

As of June 30 2010

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 26881
Accounts receivable net 170.067
Inventories 271058
Intercompany receivable

Deferred inconie taxes 33496
Prepaid expenses

and other

assets 58.892

Total current assets 560394

Property and equipment net
__________

76583

Other Assets

Investment in subsidiaries 312467
Exclusive brand licenses

trademarks and
intangibles

net 25752
Goodwill 21054
Debt financing costs net 3509
Other 582

________
Total other assets 363364

____________ ____________

Total assets $81269
________ ________ _________ ________

LIABILITIES AND
ShAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Short-term debt 59000 59000
Accounts payable trade 78624 98441
Intercompany payable 37499
Other pavables and accrued

expenses 49259
________ ________ _________

Total current liabilities 224.382
_________ _________

Long-term debt 218699
Deferred income taxes and other

liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders Equity
Common stock 319 319
Additional paidui capital 297137 297137
Retained earnings accumulated

deficit 118946 118946
Treasury stock 62.303 62.303
Accumulated other

comprehensive loss 1482
_________ _________ __________

1.482
Total shareholders

equity 352617
__________ __________ ___________

352617

Total liabilities aiid

shareholders
equity

7y4% Senior
Subordinated

Non- Notes

Company Guarantors Cuarantors Eliminations Total

6349 20515 17

85759 84308
189287 81771

52556 9481 235795 297.832
30.726 2770

31411 27034 447

396088 225879 236259 297832
... 53017 23566

9136 321603

92

179444
21.054

3509
2487

206494

$843471

321596

619428

306.976

15

306961

147957

157.093

$393.352

218969

218969

218969

187161

12778

5735

1898

7633

$257078

19817

50508

47155

117480

1514

118994

9136

130309

1361
138084

16771

459852

96429

253870

218.699

18285

306961 490854

196.297

117.531

1361

174383 312467

$393352 $619428 $843.47$812469 $257078



Balance Sheet
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

As of June 30 2009

Curreilt Assets

Cash arid cash equivalents

Accounts receiValle net

liiveiitories

Intercoinpaiiv
receivabl

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid expeiises and other

assets

Total current assets

Properly aiid equipment net

Other Assets

Investment iii subsidiaries

Exclusive brand licenses

tradeniarks and intangibles

nd

Goodwill

Iebt financing costs tiet

Other

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Short-term debt

Accounts payable trade

intercompany payable

Other pavables
and accrued

expenses

Current portion
of longterm

debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes and other

liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders Equity

Common stock

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings accumulated

deficit

Treasury stock

Accumulated other

comprehensive loss

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and

shareholders equity

734% Senior

Subordinated

Non- Notes

Company Guarantors Guarantors

1936 20.969

104939 85.334

225721 92.814

47704 4.632

15729 902

35794 13.649

431823 216.496

42990 21.120

298411 9.136 307547

28967
21054

4705
12252

________ ________ _________

365389
________ ________ _________

$840202
________ ________ _________

23102

190273
318535

14827

50024

596761

64110

$115000
121.413

316

285847

99413

47334

1464
336778

ASSETS

TotalEliminations

322155

322155

197

269.819

581

270597

6.598

1.146

5.452

243.068

18461

71042

ii
li1

93

150.756

11

159.903

$430500

251076

186321
2105
4705

11124

307540 223204

5629.695 $884075

$115000
102952

9.165

39600 33593

545

267262

223.366

12796

503424

331.283

73192

545

251076 331284 310150

223.366

13781

251076 331284 547297

123096

985

124081

316
285.847 9136 197411 206547

99.413 111193 17987 93206
47.334

1464
336.778

1342
118987 179424

1342

298411

$430500 S629695 $884075$840.202 $243068



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30 2010

Net sales

Cost of goods 5011

Cost of sales

Depreciation related to cost of

goods sold

Total cost of goods

sold

profit

Selling general
and

adiiiiiiistrative costs

Depreciation and amortization

Income from operations

Other expense income
Interest expense income
Debt extinguishment

charges

Other

Income loss before income

taxes

Benefit from provision for

income taxes

427.762

23419

44793

21885

82

22826

3.293

19.533

Company

$670.321

Non

$433456

7t/4% Senior

Subordinated

Notes

$13184

Eliniinations

13184

405565 197198

4428 612

total

$1 103.777

409993

260328

243207

11500

5621

197810

235646

198965

8852

27829

602.763

5.040

607.803

13184 13184 495.974

13184

21822 754

82

33160 5113

16877 21962

1226
3067

________

11343

691

3722 24325

8312 24325

3103

5209 $24.325

2656

19533

2846

19116Net income



ELIZABETU ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES To CONSOLIDATE FINANCI AL STATEMENTS Continued

Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30 2009

74/4% Senior

Subordinated

Non- Notes

unipa ny Cuarantors

Net sales 652.41 S-f 17.484 S1247i

Cost ol goo Is 5011

Cost of sales 423863 208791

Depieciat loll related to lost of

goods sold 3.8iS
___________ _________ __________

lot iI 051 of goois

Gross prolit

Selling general am

almn.ustrai lye 0515

Depreciation
ahll ailiorl izat lull

Loss iiic hue Ironi
operal toils

tlier expeiise imicomime

Interest expense income
Other _____ ______

Loss ineollie lefore iI1onle

taxes 22160 11.344

Benefit from provision
for

iflCOiil taxes

Fiiiiunations

$12.471

Total

1070.225

632654

4416

637070

12.471 12.471 433155

12471

571

209.362

208122

185689

7282

15151

1038

2769

427708

225033

229.179

11 i47

15593

24770

18203

1.319
3013

10777

994
3586

401078

21742

10335

24814

11848

15997

6.163

8185 11.848 14479

2.881

8.463

4800

3385 $1 1.848

8316

6163Net loss inconie



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30 2008

Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Cost of sales

lepreciation related to cost of

goods sold

Total cost of goods

sold

Cross profit

Selling general and

alnhinistrative costs

Depreciation and amortization

Loss income from operations

Other expense income
Interest expense income

UI
Other

Income loss before income

taxes

Benefit from provision for

iiicoine taxes

14776 392320

20523

49030

27595

34473

21435

1534

S34473 19901

Company

$685351

Non
.uarantors

$455724

7m/4% Senior

Subordinated

Notes

uarantor

$14 776

Eli ination

$14.776

465558 209.399

3598 647

Total

$1141075

674957

4245

679202

14.776 14.776 461873

469156

216195

206590

10924

1319

27569

39862

210.046

245.678

20 1.881

6638

37.159

1.602

771

1.375
2.961

13.190

1.576
4.618

10974 34786 10.148 34473

8927 6.800 3661

19901 27.986 6.487Net iiicome



ELIZABETH ARIWN INC AND SUBSIIIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30 2010

7/4% Senior

Subordinated

Noti Notes

Company Guarantors Cuarantors ElimiHations Total

OperatiHg activities

Net cash jrvilel In iiscl iii

operating activities 91757 37727 515.543 $18 $1 13959

Investing activities

Additions to ropertv and

equiplileul 25.580 9808 35.388

Ac9iiisitioii
of liieiise 111 other

333 333

Net cash used iii invest jug activities 25.913 9808 35721

Financing activities

Payments on sliortteriii debt 56000 56000
Payments on longterimi debt 545 545
Repurchase of senior silhordiuatel

notes 5.000 5000
Payments under capital lease 1927 1927
Repurchase of coniinoii stock 13779 13.779
Proceeds from time exercise ol stock

options
1.591 1591

Proceeds froui time i5511iIIe of

connuon stok tinder ESPP 323 1323

huancing lees paid

Net change ill inlerolnpanv

obligations 13028 28373 5.3o3 18
Net cash used in lro%i

miemi by

financing activities 61 .309 28373 15363 18 74337

Effect of exchange rate changes oil cash

and cash eIuivalelits 122 122
Net increase decrease iii cash and cash

equivalents 4.413 454 180 3779

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year
1.936 20969 197 23102

Cash amid cash eqmvalents at end of

year 6349 20515 17 26881



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30 2009

Operating activities

Net cash provided by operating

activities

Investing activities

Additions to property
and

equipment

Acquisition of licenses and other

assets

Net cash used in investing

activities

Financing activities

Payments on short-terni debt

Payments on long-lerni debt

Payments under capital lease

Repurchase of common stock

Proceeds from the exercise of

stock options

Proceeds from the issuance of

common stock under ESPP

Financing fees paid

Net change in intercompany

obligations

Net cash provided by used in

financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes oil

cash and cash equivalents

Net decrease increase in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of
year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

year

26330

5333

31663

4.000

1149
2009
1566

668

L390

863

734% Senior

Subordinated

Non Notes

Company Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Total

18697 15217 997 2075 36.986

15217 11.113

5333

20550 11113 ______ _______

4000
1149
2009
1566

668

1390

863

8919 5936 908 2.075

1390 5936 908 2075 7529

1088 1088

1551 1832 89 3294

3487 22801 108 26396

197 231021936 20969



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEI FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30 2008

7% Senior

Subordinated

Non Notes

ompany Cuarantors Cuarantors Eliminations Total

Operating activities

1\ei cash used ii provided by

operatilig iotivities 10.187 26382 $7059 $1 099 8037

Investing activities

AdiitiOlIS to plopetty and

911iJ1111t 1355 6.800 22155
Acquiisii loll of hinses fli 01 tier

assets 6.433 6433
Net cash ilseh in ilvest lug

activities 21.788 6800 28588

Financing activities

Proceeds houui shioulleruui debt 1.36 2136
Paviiients on loligteruul debt 1.227 1227
Repurchiac of couiimoii stok 7.439 7439
Procceis froiti till xenise of

stock options 2378 2.378 99

Procee Is from lie issuIallc of

coiiuiuioui sIOk timier lII .. 1.719 1719

Net ciiaiige iii iuileuuoiiifiaiiv

ohiigaiioiis 11.52 19782 7159 1099

Net cash
provide used iii

financing activities 28315 19782 7159 1099 16791

Effect of exchange rate changes on

ash and cash e1iuivaleuIls 131 131
Net decrease increase iii call and

cash equivalents 3.791 200 100 3891
Cash aIli iasli eqiiivaleiii at

begiriiiiiig of year 7278 23001 30287

Cash and cash
iulivaleults at cud of

year 3487 22801 108 26396

NOTE 19 Segment Iata and Related Information

Reportable operating segments as defined by Codification Topic 280 Segment Reporting

include components of an enterprise
about which

separate
financial information is available that is

evaluated regUlarly by the cluef
operating

decision maker the Chief Executive in deciding
how to

allocate resources and iii asessmg performance As result of the similarities in the procurement

marketing and Iistrilution
processes

for all of the Companys products much of the information

provided in the ioiisoiidated financial statenierits is siuiiilar to or the same as that reviewed on

regular basis the Chief Executive



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

At June 30 2010 our operations were organized into the following reportable segments

North America Fragrance The orthi Anierica Fragrance segment sells the Companys

portfolio of owned licensed and distributed fragrances to department slores niass retailers

arid distributors in the United States Canada and Puerto Rico ihis segment also sells the

Companys Elizabeth Arden products in prestige department stores in Canada and Puerto

Rico and to other selected retailers This segment also includes the Companys direct to

consumer business which is comprised of its Elizabeth Arden branded retail stores arid

global e-cornmerce business

International The International segment sells the Companvs portfolio ol owned and

licensed brands including the Elizabeth Arden products in approxnuatelv 00 countries

outside of North America through perfumeries boutiques department stores and travel

retail outlets worldwide

Other The Other reportable segment sells the Companys Elizabeth Ardeit products in

prestige department stores in the United States and through die Red Door heana salons

which are owned and operated by an unrelated third party
that licenses the Elizabeth

Ardeii arid Red Door trademarks from the Company for use in its salons

Commencing July 2010 our operations were reorganized into two reportable segments

North America arid International The
portion

of tile Companvs business operations that sells

Elizabeth Arden products in prestige department stores in the United States and through the Red

Door beauty salons has been consolidated with the North America Fragrance segment to create the

100
North America segment

The Chief Executive evaluates segment profit based upon operating income which
represents

earnings before income taxes interest expense and depreciation amid amortization charges The

accounting policies for each of the reportable segments are the same as those described in Note

General Information and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies The assets and liabilities of

the Company are managed centrally and are reported internally in the sanie manner as the

consolidated financial statements thus rio additional information regarding assets and liabilities of

the Companys reportable segnients
is produced for the Chief Executive or included herein

Segment profit loss excludes depreciation
and amortization inlerest expense debt

extinguishment charges consolidation arid elimination adjustments and unallocated
corporate

expenses which are shown in the table below reconciling segment profit loss to consolidated net

income loss before income taxes Included in unallocated corporate expenses are employee

incentive costs ii restructuring charges iii costs related to the Initiative and iv costs related to

the Liz Claiborne license agreenient These expenses are recorded in unallocated corporate expenses

as these items are centrally directed arid controlled and are not included in internal mmreasures of

segment operating performance The Company does not have any intersegmnemit sales



ELIZABETH AR DEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEI FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The following table is comparative sununary of the Companys net sales and segment prolit

by reportalie segment for tile fiscal years ending June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Year Ended June 30

ilinounts ii t/wusunIs

Segment Net Sales

North America Fragrance

Internaliotial

Other

Total

Reconciliation

Segment Net Sales

Less

Unallocated Sales Allowances

Net Sales

Segment Profit

North Ammierica Fragratice

lnteriiatiorial

Other

Total

Recomiciliat ion

Segment Profit

Less

Depreciation and Amortizaiion

Interest Expense

Consolidation and Fluninatiomi Adjustments

Unallocated Corporate Expenses

Income Loss Before income Taxes

672990 662.235 688807

384447 366.361 400.689

46340 41629 54799

$1103777 $1070225 1144.295

28459 26.158 24.768

21885 24814 27595

231031 16.469 15141

326491 4l407 41463s

22826 14479 21435

Amounts shown for the year ended june 30 2010 include $5.5 million related to lower than

normal
pricing charged to lie North America Fragrance segment for certain sales of inventory

by that segment that were undertaken at the direction of corporate rallier than segment

nianagenient

Ijnallocaied
corporate expenses include employee incentive costs ii restructuring charges

iii costs related to the Initiative and iv costs related to the Liz Claihorne license agreement

Excluding items addressed in footnotes through below unallocated
corporate expenses

for the year ended June 30 2010 incieased as compared to June 30 2009 and 2008 prinmarilv

due to higher incentive compensation costs

Amounts for the year emided June 30 2010 include $1.9 million of
restructuring eXpelises

related to the Initiative ii $1.5 million of restructuring expenses not related to the initiative

iii $3.9 million of expeiises related to the implementation of an Oracle accounting and order

processing system and iv $0.1 mnillicn of debt extinguishment costs

In May 2008 we entered into an exclusive longterm global licensing agreement hr the Liz

Claihorne fragrance hrands which became effective on june 2008 Aniouiits shown for time

year ended June 30 2009 iniciude $23.3 iriillion of
expenses $18.9 million of which did hot

require flue misc of cast related to our Liz Claiborne license agreement due to Liz Claiborne

inventors- that was purchased at higher cost prior to the June 2008 effective late of the license

agrecinemit arid transition expenses ii $3.5 inilliomi of restructuring expenses related to the

2010 2009 2008

$1103777 1.070225 1144.295

3220

$1070225 $1141075$1103777

114474

17250

2802

128922

107289

2232
10688

94369

116855

16997

3.450

130402

128922 94369 130402
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Initiative iii $1.1 million of restructuring expenses not related to the Initiative and iv $3.4

million of
expenses

related to the imnpienientation of our Oracle accounting and order processing

svstei mi

Auionnts shown for the year
ended June 30 2008 include $27.0 million of expenses

nichidimig unallocated sales allowances and product discoutimiuation charges related to the Liz

laihorne license agreenient ii $0.7 million of restructuring expenses related to the Initiative

and iii 52.3 million of restructuring expenses not related to the Initiative

tIme year ended june 30 2010 the Company sold its products ill approximately 100

contitries outside the United States through its international affiliates and subsidiaries with

o1meral ions headquartered in Geneva Switzerland and through third
party

distributors The

Coinpaiivs nitenialional operations are subject to certaiii risks including political instability in

ettiin legions
of the world and diseases or other factors affecting customer purchasing patterns

econotimic amid polilical consequences of terrorist attacks or the threat of such attacks arid

fhtictualiomis iii foreign exchange rates that could adversely affect its results of operations See

Iteni Ilisk Factors The value of internatioual assets is affected by fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates For discussion of foreign currency translation see Note

The Conipanvs consolidated net sales by principal geographic areas and principal classes of

products are sununarized as follows

Year Ended June 30

tmounts in thousands
2010 2009 2008

\et sales

limited States 670321 652741 685351

Kingdom 70257 73560 85710

Ioreign other than United Kingdom 363199 343924 370014

Total $1103777 $1070225 $1141075

Classes of similar products net sales

Fragrance
854000 835344 845394

Skin care 182996 175167 217628

Cosmetics 66781 59714 78053

Total $1.103777 $1070225 $1141075

limlormuatiomi concerning consolidated long-lived assets for tile U.S and foreign operations is as

Is illows

June 30

tnounts in thousands
2010 2009

Long-lived assets

muted Statest $247780 $243766

Foreign2 29301 27719

Total $277081 $27L485

Primarily exchmsive brand licenses trademarks and imitangibles net and
property

and

pmipumemit net

Primmnarilv property
and equipment net



ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
ANI FINANCIAL IISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CoNTROLS ANI PHOCEIURES

Our liairinaii President and Iiiel Ixeciitive Officer and our Ixeciitive Vice Presiient and

Chief Financial Officer who art hit nuicipal executive oihcer and principal tiiiaiicial officer

respectively have evaluated the effectiveness anti operation of our disclosure controls and

procethires as tleluleI iii Rules 3ai .t anti ad1e of tile ecirrilies ltxchaiige Act of 1934 as

arneniti as of tli eiiti of the period overeti liv this tiiiarterlv report the Fvaiuanon late
Based upon such evaltiatioti the have totitluded that as of the Ivaliiation Date our disclosure

controls atiti proceIIIres are flilittiolling ellectivelv

We coitipieted tIle first phase of lilt ilnpleilieritatioii of an Oracle financial accounting system

general ledger anti atollllts iotyaltlt iii July 2009 awl we conlletel the
renlainillg portion of the

financial accounting system as well as an order
processilig system iii April 201 Both phases of this

signilicatit project were toliipletei ill ittrdalice will our projectetI tmineiine and oii hudget As part

of this imnplelnelitationi we also migrated to shared services model for our primnar global

transaction protessing fnimicliotis As rsiiit of these activities internal controls related to user

security accolnit structure and liiemartlmv svslelii reporting and approval protetlures have been

miiodifietl and relesiglietl to toimformii with alit1
support

tilt new financial actouliting awl order

processing svsteum amId lie new sliaret services Inlodel Managenieni review uil evaluation of the

lesigmi of key controls iii tilt lit\ Oracle financial accounting system anti ortier
processing systeiri jj

and the acciiratv of the tlala couvtrsioil that took 1dt tiliring the implelnentalionl did not uncover

control tieficienity or conilujiatioti of oiltlol dtficieiicies that nianagermlellt helieves meets the 103

lthnitioml of Iilalelial weakmies iii ilitermlal 0111101 over titiamicial
reporting

There liii ye teem 110 lie tb aim ges iii nil in tern coal ro over fi na lit report
ii

ig urilig our

111051 recent fiscal t1mlarttr that liavt iiiateriahly affetttd or are liktiy to materially affect our

ititermial control over financial reporting

Mammagemiieiits report on our imlierilal control over financial reporting as such terni is defined in

Rules 13a Tf and ti Tf untiei the Itxchamigt Act is inicludei in our Financial Statements in

item untier lit healing Report of .tIaaaguunt Re/ot on Internol Contiol Ote linancial

Reporting anti is hereby iiicorptratetI liv reference The related
report

of our iiidepemident registered

public accounting firm is also inclimdetI iii our Financial Statements ill Item untler the heading

Report oJ fflth/efu/eJit Regis tee/ Pu 1/ic coon hog liu

ITEM 911 OTHER INFORMATI ON

Norit

PART III

ITEM 10 IIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We Ii ave Ioj ted Si tii itnt dt of Ft hmics for the irect ors mit xecm it ive an Finance

Officers that applies to our tiirtctors our hief executi officer our chief financial officer and our

other executive officers anti fimiatict offitem Time frill text of this Code of Ft Imics as apprttved liv our

hoard of directors is pmiltlislieti oii our wehsite at www.elizahethardemi.comii nntlei the section

Corporatt Info Immvesltr Rclatittmis Corporate Coverimatice Code ttf Ftliics \te intend to

disciose future aiiiemidintiits to antI vaivtr ttf tile provisions tif this Cotle ttf Itthics on our wehsite



The other information required by ihis item will be contaiuied iii the Conipanvs Proxy

Statement relating to the 2010 Auuiiuiiul \leeiiuig of luareholders to be filed within 120 days after the

end of our fiscal year enlel .Iiuiie 30 20 10 lie proxy iateineui1 and is nicorporaied herein by this

reference or is included iii Part tuuxler Executive Officers the Company

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMIENSATION

The information required by this itcuui will be coiutaiuued iii the proxy statement and is

incorpOratel herein by this reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OVNERSIIIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND

MANAGEMENT ANt RELATEI STOCKIIOLIER MATTERS

The infirlnation required this itcH will he eouutaiticd iii the proxy stateiuueflt and is

incorporated herein this referci ice

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSlllIS AND BELATED TRANSACTIONS ANI DIRECTOR

INDEPENIENCE

The inforniatioui relluirel in this tell ilI 10 olltaiulcl iii the 1roXV statettient amid is

incorporaleI herein this reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES ANI SERVICES

The information required lV his ileluu will lue colutainell iii tile FOX statenieuit auid is

104
incorporated herein this reference

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXIHBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCIIEIULES

hnancial Stateiuueuit

The consolidated financial slateuuueiut Report of Management and Report of Independent

Registered Public Accotuutitig Finn are listed in the Index to Financial Statements and

Schedules on page 56 atid iluluilel on pages 57 thirouuglu 64

Finauicial Statcuuueiit Schedules

All schedules for which
provision

is maie in the applicalle accotiuiting regulations of the

Securities and Exchange olnillission the omunission are either not required unier

the related1 instructiouis are not applicable and therefore have beeii omitted or the

required disclosures are contained iii the financial statements included herein

Exhibits including those incorporatel by reference

Exhibit

Number 1eerip1ion

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation
of the Company dated November 17

2005 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed as part of the Companvs

Form 10Q for the quarter
ended Deceniber 31 2005 Commission File No 16370

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 filed as part
of the omnpanvs Form 8-K dated October 27 2009

Coinniission File No -6370



ExIIiIit

Number Ieeriptioii

4.1 Indenture later as of Iaiuuaiv 13 20O among the Cotuupauiv and FD Management

Inc Di Enterpnses Inc Elizabeth Aideti Interuiaiional Flolding Inc RDEN

Management Inc. Elizabeth Aiden Financing Inc. Elizabeth Arden Travel Retail

Iiic. as guaranlors and ISB Bank SA as trustee incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 4.3 to tile Compunvs Ioruuu 10K or the year ended January 31 2004

Commission File No 6370
10.1 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreeuuieiit dated as of December 24 2002 among

the Company JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative agent Fleet National Bank as

collateral agent and tile hauiks listed on the sigliatune pag thereto imicorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit liled as part of lie
orumpanys

Form 8K dated

Decetriber 30 2002 ounmnision File No 6370
10.2 inst Aiiieinhrtietit to Serotid Auuiemn led and Retated Credit Agreement dated as of

February 2004
ammiorig

tue outipaiuv JPMorgati Chase Batik as administrative

agent Fleet National Bank as collateral agent and tile banks listed on the signature

pn1g thereto incorporated hiereiti In ic here tue to Exhtbt hlei as part of the

Companys lottui 10K br lie ear etided January 31 2004 Commission File No
16370

10.3 Second Aineuudmitenut 10 Second Ammiciuded and Restated relit Agreenient dated as of

June 2004
iummomug

the Counpauuv JP\lorgiuim Chase Bamuk as administrative agent

Heet Natiomial Batik as collateral agent amid tlte banks lismel ott the signature pages

thereto incorporated herein by re feriiice to Exhibit 4.6 to tile oullpan\s Forni 10Q
for the

qumartel
ended Ma 2004 Couuitmiissiomi File No 6370 ii

10.4 lhirl Amneuidnuent to Secomid Amuieuuded amid Ilesiated Credit Agreement dated as of
105

Sepieniber 30 2004 amitoulg lie
oimupammv

.1 PMorga ii Chase Bank as administrative

agent Fleet National Batik as collateral agent awl the banks listed on tIle signature

pages thereto immeorporaietl herein In rebemeutce to Exhibit 4.1 filed as part of the

onlpai1\s Forumi 8K daied October 2004 Comutiumissiomi Fik No 16370
Fourth Amnemnluuuemut to Second Amttiualed amid Restated Credit Agreement dated as of

November 200 aumiomug the ouuipauuv .JP\Iorgaui Chase l3aimk as adiiiinistrative

agent Bank of America smiccessor iii iutterest merger to Fleet National Bank
as the collateral agent and th hauuks listed oil the signature pages thereto incorporated

herein by relere uuce to Exhibit 4.8 hleul as 1utmmt
ol the ouillauuivs lommui 10Q for the

Itnurter
emided September 30 200T Coinumiussiomi File No 16370

10.6 littlu AuuieIlhuiiemit to Second \mneuuded auud Restated rhit Agreenient lateI as of

August 11 2006 amuomug
time

OiilIH1IV JP\Iorgami huase Bamtk as administrative agent

Bank of Amiierica sit Ices sor iii imiterest by milergcr to Fleet National Bank as the

collateral agent amid tin haiik listed omi ilu signal mire pages
thereto incorporated

huereiuu En iebeieuice to Lxhuilmit 4.7 hued of tIn Commipauuvs Form 10K for the

year ended jutu 30 2006 Coumuuuissioti lile No.16370

10.7 Sixth Amiieutdineuui to Second Auuiemided autd Restated rellit Agreement hated as of

August 15 2007
amiiong

tlti
otitpamiV JP\lorgait

Chase Batik as admniuiistrative agent

Bank of Ammierica successor iii juuterest uiierger to Fleet National Bank as the

collateral agent amid the lnuumks listed ouu tIme signature pms thereto incorporated

hieieiii by releuemme 10 Exliihi 10.7 filed part of lie
omuipiummvs

Foriiu 10K for the

ear emided Jnuue .30 2007 ouuimnissioui lulu No 16370



Exhibit

Number Ieseription

10.8 Seventh Amendment to Second Amended amid Restated Credit Agreement dated as of

November 13 2007 among the Company JPNlorgaim
Chase Bank as administrative

agent Bank of America successor in interest by merger to Fleet National Bank
as time collateral agent ami the banks listed on the signature pages thereto incorporated

herein reference to Exhibit 10.8 filed as part
of tile Conipatmvs Forum 0Q for the

quarter
ended leceniber 31 2007 Commummisshin File No 6370

10.9 Eighth Amendment to Second Aniemided and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of

ink 2008 among the Company JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative agent

Bank of America successor in interest by merger to Fleet National Bank as the

collateral agent anti the banks listed ott the signature pages thereto incorporated

herein by referemmce to Exhibit 10.1 filed as ptrt of the Companys Form 8K dated

Jtdy 21 2008 Commission File No 16370
10.10 Exhibits to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of

December 24 2002 among the Comnpativ JPMorgaim Chase Bank as administrative

agent Batik of America successor in interest by merger to Fleet National Rank
as the collateral agent anti the banks listed on the signature pages thereto as amended

thronglm the Eighth Amendment thereto dated as of .Inlv 21 2008 Portions of this

exlmibit have been onmitted pursuant to request for confidential treatment incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10 10 filed as part of the Companys Form 0Q for the

quarter
ended December 31 2009 Coumunission File No 16370

10.11 Amended and Restated Security Agreemnent
dated as of Jamiarv 29 2001 mmmdc the

Conmjuumw and certain of its subsidiaries in favor of Fleet National Bammk as

admnnnstrative agent incorporated lmereimm by reference to Exlmiltit 4.5 filed as part
of the

106 Companys Formum 8K dated .lanuarv 23 2001 01111t1155OI1 He No 6370

10.12 Amended and Restated Deed of Lease dated as of Ianuarv 17 2003 between tIme

Comnpanv ammd Liberty Property
Lnnited Paitnerslmip incorporated herein referenced

to Exhibit 0.5 filed as part
of the omnpammvs lornm 0Q for the quarter

ended

April 26 2003 ComnImmi5sion
File No 16370

10.13 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated incorporated herein reference

to Exhibit 10.12 filed as part of the Comnpamuvs Form l0Q for the quarter
ended

December 31 2007 Commission File No 6370

10.14 2004 NonEmployee Director Stock Opt iomm Plan as amended incorporated herein liv

reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed as part
of the ompanvs lormu 0Q for time qnarter

ended September 30 2006 omnuimission File No 6370

10.15 2000 Stock Incentive Plamm as amended iumcorporated herein by reference to Eximibit

10.14 filed as part
of the Cunpaumvs 1ormmt 0f br the quarter ended Iecemmibem 31

2007 Commission File No 6370

10.16 1995 Stock Option Plan as ammiemmded imicorporated herein referemice to Exhibit 10.4

filed If the Commupanvs Form 0f for time qmiamter eumled Septemmmber
30 2006

Cmiiimissicmm File No 16370

10.17 Ammiemmded 2002 Employee Stock Pimrclmase Plan incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.17 filed as pirt
If the Compammvs Forum If for the quarter

ended

1ecemnber 31 2009 Conimnissiomi File No 16370

10.18 NonEmnplovee lirector Stock Option Plan as ammmended immeorporated hereimm In

reference to Exhibit 10.6 filed as part of the Comnpanvs Forum 0f for tIme quarter

ended September 30 2006 Commimmmission
Fib Nm 16370



Exhibit

Number Ieseription

10.19 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for stock option
awards lmlller in

Companys NonEmployee Director Stock Option Plan incorporated herein tefete

to Exhibit 10.8 filed as part of the Coinpaiivs Form 10Q for the quarter etided

March 31 2005 Commission File No 1-6370

10.20 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for stock option awars 111111cr lime

Companys 1995 Stock Option Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exliihit 10.9

filed as part
of the Conipanys Form 10Q for the

quarter
endel \iarll 31 2005

Commission File No 16370
10.21 Form of Nonqimalified Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards lllller lime

Coinpanvs 1995 Stock Option Plan iiicorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10

filed as part of the Coinpaiivs Form 10Q for the quarter ended March 31 2005

Commission File No -6370

10.22 Form of Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under time Couipaiivs 2000

Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 11 filed as pall

of the Companys Form 0Q for the
quarter

ended March 31 2005 Comnniissioii File

No 1-6370

10.23 Form of Restricted Stock Agreiiient for service-based restricted stock awards one-veai

vesting under the Companys 2000 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein

reference to Exhibit 10.12 filed as part
of tile Companys Form 10-Q for the

quarter

ended March 31 2005 Commission File No 1-6370

10.24 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the performance-based restricted stock awards

under the Companys 2000 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated hereiii by reference mm

Exhibit 10.13 filed as parr of the Conipanvs Form i0Q for time quarter etided

March 31 2005 Commission File No 1-6370

10.25 Form of Stock Option Agreeirient for stock option awards under the Conipanvs 2004

NonEmployee Director Stock Optioii Plan incorporated herein by refereiice to Exhibit

10.14 filed as part of the Companys Form 10Q for the
quarter

elllel March 31

2005 Commission File No 11370
10.26 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the marketbased restricted stock awards titimler

the Companvs 2004 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by re fete nec to lxiiibii

10.15 filed as part of the Companys Form 0Q for the
quarter

etided March

2005 Coniinission File No -6370

10.27 Form of Stock ption Agreeirient for stock option awards under the
oIIipaliv

2004

Stock Incentive Plan incorpoiated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 filed as part

of the Companys Form 10K for the year ended June 30 2005 Coiiiimmissimi Fih

1-6370

10.28 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the restricted stock awards uhiler till

Companys 2004 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.20 filed as part of the Cnipanys Form 10-K for the year ended june 30 2005

Commission File No 1-6370

10.29 2005 Management Bonus Plan as amended incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.28 filed as part
of the Conipanys Formn 10Q for the

quarter
eiided ieceimmher 31

2007 Comnmnissiomi File No 16370
10.30 2005 Performance Bonus Plan as amended incorporated herein by re fete mice to Exhibit

10.29 filed as part
of the Conmpamivs Forum 10Q for the

quarter
ended leceiiiher 31

2007 Comnniissiomi File No 16370



Exhibit

Number Description

10.3 Elizabeth Arden Inc Severance Policy as amended and restated on May 2010

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.31 filed as part
of the Companys Fonn

10-9 for the quarter
ended March 31 2010 Commission File No 1-6370

10.32 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for service-based restricted stock awards three-

year vesting period tinder the Companys 2000 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 filed as part of the Companys Forni 10-K for the

year
ended June 30 2007 Commission File No 1-6370

10.33 Ierminaiion Agreement between Elizabeth Arden International S.â.r.l and Jacobits

Steffens dated Noveniber 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32

filed as part of the Companys Form 10-9 for the quarter ended Deceniber 31 2008

Coiimiission File No 1-6370

10.34 Form of Indemnification Agreement for Directors and Officers of Elizabeth Arden Inc

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of tile Companys Form 8-K

dated August 112009 Commission File No 1-6370

12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of PriceWaterhouse Coopers LLP

24.1 Power of Attorney included as part
of the signatures page

31.1 Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

1.2 Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32 Section 906 Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and tile Chief Financial Officer

108
Managenient contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Filed herewith



SICNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 Jr 1d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

registrant has duly caused this
report to signed on its behalf by the undersigiied thereunto duly

authorized as of the 17th day of August 2010

EUzABFiII ARDEN INC

By Is SCOTT BEAFFIE

Scott Beattie

Chairman President Chief

Executive Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

We the undersigned directors and officers of Elizabeth Arden Inc hereby severally constitute

Scott Reattie aiid Siepheii Smith and each of tliemii singly our true and lawful
attorneys

with

full power to them anl each of theiri to sign
for us in our ilames in the capacities indicated below

any and all aniendiiienis to this Annual Report on Form 10K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report

has been

signed by the following rsons on behalf of the registrant aiid in the capacities
and on the dates

inmhcated

Signature Title 109

/s Su yrr Chairman President and Chief August 17 2010

Scott Beaflie
Executive Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Is Siiii lEN SMVIl Executive Vice President and August 17 2010

Stephen Smith Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer

Is FwD Biitis Director August 17 2010

Fred Berens

/s Mt Flt Cl.ltK Iirector August 17 2010

Maura Clark

/s RIIl\RI C.W Mi R\\ Director August 17 2010

Richard C.W Mauran

Is WILl IA\l Trll it Director August 17 2010

William Tatham

/s J.\V Nlvll TI lONl5 iirector August 17 2010

J.W Nevil Thomas

/s PtJl Wlsl Iirector August 17 2010

Paul West
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Private Investor
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